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Historical Financial Highlights

B BEEE

For the year ended 31 December

BZE12A3MBLEE

2013 2014 2015 2016
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’'000
AREFTT ARBTT AREFTRT AR®TRT
PROFIT OR LOSS B
Revenue A 1,671,647 2,204,565 2,918,627 3,721,993
Gross profit EF 242,429 363,086 530,925 716,027
Operating profit &EFE 110,512 199,832 283,766 416,799
Profit before tax & FR BT A 108,390 198,618 278,126 418,588
Net profit attributable to AEEERR
equity shareholders of PEAL R
the Company 83,712 149,189 197,818 285,540
Gross margin FEH =R 14.5% 16.5% 18.2% 19.2%
Operating margin R EE 6.6% 9.1% 9.7% 11.2%
Net margin JF R 2 5.0% 6.8% 6.8% 7.7%
Financial ratios B St =
Liquidity REBES
Current ratio mEN K 1.03x 1.00x 0.94x 1.84x
Quick ratio IR K 1.01x 1.00x 0.93x 1.83x
Capital adequacy BEEXFZRE
Net gearing ratio (1) FEEABLER(@) Net cash Net cash Net cash Net cash
FiRe FiRe FiRe BEE
Net cash per share (RMB) (2) FBCEES (ARKE) (2 - - - 0.785
Net cash ex-IPO proceeds per TRELTEEES
share (RMB) (3) BRFHRS(ARE)Q) - - - 0.329
Rates of return [B] 3R &
Dividend per share (HK$) (4) SRS (BTT) 4) - - - 0.04
Dividend payout ratio FHBIR Bt R (5)
after listing (5) - - - 35.0%
Return on net equity (6) FRETR ORI (6) 39.9% 68.5% 132.8% 16.4%
Return on total assets (7) BEELHRE ) 8.7% 11.5% 12.0% 8.6%
OPERATION EFFICIENCY BERE
Contract renewal rate BRBH = 95.6% 98.9% 97.0% =

GREENTOWN SERVICE GROUP CO. LTD. ANNUAL REPORT 2016



Historical Financial Highlights

B BEHE

(1) Net gearing ratio is calculated as cash and cash equivalents
minus bank loans, and then divided by net assets

(2)  Net cash per share is calculated as cash and cash equivalents
minus bank loans, then divided by total number of shares in
issuance at the end of 2016

(3) Net cash ex-IPO proceeds per share is calculated as cash and
cash equivalents minus the net IPO proceeds raised (RMB1,265.8
million), minus bank loans, then divided by total number of shares
in issuance at the end of 2016

(4)  This is based on total number of shares issued as at end 2016:
2,777,776,000 shares

(5) Dividend payout ratio after listing is defined as the proposed
percentage by the Board of after tax profit attributable to equity
shareholders for the year, set for dividend distribution to equity
shareholders

(6) Return on net equity is calculated as net profit attributable to
equity shareholders of the Company divided by net assets

(7)  Return on total assets is calculated as profit attributable to equity
shareholders of the Company divided by total assets

FINANCIAL POSITION

7)

FEERAMBHELER ’EJrE??iZ:xEE'LXIEﬁ&i%
TEHEEWRERITER  ARBNFE
=

BRFReMAEFZRUNEAE MRS
FZEMRERITEE - AEKRIA20165F
[RE BT E

BRLTEEES  BRFHRSO
BHERNAS MRS EEYRELD
EE2B(ARK125888)  BHE
RITRIE - RARBRUA2016FEEHTH
e

EaAER2016FRE EITH AR :
2,777,776,000 B%

/ﬁé/‘ilttfﬁﬁrE%xE%%@E?-?
R TEESNSIE: Hx%ﬁé‘ﬁ/ﬁnﬂ 7] = %
HAEERS,DEIRBRENE S

/?ﬁ&@#&—v—u #E;fgb/{i\\aj*géﬂﬁ
RIEEENR T EE

BEELMEFAETNER AR AR
RIEMEENRABEE

BrFE AR

For the year ended 31 December
®12831H
2014 2015 2016

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000

ARBTT AR®TT  AR¥TR

2013

RMB'000

AREFT

Cash and cash equivalents ReEMRESEEY 299,441
Trade and other receivables 2 5 T E A FE R 311,909
Current assets REEE 751,414
Total assets %EE 959,575
Bank loans IRITER 40,000
Total liabilities EF’ B4t 749,530
Net assets EEFHE 210,045

437,419 835,897 2,181,692
437,663 419,952 546,666
1,068,366 1,376,874 = 2,853,076
1,302,315 1,641,885 = 3,322,719
100,000 180,000 -
1,085,031 1,493,008 = 1,576,983

217,284 148,877 1,745,736

2016FF#H HZWBRBEBRERAF



Historical Financial Highlights

B BEEE

CONSOLIDATED CASHFLOW SERERE

For the year ended 31 December
BZ12A31HLEEE
2013 2014 2015 2016
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT AREBTT AR®BTR

Net cash generated from W EBFTSIR S TR

operating activities 173,593 332,802 510,822 393,661
Net cash (used in)/generated from & EE (FTA), 5

investing activities bR e (72,400) (164,138) 131,660 (146,864)
Net cash (used in)/generated from REESEE (FTA), 5

financing activities WEIFH (10,635) (30,686) (243,950) = 1,056,525
Net increase in cash & ReRkREEEY

cash Equivalents EhnFEE 90,558 137,978 398,532 1,303,322
Cash & cash equivalents at the FHRe RS

beginning of the year ZEY 208,883 299,441 437,419 835,897
Effect of foreign exchange rate fEEF BB

changes - - (54) 42,473
Cash & cash equivalents FERESRESEEY

at the end of the year 299,441 437,419 835,897 2,181,692

8 GREENTOWN SERVICE GROUP CO. LTD. ANNUAL REPORT 2016



Awards and Honors

RIENRE

Awards Name of the award/awarding organization

®15 REEREREE

Ten Most Trustworthy Property Service Brands for
Medal of Homeowners

Committee of Happy Community List of Public Trust in
China

"Housing and Real Estate” magazine
REGSEIFEEN+ KRR mEMERE
hEEBHRAEEEZS

(EE R 2 it bt

& : @ L Certificate of Top Hundred Companies in Zhejiang in

: the Service Industry

%m%ﬂm&#ﬁa‘}ﬂxﬁj § Enterprises Association of Zhejiang Province

: Entrepreneurs Association of Zhejiang Province
Industrial Economic Federation of Zhejiang Province

MTERBETREENES

ib‘ril. a8 WIEPURHE  HIH HTEERRGE

MTE TREEMA S

B o

2016F 3| AR EEBR AR 9
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Awards and Honors

RIENRE

CERTIFICATE
—e

TR b R H S FA LA 2)

WrEES

and Chins Indes Academy, used

Awards Name of the award/awarding organization
15 REERBPEE
« ,zi'“a

Certificate of 2016 China Specialized Property
Service Company — Smart Community Service
System

China Index Academy

2016 HEIEBRBFELX — EEEERBRARE
o B 45 B 7B

SRR A b JR 4 5 AT IR é]
3K 2016 4=mmnu FEBAE h" <tk

2016 China TOP10 Property Managesot Compaies In
P100 mu
[

China Property Management TOP100, established by C1i
scieatific

Certificate of 2016 China Top10 Property
Management Companies in terms of growth
potential

China Index Academy

2016 FEMERBERELERRMETOP10ES

o B 45 B ST B

B
®
g

»@ CERTIFICATE
e e

BB LIRS S B A RN 8]
4% 2016 A LIRS T AR AL TOP1O

2016 China TOP10 Property in terms of
TOP100 FRAL APWUR
L

Flle ey singionks J0ri, it v b Aot biowsoe s o e g
»

Certificate of 2016 China Top10 Property
Management Companies in terms of business size
China Index Academy

2016 FEIMERBE EREERBERETOPI0EE

B 45 ST TE B
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Awards and Honors

RIENRE

Awards

#®15

Name of the award/awarding organization

REEREREE

®

-~

G5 Mo W 5 5 B A R 8
STk 2016 REYILY 7 B3 LIRS FR & TOP10

2016 China TOP10 Property Muswement Comyrsies it Lerms of service quality

TOP100 G,
BRT

Safes Frseiic Memmpemind TOPLI oot by Colvn vty M poses A4 e Al Dt v
dology -.mr roperty Management Compani

HPEES

used

Certificate of 2016 China Top10 Property
Management Companies in terms of service quality
China Index Academy

2016 PEIMRBBHRAERBEHLETOPI0EE

o B 45 B TE B

CERTIFICATE “P\
B Ao IR S R HA RN 3
I3k 2016 ‘PW”)J]’M; .ﬁgﬂm‘ﬂ!"“ B9 TOPIO

2016 China TOP10 Property Manages:

TOPI00 GESEAL.
BRT

Chin Property Managemeat TOP100, established by Clina Property Managemen
ific methodology and criterion to conclude with the vuicame of 2016 China Top 100 Property Management Compani

|
|

1 Institute and China Index Academy, used

les.

Certificate of 2016 China Top10 Property
Management Companies in terms of comprehensive
strength

China Index Academy
2016 FEIMRBBHRERMGEEITOPI0ESE
o B 45 B TE B

CERTIFICATE

<L par J T
- e &— [ 5

B PR A R 5 S B AT RN 8]
SRIR 2016 PR 95 40 2 SR

"3
2016 China leading property managen: | ompasic: In (- of cusiomer satisfaction
TOP100 G
2

China Property Manugem , established by China Proj

t Tnstitute and China Index oo
scientific methodology and criterion to conclude with

the outcome lnl‘cllu’hp 00 Property Mans,

HPRLA

sgement Companles.

my, used

Certificate of 2016 China Leading Property
Management Companies in terms of customer
satisfaction

China Index Academy
2016 PEIEBBERAREERLLXRE
o B8 45 B TE B

2016FF#H HZWBRBEBRERAF
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Awards and Honors

RIENRE

Awards

#®15

Name of the award/awarding organization

REEREREE

@ cnrmcna
SR S KA A D
ﬁﬁmw¢ﬁﬁﬂ%$ﬂ%ﬁ&ﬂ&ﬂ$m%
vy - A W—

Certificate of 2016 Leading Enterprise in High-end
Property Management Service Market in China
China Index Academy

2016 FEIBRMERB T B MU AELKEE

o B 45 BT TE B

% CERTIFICATE %
TFI
o B 5 O LSR5

Cer cate of China Property Management Brand Value

e P PRI
WIZ 122006 *Nﬁﬂﬁﬂ"il&sﬂk&ﬂt!
A ARITIRIETI L (¥3,927,000,000.00)

‘Y
e

Certificate of China Property Service Brand Value
China Index Academy
TEMEREREEETRES

o B 45 B TE B

7 aris 9

FeH Ay W RS B FIRH
ZE (PEYLBE) FEZBRELSESTRCS
AT ENEY2016 CLEMNIMF AL RS” FBEAE

BHREAYLEEITLIEPGRRED P, TR

@k [ bt

Certificate of 5th China Property Management Industry
Photo Competition Excellence Certificate
“China Property Management” magazine
FHEFEAYEEETEREABRESRRE
(PEYEREE ML

7%
‘gnnéﬂmgiiﬁﬁ

*ﬁ%!mﬁﬁ.ﬂﬂriﬁmﬁﬁﬁ&ﬁﬁ

Certificate of nt Brand Value
HRA. HeMSHMBSRNURBRANRAE
ey

TERRIKLF I, AFIMILIE!

RS " mli*ﬂllﬂﬁnﬂimﬂi&nﬁ!
: A PRI (¥3,927,000,000.00)

.........

wicE

'S @

%

Certificate of 2016 — China's Property Services
Enterprise With Leading Brand In Market-oriented
Operation

China Index Academy

2016 FEIMERB TS ELRERELERE

o B 45 B 7E B
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Chairman’s Statement

ER|E

HERR

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board, | am pleased to report the full year results for
the twelve months ended 31 December 2016.

2016 was the first year that we listed on the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange. With support from our shareholders, in a market where
demand has been continously expanding, and through the hard work
of our staff, our results for the year have come in tandem with our
development and steadily growing.

Being China’s leading high-end property management service
provider, Greentown Service has evolved markedly from mere basic
property service offering, at the forefront we have consulting services
targeting property developers, whilst at the user end we make
available a variety of products and services for better living. These
three business service lines form our core business triangle, which in
turn created synergy, and continued to power the Company forward.

Not too long ago, China announced its 2016 full year economic data,
and its economic growth should put China back amongst the top of
the major league of world’s economic power. One of the notable
trends is: China’s service industries that already accounted for a high
51.6% of China’s GDP, further increased by 1.4 percentage points,
internet penetration reached 53.2%, whilst online retail sales rose by
26.2% yly, express courier volume struck a staggering 31.3 billion units,
and urbanisation continued its uptrend up by a 1.3 percentage points
to 43.2%. Our interpretation of the above data, is that it bears
resemblance to our business development last year. As a service
operator covering 99 cities in China, providing property and related
products to serve residents’ living needs, we have longed for internet
usage continued to rise, which would in turn solidify their online
purchase habit. This would facilitate our property service efficiency
improvement. At the same time, this also expands the scope of our
community living service. In reality, through the rapid growth in our
community living service, our expansion has succumbed to the national
trend, and with the assistance of increased internet usage our business
growth outpaced that of the nation’s. We have already positioned our
development in advance, expanding our investment in smart property
management. This would boost our own technological capability, while
becoming better adapted to the Internet+ led property management.
Greentown Service is proud to achieve a 97% rate where residents
acknowledge their courier collection online.

GREENTOWN SERVICE GROUP CO. LTD. ANNUAL REPORT 2016
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Chairman’s Statement
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As China’'s urbanisation continues to rise, the property industry remains
a key driver for China’s economy. In the year, many property
developers whom our Company has long been collaborating with, and
since received positive market recognition, have successfully purchased
land in the economically well-off regions. This serves as a secured
source of growth opportunities for the Group, servicing the high end
property market. In spite of such, the Group has also been utilising our
strong brandname exploring opportunities to partner with State owned
enterprises. They have abundant landbank and strong development
power. We have already established a strategic cooperation with
Zhongchu Property Development Company, providing our full set of
services from property management, to consulting services to their
developed and developing property projects. Meanwhile, as part of
our endeavour to develop in the Bohai Economic Rim thoroughly, we
worked with the Jinan High-tech Development Zone Authority,
successfully signed contracts in one of the important business and
finance districts, “HanYuJinGu Commercial Centre”, with a large GFAs
of 2.9 million sg m. On community living services, we strive to
understand better of mid-high end property owners on their evolving
needs in daily living, through detailed servicing. With such knowledge,
we then can adequately amass suppliers that could provide related
products and services. And through our “Happy Greentown” online
apps, we can effectively promote these offerings to our entire
customers base. And since most of our customers are in urban areas,
this suggests a target audience of greater consumption power. This
has since attracted better known industry names such Red Star
Macalline in home renovation, and Suning in home electrical
appliances. We have since signed contracts and launched related
services.

And what made us even more proud was the appointment by the
Hangzhou municipal government to officially provide part of project
management services to a global event, the G20 Hangzhou Summit
2016, held in Hangzhou. This is an unequivocal recognition of our
service quality, on top of the economic benefit gained. We have since
promoted our brandname further.

In the year, we focused on property management quality, introduced
both online and offline evaluation system. And with the results so far,
our service standards are recognised to be well maintained. Our
management fee collection rate reached 97.4% in 2016, reflecting that
our customers are willing to pay for quality service. And this
safeguarding customer’s trust, through maintaining service quality, is
what Greentown Service set out to achieve, a foundation that our
business relies on.

BEE h BB LK PR IR T - BHEKRAR
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In less than a year of Listing, we are honoured to receive many
recognition from the capital markets, namely the inclusion into the
MSCI China Small Cap Index, and two awards by “"Golden Hong Kong
Connect Stocks”: “Listed company with the most investment value”
and “Listed company with the highest growth potential”.

Subsequent to the year end of 2016, effective from é March 2017, the
Company became a member of the “Shenzhen-Hong Kong Stock
Connect” trading program. This has since opened up a broader base
of mainland China’s individual and institutional investors for the
Company.

We keep our corporate motto close to hearts: sincerity, well-
intentioned, impeccability, and perfection. As we are still far from
perfection, we ought to remain humble, using our wisdom to be a
good service provider. And we generate growth to reward
shareholders and investors.

RESULTS REVIEW

For the twelve months ended 31 December 2016, the Group's revenue
increased by 27.5% to RMB3,721,993,000. Property services revenue
was RMB2,619,927,000, Consulting services revenue was RMB618,036,000,
and Community living services revenue was RMB484,030,000.

PROPOSED FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board is of the view that the Group’s operating and financial
performance in the year was remarkable, and the Board's always
believes in sharing the positive return from the Group's growth through
dividend distribution. As the Group does not foresee any major capital
requirement on the operating front, hence the Board proposes a final
dividend for equity shareholders at HK$0.04 per share. The payout
ratio is approximately 35% of after tax profit, being higher than that
was disclosed in the prospectus dated 28 June 2016 in that the payout
ratio will not be less than 25% of after tax profit.

OUTLOOK

We have actively participated in tenders amongst cities like Shanghai,
Hangzhou, and Suzhou for second-hand property management
projects (in contrast to projects arise from brand new property) . We
have since made progress, signing contracts in Xujiahui, one of city
centres in Shanghai, area close to the G20 venue in Hangzhou, and
Suzhou Industry Development Park. Given that they are projects
currently available, we provide service immediately hence start
contributing to both revenue and managed GFA for the Group.

GREENTOWN SERVICE GROUP CO. LTD. ANNUAL REPORT 2016
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Chairman’s Statement

ER|E

In 2017, property developers that we have strategic co-operation with,
will continue to develop and pre-sale their property hence becoming a
major source for the Group in getting new projects. And as usual, the
Group will continue to provide services throughout their product life-
cycle, from consulting services at the construction stage, to the
provision of a variety of products in the community living service
category, like turnkey furnishing service. The State has recently
adjusted the policy stance on the property market, in that “apartment
is for living but not for speculating”. As a property service provider, we
will benefit from this new stance for speculation will often lead to many
vacant flats, to which not only we could not market our products and
services effectively, it would also make management fee collection
time consuming. A high occupancy property project allows us to match
our services to tenants needs.

The Group will continue to consolidate our competitive advantages in
the existing markets, the Yangtze River Delta and Bohai Economic Rim.
We will also make inroads into mid-western cities, such as Chongging,
Chengdu, Xi‘an and Kunming. We believe these cities are the next in
line to experience fast growth in China’s interest, hence seizing the
opportunity to build from our limited presence there and expanding
further. In the Pearl River Delta region, we believe we could make
progress with a few targets already in mind.

Throughout the 18 years of providing property services, we have
accumulated a vast reserve of experience. Whilst we do not intend to
be overly conservative, yet we would well use our industry position
pushing for growth in accordance with our development plan. And
when the opportunity arises, we would make use of the capital market
to acquire or cooperate with targets that fit our criteria.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEE WM

We are a leading high-end residential property management service
provider in China. According to the study of an independent property
research organization, China Index Academy, on China’s top 100
property management service providers, we ranked No.2 in overall
strength amongst the top 100 players for six consecutive years since
2010. And in 2015, we were ranked No.2 by the Academy for being
China’s property management company with the largest growth
potential. We believe our industry leadership is most apparent in the
scale of our managed high end residential properties, the wide
penetration of our management across the nation, and our sustainable
growth in our financial strength.

In this annual report and 2016's results announcement dated 23 March
2017, the Company has renamed its three major business service lines
and a fee item from (i) “property management services”; (ii)
“community value-added
“property
“community living services”,

“management consulting services”; (iii)
services”, and (iv) “property management fee” to (i)
services”; (ii)
and (iv) "
Board's thorough and lengthy discussion within the Group and taking

into consideration the recommendation from independent

“consulting services”; (iii)

property service fee”. Such changes were made after the

management consultant after extended study. Previous titles for the
service lines reflected our derivation of income is through active
management of properties, the very core to our business. Yet, as the
needs of our owners and residents for better living have been evolving,
the Group started to position the offering of a broader spectrum of
services and products, in addition to our core management task, to
better meet their needs. Hence the Group believes in renaming the
three service lines, and the fee item, should provide more flexibility in
our future offering of services and products. The scope of business
under each of the business service lines remained the same in 2016,
hence shareholders and investors can directly compare the financial
performance under the renamed business segments for the year 2016
with that under the corresponding business service lines in the previous
financial results. In case the Group engages in any addition business
activities under any of the business service lines in future, the Group
will disclose the same in 2017's interim results announcement to inform
the shareholders and investors accordingly.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEE WM oA

RESULTS REVIEW

The Group's revenue arises from three service lines: (i) property

services; (i) consulting services; and (iii) community living services.

Property services — 70.4% of the Group's revenue
We operate our property management service on lump sum basis for

the dominant majority of our projects. We charge, and are paid by our

resident owners quarterly, or semi-annually, or annually of our property
service fees. We believe our strength, amassed since inception 18 years

ago,

amongst others, lies in the execution and cost control in

managing properties. This strength has since helped improve our
financial returns and brought us steady income stream and consistent
growth in profit. For 2016:

B 7 B
AEFRARB=ZEESER : () WERE:
(i "B FARTS ¢ I (i) B = R 7 o

WERKE — HHEKA70.4%

NEE—EH ARE 2RI %I RIS R E
x - TREET EFE FERAETZARBK
BYERBE - ERRMBE1SFEENE
B AR ES MR AR BE ) - A RERTE UL AFIR
ETIR AR - R 2016 24 ¢

2016 2015

% of % of

property property
management % of  management % of
revenue managed GFA revenue  managed GFA
EMEER HEE EMERER HHEE
WA % EHE % WA % E1& %

Contracted GFA BHEIE

— Residential — = 723 76.2 74.8 83.2
— Non-residential —IEE=E 27.7 23.8 25.2 16.8
Total st 100 100 100 100

GFA under management for the year reached a high of 105.2
million sgq m, increased by 27.1% y/y from 2015's 82.8 million sq
m, or a net area increase of 22.4 million sg m. This is also 15.1%
higher than 91.4 million sgq m at 2016 interims. This net increase
in GFA reached a record high (2015: 16.9 million sq m) for the
Group. It's this very capability of getting new projects that
constitutes a key part of our core competitiveness. This in turn
drives our organic growth on a consistent basis.

Reserved GFA of which we define as properties that we have
signed service contracts with various property developers
providing property management service and upon the delivery of
these projects. Overtime, the reserve GFA would then become
our contracted GFA contributing and expanding our revenue
base in the future.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEET Mo

In the year, reserved GFA reached 119.4 million sq m, grew by
33.9% y/y compared to the 89.1 million sgq m in 2015. This was
20.6% higher than the 99.0 million sq m at 2016 interims. This is
the third year in a row that the reserved GFA again exceeded the
managed GFA, suggesting that the magnitude of adding new
projects does not only more than replenish the delivered ones in
the year, it further expanded the entire reserve. Given the trend,
and the number of projects on hand, the management is
confident of this division’s future growth for years to come.

Of both managed and reserved GFAs, the split between
residential and non-residentials, is 76%-74% and 24%-26%
respectively. The non-residential percentage has risen
considerably from 2015's 17% to 2016's 25%-24%. This is part of
the Group’s medium term strategy, proactively expanding more
into higher management fee projects, and in turn improving our
entire portfolio with average management fee lifted. This also
raises our profile and brand awareness in the non-residential
segment too.

The number of projects under management in the year reached
809, covering 23 provinces, municipalities and autonomous
regions, and 99 cities across the country. In 2015, and 2016
interims, we only had 637 and 686 projects respectively.

Average property service fee, per sq m, per month, was RMB3.08,
slightly above that of RMB3.06 at end 2015 and 2016 interims.
This mild increase is mainly due to the fast expansion into cities
that generally have average management fee lower than our
overall average, despite the fact that those projects are already
regarded as high end locally. This drags our overall average
down. Hence year-on-year comparison of the Group's average
management fee might not accurately reflect our strength in
getting high management fee projects, as it may be affected by
the seasonal factor in the year. Therefore, the management
would advice shareholders and investors to not just focus on our
average management fee, but more so on our ability to expand
our gross margin in the year. This should reflect better of the
management’s execution capability.

FRHEBEBEINLEE LK &k
2015F /8.1 BEF K » K 33.9% :
tHhE 2016 FHEIM9.08 & F H K=
20.6% - EREBBEF=FHREEDES
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AERETREGTEFTUHREEAR
NEEE  EERFIEINENGEE - 1%
FEHREAEMEEYS  BEEH
FRIRE R RIE R TR D ©
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Our collection rate in the year reached another new high at
97.4%, compared to the already high level of 96.6% in 2015.

Greentown China Holdings Limited (3900.HK) is not only our
shareholder (5% interest), it's also our largest customer and long
term business partner. In the year, based on revenue, they
accounted for 4.7% of our revenue. Since our inception, the
Group has always been an independent operator, actively
seeking projects from all kinds of potential customers across the
country. Hence customers over concentration is not a concern for

FRFEMOBAEBRIFS » £97.4%
L2015 F BB =K FH96.6% B 5 °

AR5 P BUHE A% B BR A B (3900.HK) B 7 &
BMHRE (5% ER) ERRMHEAR
EEPMEEAERN - FRN - WA
HAEENHEST  Rh47% - £ 8
WS AR — BB EE BRE2ET
BMESER  fIAfTeHBEEFR6BE
%EF‘E’H@/R ©

the Group.

SEDRARABEENSE - HAGEEIK
MNDRDET 6% » RESLBE—E -

—  Our mode of operation has always been, and remains to be —
predominately lump-sum basis, accounting for 97.6% of our total
contract value. This is in line with the historical trend.

& 13 2 5 0 R2016F12 A31H » 1M
MEEEBEMBAZBESSHEOT

—  Geographical breakdown: The breakdown of our contracted GFA  —
and revenue by geographical locations as at 31 December 2016
were as follows:

2016 2015
% of % of % of % of
managed GFA revenue managed GFA revenue
EEEER%  EREA%  GEEEE%  GREA%
Hangzhou M 19.9 26.6 18.6 284
— YuHang — R 6.6 6.5 8.3 57
Greater Hangzhou R 26.5 33.1 26.9 34.1
— Ningbo — =& 8.3 7.2 8.7 7.9
— Yangtze River Delta —RI=ZAR 37.0 31.2 353 314
— Bohai Economic Rim — IR & B[R 10.6 13.6 1.5 13.1
— Pearl River Delta —KI=AR 55 5.2 4.8 45
— Others — HAftb 12.1 9.7 12.8 9.0
100 100 100 100
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Consulting services — 16.6% of the Group’s revenue

This business service line is made up of two divisions: (i) Property under
construction services, comprising display unit management services,
and construction site security services; and (ii) Management consulting
services, comprising property development consulting services
providing, amongst others, project design at development stage, and
various property management consulting services after the delivery of
the property.

—  Revenue was RMB618.0 million, an increase of 12.2% y/y from
2015’s RMB550.8 million. The moderation in this division’s growth
rate from the past trend, is solely due to its largest revenue
contributor, property under construction services (84.5% of
segment'’s revenue) recorded only a revenue of RMB522.5 million,
a mild growth of 9.8% y/y. Growth in the other contributor,
management consulting services, however continued to grow as
expected in line with the past trend, up 27.6% y/y to RMB95.5
million.

—  Property under construction services revenue was RMB522.5
million, increased by only 9.8% y/y from 2015’s RMB475.9 million.
Reasons for the slowdown are: (i) China’s property market was
particularly strong in 2016, where property developers
experienced fast sales. This led to the shortening of both
development cycle and sales phase, in many cases ending the
projects that we were servicing as flats were completely sold out
much earlier than expected. In the first half of 2016, we had as
many as 201 projects ended, and then into the 2H another 159
projects were also ended early. Therefore this slowed down our
business growth in the 2H as well as for the whole year of 2016; (ii)
the majority of land auction was won by China’s top 100
developers in the property industry. And most of these top
enterprises already have there own similar services division in
house, hence taking on such services themselves. This
exacerbated the reduction of new projects coming to the market.
In general, of the land won through auction in the TH of the year,
we could start providing our services as early as in the 2H of the
same year. Since most land was purchased by the top 100
enterprises in 2016, therefore the slowdown in our business
volume into the 2H became even more marked; (iii) in spite of the
above, the Group has proactively marketed our services and
managed to bring in many more new projects, resulting in a 14%
y/y increase in the number of new projects for the year. Yet, the
decline in project value was quite deep to the extent that the
increase in volume did not make up the decline in the 2H. Hence
the growth in this division only registered 9.8% for the year.

BHRE — B A16.6%
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The Group realises that the state of the market has changed and
its likely to be structural, a trend here to stay. In respond to this
change, the Group has proceeded to an upgrade in this service.
On one hand, we speedily expanded the variety of service
categories on offer, without limiting to the traditional type of
services in order to meet clients evolving demand. Meanwhile,
we also expanded our target audience, focusing on non-property
nature clients. We have already made progress on this front.

On the other hand, the Group has already started a business
transformation — Greentown Alliance, moving from the historical
practice of consigning out our standard service package and staff
management, towards the new direction where we provide
diversified and varied assistance to other property management
companies that joined our alliance. In 2016, we already achieved
some success in this new initiative. We further prepare to roll out
a series of new services including "Greentown Smart Community
Construction” as well as other programmes. The management
believes the results of all these initiatives would have noticeable
results towards the 2H of 2017.

SEERINEENSERNAERGEHE
HEAMRAH - SHEEERE - RAMNE
FHAR o — 77 E AL IR 78 2 15 (8 A 3 # AR 75
NBENPENZ B AR RS - FRR
BHRNEERRY  UneEFHHERE
- AR RMATHREAEANERE
P BRNIEFMWESTP - BATHMD
EREAXINZED

A—HE BRPFELETEL [
Bl BEnEAnNBREL  ABRK
B ERAAMELERESEENBE
AR%5 - 2016 FIREEHAKR - AR K
FMEmBE TR [SNE 2 ERER] K
RE-ZINFHRGAS - HFIFEE
EEROKR - BEE2017FTHEFH
FHHZER -

2016 2015
Revenue % of Y/Y  Revenue % of Y/Y
RMB’000 total %  RMB’'000 total %
['ON 1L Bk WA EECE [l L
AR®T % % NRETT % %
Project under construction — FEE¥YERTE
services 522,533 84.5 9.8 475,957 86.4 25.9
Management consulting B ARG
services 95,503 15.5 27.6 74,820 13.6 21.5
Total st 618,036 100 12.2 550,777 100 253
2016 2015
Average Average
Nos. of Y/Y  income/ Nos. of Y/Y  income/
projects % project projects % project
yr end RMB'000 yr end RMB’'000
FHBRA TFHRA
HEEH Eilx4 HE AR AR il HH
R % ARBTT HIR % ARBEFTT
Project under construction  FEEYIE R
services 242 14.2% 2,159 212 -1.9% 2,200
Management consulting BT AR
services 210 23.5% 572 170 30.0% 440
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— In addition, management consulting services had a revenue of
RMB95.5 million in 2016, an increase of 27.6% y/y compared to
the same period of 2015.This growth is in line with the historical
trend.

Community living services — 13.0% of the Group's revenue

We first started providing value-added services in 2007 to selected
communities we managed, aiming at providing convenience to our
residents. We since expanded and offered our value added services to
include home living services such as property repair and maintenance,
as well as housekeeping services. The value-added service has lifted
the loyalty level of our customers. In September 2014, on the back of
“Internet+" launched our first version of “Happy Greentown” mobile
application in selected communities under our management, residents
can screen and pre-book various services in their communities. They
may also purchase various products and value-added services on this

— I BB p’ajﬁ&i%uéz)\%/\ﬁﬁ%%s
BB K2015FFELK27.6%
BIEHFBEMBE -

EERK — {E.%LBZ)\B 0%

7N & B 2007 F B A DHFIE
Iiif‘ﬁhﬁlliixﬂﬁ%ﬁg%ﬁﬁ
ENERaE

2 E
BiBIR M
Blany) 2 SR B R RBR
%o BEMBEER - RBORBEGES -5
fRIGIES  RATEFLBHWE - £2014F9 A
5 REESIATEBE+ ] S EETEH
FEEEH L EREMAPP - EEAILUBBTF
I aEEMEENEASERE - REdF

—FeaRBEIEEMINIGERE

platform.
This service line is made up of three sub-service lines: (i) community ERBREH=-EEBER: \BEESDER
products and services; (ii) home living services and (iii) community 7 : (i) KB A£ERSS X (i) llu__n =fE AR o
space services.
2016 2015
Revenue % of Y/Y  Revenue % of Y/Y
RMB’000 total %  RMB’000 total %
WA 1L Eil24 A h4a%E Eil=d
ARET T % % ARETT % %
Community products & [ E AR
services 308,561 63.7 193.8 105,023 37.9 157.0
Home living services KEAEE IR 134,442 27.8 -7.7 145,691 52.6 724
Community space services &[22 [E iR 7% 41,027 8.5 56.2 26,264 9.5 62.2
Total 4Bzt 484,030 100 74.8 276,978 100 95.7
—  Revenue was RMB484.0 million, a rapid growth of 74.8% y/y from — WA A ARMA484.05 & T 820154

2015's RMB276.9 million. This growth rate was much faster than
2016 interim'’s 68.4%, due to: (i) community products and services,
being the largest contributor in the segment, revenue reached
RMB308.6 million, rose by almost two folds 193.8% from 2015's
RMB105.0 million; (i) home living services revenue was RMB134.4
million, a slight decline of 7.7% y/y from 2015's RMB145.7 million;
(iii) community space services revenue was RMB41.1 million,
another strong increase of 56.2% y/y from 2015's a mere of
RMB26.3 million.

ARMB2769B BT HER R =
74.8% » &L 2016 F R AR F I 68.4% 8
ZR-EFFEEAA: (\BEERER
% RRESZANER  WMAZEARKE
308.6 B & T ' [Al 20154 A R #105.0
BETABEENTWRELA &
193.8% : (i) REEERIBWA BARE
1344B BT FE2015F AR 1457
A& BATE77% : (i)E R =R
BRAARBMNIBET A 2015F
AR 263EETT + BFA56.2% °
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Gross profit was RMB210.5 million, a fast increase of 60.1% from
2015’s RMB131.4 million. Gross margin declined from 2015's
47.5% to 2016’s 43.5%. Reasons for the decline were: (i) as this
division has grown in scale, and that we covered more
communities, we have increased the number of staff rapidly. This
led to an increase in costs; and (i) incentives were applied to
encourage staff to promote and sell more of community products
and services.

The reason for the big jump in growth rate of 193.8% y/y was
mainly due to our well-thought out planning and detailed
execution. We enriched our supply with full variety of products
and services, whilst at the other end the expansion in our
customers facilitated our transformation from supplying low value
products but at a high frequency, to the contrary of, where
products, through our research, closely match our customers
needs, and in some cases our exclusive products. This would
enhance the stickiness between our customers and our products
and services. There are over 3,000 products now, including many
seasonal products. Another business division is Greentown
property agency, of which handles sales and purchases, as well as
rental of both brand new properties and second hand properties.
Given the strong property market in most parts last year, this
agency business had a record year where its revenue jumped
80% yly.

Home living services revenue declined in the year, mainly
because we changed our operation strategy in one of the
divisions. We gradually withdrew the operation of hotel
accommodation situated in clubhouses under our management.
This led to a decline in revenue for both hotel, and food and
beverage income, and that in turn contributed to the decline in
the overall revenue. Our focus in 2016 was housing leaseback
activities, consolidating vacant apartments mostly in communities
we manage. This would fuel the growth and expansion in one of
our major development targets: short and long term leasing of
owners apartment to third parties. We actively source these
apartments, renovate them according to our standards, and then
leasing them out.

Community space services revenue is mainly advertising income
in the public space, and to a smaller extent vehicle parking fee.
The fast increase in this business is directly related to the rapid
increase in the number of projects that we manage in the year,
and that contributed to the gross margin as well.
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Cost of sales

This amounted to RMB3,005.9 million, a rise of 25.9% y/y from 2015's
RMB2,387.7 million. The increase was slower than the Group's revenue
27.5% yly increase, and this directly contributed to the expansion in the
Group's gross margin. Main factors for the increase in this item are: (i)
the majority of the Group's security services was outsourced to third
parties in 2H 2015, hence the expense was only recorded for half of the
financial year. Yet it was recorded for the full year in 2016, therefore the
rather large difference was for the purpose of booking the accounts.
The Group experienced a similar large increase in outsourcing costs
due to the timing difference in booking, when we outsourced our
cleaning services in 2H 2014. It then normalised and we expect the
same for the security services outsourcing expense; (i) the tax reform
in China that replaced business tax with value-added tax also brought
cost savings to the Group, as our business tax expense was down by
60.7% y/y. This however is only one-off in nature. One of the major cost
saving initiatives the Group implemented was power reduction, as we
replaced most of the lighting in public area to energy-saving lights.
This brought meaningful cost reduction to the Group, and lent support
to one of the Group's philosophy: that we should adopt and apply
readily available and inexpensive technology in our process of
managing property through enhanced automation. This leads to cost
savings and efficiency improvement.

Administrative expenses

These expenses amounted to RMB274.9 million, an increase of 18.2%
from 2015's RMB232.6 million. The magnitude of increase is still
noticeably below that of the Group’s revenue rate of increase. This is
the result of our management'’s diligent execution of cost control
initiatives. In addition, if we exclude the listing expenses for both years
of 2015 and 2016, the increase was further reduced to 16.3% y/y.
Amongst the total, salary and wages (mainly of the management staff)
only increased by a mere 10.4% y/y, this is again way below that of the
Group's revenue increase. There was also an increase of office
expenses due to the delivery of the Group’s headquarters in 2016. This
is one-off in nature, hence the management is of the view the increase
in expenses is both reasonable and within control.
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Net finance costs

Finance income was RMB5.3 million, more than doubled (140.9% y/y)
from that of 2015's RMB2.2 million. This is because our working capital
for the year had a noticeable increase, and that the Company was
listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange raising a sizeable amount of
proceeds hence bank interest had sharply increased. Also, our finance
costs declined by 24.7% y/y as the Group used the IPO proceeds to
repay bank loans, in accordance with the stipulation in the prospectus
of the Company dated 28 June 2016. This led to a noticeable decline
in finance costs in the year.

Income tax
Our income tax for the year was RMB123.8 million, an increase of 63.8%
y/y from 2015's RMB75.6 million.

A R A TR
FARBBARBARKESIBEST - ALL2015
FARK22BETTIEIN1409% - EREARE
BrELESIEM - N EBBNE BB L
THEETREES - AARITHEERKER
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2016%F 6 A28 A2 R ERFTA - FIAMSKE
SEEAE SEAESXHREE -

FriS®t
FAMSEHAARK1238BE T * B2015F
FEARET75.6 BETIEING63.8%

2016 2015
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBT T ARBTT
Current tax BNEA%ETH
PRC corporate income tax PR RIS 108,199 81,605
Under-provision in respect of prior years BEFERETR 2,178 -
110,377 81,605
Deferred tax EERIE
Origination and reversal of TR EFAR E A K D
temporary differences 5,122 (8,548)
Withholding tax on the profits of REE T BB QTR EEDNH
the Group's PRC subsidiaries 8,302 2,502
13,424 (6,046)
123,801 75,559

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman Islands and British
Virgin Islands (“BVI"), the Group is not subject to any income tax in the
Cayman Islands and the BVI.

The income tax rate applicable to group entities incorporated in Hong
Kong for the income subject to Hong Kong Profits Tax during the
periods is 16.5%. No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax was made for
the twelve months ended 31 December 2016 as the Group did not
earn any income which is subject to Hong Kong Profits Tax.

Individual companies within the Group in the PRC are generally subject
to Corporate Income Tax at 25% on taxable income determined
according to the relevant income tax rules and regulations of the PRC
unless otherwise specified.
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Amongst the subsidiaries of the Group, the respective tax authorities
in Hangzhou and Ningbo of the PRC have approved an income tax rate
of 20% for Hangzhou Greentown Vocational Training School and
Ningbo Greentown Advertisement Company Limited for the year
ended 31 December 2016.

Profit for the year

Profit for the year was RMB294.8 million, an increase of 45.5% y/y from
RMB202.6 million in the same period of 2015. Profit attributable to
equity shareholders of the Company was RMB285.5 million, a rise of
44.3% y/y from 2015's RMB197.8 million. Net margin, defined as profit
attributable to equity shareholders of the Company divided by the
Group's revenue, reached a record high of 7.7%, being 0.9 percentage
points higher than 2015's 6.8%.

Liquidity, reserves and capital structure

The Group achieved strong financial position in the year. Current
assets were RMB2,853.1 million, a strong increase of 107.2% y/y from
2015’s RMB1,376.9. The Group’s cash and cash equivalents reached
RMB2,181.7 million, a strong increase of 161% y/y from 2015's
RMB835.9 million. This is mainly due to the Company’s successful
listing on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong in 2016, excluding
expenses, raising HK$1,472 million, or equivalent to RMB1,265.8
million. Current ratio in the year was 1.83, higher than 2015’s 0.94.

In 2016, the Group’s cash and cash equivalents amounted to
RMB2,181.7 million. This is the result of net cash generated from
operating activites in the year amounting to RMB393.7 million, taking
away the net cash used in investing activities of RMB146.9 million, and
then replenished by the net cash generated from financing activities of
RMB1,056.5 million. The resulting net increase in cash and cash
equivalents for the year was RMB1,303.3 million, and together with the
cash and cash equivalents at end 2015 of RMB835.9 million, this led to
the total of cash and cash equivalents for 2016 at RMB2,181.7 million.
Please refer to P.118-119 of this report “Consolidated Cash Flow
Statement’ for detailed breakdown of each item. Excluding the one-off
IPO proceeds from listing equivalent to RMB1,265.8 million, and the
application of the proceeds to repay borrowings of RMB230 million (not
including the revolving debt of RMB80 million), the cash balance would
be approximately RMB1,145.9 million. This is 37.1% y/y higher, than
2015's RMB835.9 million, or a net increase of RMB310 million.
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In order to enhance our finance internal control, we brought in two
independent consultants in 2016, one being a local industry consultant
and the other one being an international finance reporting expert, to
assist our upgrading of the internal finance reporting system. The goal
is to increase the speed of collecting finance related data initially, but
ultimately to reshape our internal finance reporting system that would
allow various business centres to share and make use of both operating
and finance data effectively and instantly. This would increase the
accuracy of management decision whilst shortening the response time
on any future adjustment at the operation front or even on our
strategic direction. We believe this upgrade might take 2-3 years to
complete, but noticeable progress will start emerge towards the 2H of
2017.

The Group's net assets was RMB1,745.7 million, an increase of 10.7
folds from 2015's RMB148.9 million. This is mainly due to the listing
proceeds that expanded our reserves massively. The Group had no
debt at the end of 2016, compared to 2015's debt-to-net asset ratio of
136%. This is mainly because the Group used IPO proceeds to repay
bank loans as stipulated in the Prospectus.

Since our businesses are entirely within China, the Group's operating
revenue and income is all denominated in RMB in the year. The
Group's only source of foreign currency is the IPO proceeds
successfully raised in 2016, all being in HK dollars. Hence interest
income, in HK dollar terms, arising from this proceeds is the only
foreign currency investment income. In the absence of any major
acquisition that might require foreign currency, the Group does not
intent to repatriate the HK dollars into RMB given the likelihood of
RMB staying at low level in the near future. Therefore, the Group does
not expect any major foreign currency risk, nor intent to engage or
already engaged in any currency hedging financial instrument for the
risks.
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Property, plant and equipment

In the year, this amounted to RMB264.5 million, a sharp rise of 315.8%
from 2015's RMB63.6 million. This is attributed to the fact that the
Group used its internal cash to purchase a new office headquarter in
2014. And delivery was made in 2016. Hence there was also a
corresponding increase in expense for office equipment for the
headquarters. In addition, as the number of our projects under
management increased by 172, or 27% y/y, the Group had to invest in
equipment for managing the projects and office equipment. This is in
the course of normal business environment.

Trade and other receivables

The total amount of trade and other receivables during the year
reached RMB546.7 million, a net increase of RMB126.7 million or a
30.2% y/y increase from 2015's RMB419.9 million. Though the
magnitude of increase seems high, being above the growth rate of the
Group's revenue, yet in terms of percentage of revenue, 2015 and 2016
both remain in a stable range of 14-15% (2015: 14.4%). Similarly, trade
and bills receivables (mainly consists of management fee) still stay in
the range of 8-9% of the Group's revenue. The management is of the
view that both the stable percentage range to the Group’s revenue,
and the large increase in the receipts-in-advance suggests that our
collection policy and execution capability is sound. The management
does not see any need to make adjustment.

Trade and other payables

In the year, this amounted to RMB942.9 million, rose by 11.3% y/y from
2015’s RMB847.4 million. This is attributed to the rise in two deposit
items: (i) deposits required when we put in new bids for property
management contracts, and (i) escrow funds held on behalf of property
agency customers. This increase is directly in relation to the rising
volume in our business hence it's normal and positive.
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IPO proceeds

The Company was successfully listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited on 12 July 2016, issued 777,776,000
new shares, and after deducting underwriting and related expenses,
the net IPO proceeds amounted to HK$1,472 million (equivalent to
RMB1,265.8 million). At the time of this annual report, the unused IPO
proceeds amounted to HK$1,233 million. These unused proceeds will
be applied in accordance with the prospectus of the Company dated
on 28 June 2016, as follows:

—  49% for acquisitions of property management companies and
companies providing value-added services

—  22% for developing and promoting our “smart community”
project and our community products and services

—  19% for loan repayment (already used as specified)
—  10% for working capital and general corporate purpose

Dividend distribution

At the Board meeting held on 23 March 2017, the Board
recommended the payment of a final dividend of HK$0.04 per ordinary
share of the Company. The final dividend will be paid on 16 June, 2017.

The Board is of the view that the Group's operating performance in the
year was remarkable, and through such generated large cash reserve,
and this is in spite of the outstanding bank loan that was already
repaid. At the other end, the Group does not foresee any major capital
requirement on the operating front. The Board always believes in
sharing the positive return with our shareholders from the Group’s
growth through dividend distribution, hence the resolution. The payout
ratio is approximately 35% of after tax profit, being higher than that
was disclosed in the prospectus dated 28 June 2016 in that the payout
ratio will not be less than 25% of after tax profit.
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ACQUISITION AND FUTURE PROSPECTS

As detailed in the use of IPO proceeds in the Prospectus, 38% of the
net proceeds (approximately HK$535.4 million) is earmarked for
acquisition of property management companies, whilst 1%
(approximately HK$155 million) is for value-added service companies.
Since the listing last year, the Group has been actively and diligently
examined and pursued potential opportunities in the market. There
were many opportunities yet the very competitive state of the market
for acquisition has led to, in our view too demanding a valuation.
Monetary consideration aside, the Group’s concern is more on the
quality, the fit for our existing customer profile, and the likely stickiness
of their customers. With the long industry experience, the Group
turned to strategic co-operation, and joint-venture with both property
management companies belonging to State owned enterprises, or
those State owned public utility enterprises or outright with those
private property management companies. All of our partners or their
SoE parent companies possess a vast reserve of property, both being
residential and no-residential in nature, up for management over time.
We formed 10 joint-ventures, or through acquisition, or in the form of
strategic co-operation in 2016. We are confident they would bring in a
steady and large pipeline of property for our property service business.
This is a proven strategy the Group has long carried out, hence its our
intention to continue this into 2017 and beyond.

Into 2017, the Group finds the market has quieted down noticeably on
the acquisition front and valuation for acquiring property management
companies seems to be returning to senses. Undoubtedly this
represents opportunity not to be missed for the Group, and we will
continue our proactive search for the right target. Given the IPO
proceeds earmarked for acquisition remains untapped, and the fact
that our balance sheet is ungeared, we believe the coffes for
acquisition is more than adequately funded to seize the right
opportunity.
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BEMSERE
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INTEREST IN ASSOCIATES, AND JOINT
VENTURES

In the year, the Group incorporated three new associates.

—  Zhejiang Communications Investment Greentown Property
Service Company Limited, formerly known as Zheyuan Property
Management Company Limited. This is an investment that we
issued public announcement in August 2016, in which we owned
40% equity interest in the associates. The counterparty parent
company is Zhejiang Communications Group, a provincial state
owned enterprise.

—  Zhejiang Lvbang Property Services Company Limited, the Group
owns 15% equity interest in this property management associate
focusing the eastern China area.

—  Zhejiang Lansong Supply Chain Management Company Limited.
The Group owns 24% equity interest in this associate, which has
the network to source quality agricultural produces across whole
China, effectively and economically. This in turn would be made
available to our community living services platform, both on and
offline, offering to our owners and residents to choose and
consume.

The Group invested, and formed, 2 amongst many, new joint ventures.

— Sensegain King (Hong Kong) Limited. This is an investment
vehicle, through such the Group indirectly invests in an advanced
US big-data company at end 2016. The latter provides
sophisticated data analysis service that if available to the Group,
it would assist the Group in better capture our owners and
residents daily needs in a systematic way. This could then take
our community living service, both on and offline, to another level
up, from positioning to planning the right products, and in
execution. We would assists their expansion into China as the
opportunity approaches.

—  Xiangtan Chengfa Greentown Property Service Company Limited
with 51% equity interest. This is a property management
operation servicing local government related properties.

In the year, joint venture companies brought in a loss of RMB1 million,

mainly due to the sub-scale operation or operation not yet started in
two joint venture companies in the year.
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Contingent liabilities
As at the end of 2016, the Group had no contingent liabilities.

BUSINESS RISKS

Staff costs and sub-contracting costs increase

Staff costs and sub-contracting costs, where we outsource functions
such as security and cleaning to sub-contractors, represent the single
largest component in our cost of sales. Wage has been generally rising
in most of the regions we operate. In addition, as we increase the
number of communities we manage, our headcount and in turn wages
would rise in tandem. To maintain and improve our profitability, its
paramount for us to control such costs.

We manage such costs through: (a) actively deploy automation
equipment and machinery to efficiently and accurately replace some
basic function of property service, such as common mailboxes for
receiving owners courier delivery, IC card for community entrance; (b)
we set labour productivity targets for the Group and in 2016 the
Group's total number of employees increase, in percentage terms for
both, came way below that of our managed GFAs. These measures
proved to be effective in controlling our costs and we believe this is
only at the beginning stage. There should be more room for costs
control going forward.

Risks in relation to work safety and occurrence of accidents
There are inherent risks of work injury or accidents occurring due to the
nature of property services we perform, for example, when our
employees or employees of our sub-contractors provide repair and
maintenance services to elevators of residential communities we
manage. During the reporting period, we did not experience any work
injury incident or accident in the course of our operations that resulted
in a material and adverse effect on our business, financial position and
results of operations.

We typically require our sub-contractors to maintain accident personal
injury insurance policies. And we also purchase liability insurance such
as general liability, assets and machinery insurances, in the
communities we manage, in order to protect from claims on our staff
and staff employed by our sub-contractors due to their negligent or
careless acts in the course of their duties. More importantly, we
provide regular training on safety, and job related, so as to assist our
staff to follow through the guidelines and standards set for their posts.
This is pre-emptive in nature, and would reduce the risks of claims on
injury or other job related, arising from our staff in performing their
duties.

HAREE
R2016FE » AEBIL KRB ERHARE -

E 0

ETMTERAE LR

BTN BRAIMREMRZEEDBHE)Z
BV ERAF AR — B - MAERFIRS
MR - B TEME LR - I ERMEF
FRGH)/NEEBIEMN BETRANURTER
Bt B ARIGIN - BT MR EMRETT BT
N BPBERERE TR BRAES -

BOKAIEFIREERE @ ZBREABLE
IBHZEN - AWFIEREHAE T — B AR Y
FRTS TR - flanfF s E RIER A EP4E
EAEENEFMAERE  OEBEEFILT
BEEENIEZR - R2016FEENTEST
BMERNESHRENRTERBEEMBE L -
B AR R R AL A MU BRI A - T BB
FERERRRVIZHBE  LWEEBREZKAE
HIEZE ] o

FRIFEZEZRBERINER
REMEXEERGATEEEHTBEREIN - Hl
wmRMNEES D EENEE SRAMEEE
EEE TR B E RREREE - FHE
PRt RS EE S BB ETHEREINER
%o REBLHEPR - RAEELRETLE
BERTATEEHRBINERER - %I
MBI EEBELBNERTNTE -

BA—RERDBERBEIAFTEERRE
RESREMAMEENEERER - HABRRF
RARBEEERBR(MARETR  ME
2 Rl LEHRMNEERD BRE
ENRMZREFTAMIIBENRE -FEEN
EHRMAEZH T EHRRREE R 2 - EL
Bl - ol REREEREFRIIE - U
BLREREEETERREPRIEEENTER
BONEBR R R E AT BB R REF R ©

2016FF#H HZWBRBEBRERAF

35



36

Management Discussion and Analysis

BEE WM oA

FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISKS

The Group conducts substantially its business in China and in
Renminbi. Therefore, the Group is exposed to minimal foreign currency
exchange rate risk. Depreciation or appreciation of the Renminbi and
Hong Kong dollar against foreign currencies can affect the Group's
results. The Group currently does not hedge our foreign exchange risk,
but continuous monitoring on the foreign exchange exposure is carried
out and the management will consider hedging the foreign exchange
exposure if it has material impact to the Group.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

The Group has established its human resources policies and
procedures with a view to deploying the incentives and rewards of the
remuneration system which include a wide range of training and
personal development programmes to its employees. The
remuneration package offered to the staff was in line with the duties
and the prevailing market terms. Discretionary bonuses based on
individual performance will be paid to employees as recognition of and
reward for their contributions. Staff benefits, including pension,
medical coverage, provident funds are also provided to employees of
the Group.

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had 16,691 employees, and the
total staff costs were RMB1,260.9 million.
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Directors and Senior Management

EENSAEERE

DIRECTORS

Executive Directors
Ms. Li Hairong (Z=i§%g), aged 59, was our sole Director from the date
of our incorporation until 26 November 2015 and was re-designated as
our chairman and executive Director on 27 November 2015. From June
1997 to September 1998, Ms. Li held various positions at Greentown
(FMEHESEERAR)

owned subsidiary of Greentown China, incorporated in Cayman Islands

Property Group Co., Ltd. (being the wholly-
and listed on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (stock code:
3900) which engages in the business of property development),
including being its vice general manager, executive vice general
manager and executive general manager. She joined our Group in
October 1998 and has been responsible for the development strategy
and strategic planning of our Group as well as for making decisions for
material operational matters. Ms. Li has been the Chairman of
Greentown Property Management since October 1998, and was also its
general manager from October 1998 to February 2011, where she was
primarily responsible for its overall management and daily operation.
She also served as the executive general manager of Greentown
Holdings from January 2006 to October 2015. She has also been a
Certified Property Manager authorized by the MOHURD since May
2013.

In addition, Ms. Li currently holds directorship in various other
subsidiaries of our Company.

Ms. Li has been a vice president of China Property Management
Association (R EIYEERHE
vice president of the Zhejiang Province Real Estate Industry Association
(I EHEHE) and the head of its Property Management Special
Committee (MEBIEHEXZ B E) since December 2011 and July 2012,
respectively. She was awarded as Person of the Year in the 2009

) since June 2010. She has also been a

Hangzhou Quality of Life and Comfortable Life Reviews Conference
("2009 LN AR RE o EFAETE ) in April 2009. Ms. Li graduated from
the Department of Basic Specialized Training for Party and
Government Officials (2 X & IE # 20 £ 1 F{Z ) of Zhejiang Radio
and Television University (HT/LEE TR AE) in Zhejiang Province, the
PRC in July 1988.
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Directors and Senior Management

EENSAEEE

Mr. Yang Zhangfa (% £3%), aged 45, has been our executive Director
and chief executive officer since 27 November 2015. He is responsible
for the overall business operation and daily management of our Group,
making decisions for material operational matters, participating in
Board decisions and implementing the resolutions of the Board. Mr.
Yang joined our Group in February 2002 and has served in various
positions in Greentown Property Management, including the assistant
to general manager from April 2002 to March 2003, the vice general
manager from March 2003 to February 2008, the executive vice general
manager from February 2008 to January 2009, the executive general
manager from January 2009 to February 2011 and the general manager
from February 2011 to present. He has also been the general manager
of Shanghai Xinhu Greentown Property Services Co., Ltd. (_E/8#T 44k
WY R BBR A A]) since March 2012 and is in charge of its overall
management and daily operation.

In addition, Mr. Yang currently holds directorship in various subsidiaries
of our Company.

Mr. Yang has also been a bidding expert for property management in
Hangzhou (FNTH ¥ 2 BB HBIKIZER) and an expert for assessment
of excellent property management projects in Hangzhou (/N T ¥ %&
BEFEEZFFEXREK 8)since March 2014 and July 2014,
respectively. Mr. Yang has been a Certified Property Manager
authorized by MOHURD since May 2013. He graduated from Zhejiang
University (1 )T KX £) in Hangzhou, the PRC in July 1997 majoring in
real estate development and management, and he graduated from
Hunan University (4@ A22) in Changsha, the PRC in April 2005 through
long distance learning majoring in business administration.
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Directors and Senior Management

EENSAEERE

Mr. Wu Zhihua (R & #), aged 38, has been our executive Director
and chief operating officer since 27 November 2015. He is responsible
for management work relating to the overall operation of our Group as
well as for management of administration and human resources. Before
joining our Group, Mr. Wu worked in Zhejiang Guesthouse Co., Ltd. (4
L E 8 A R A Al from July 2002 to June 2003. Mr. Wu joined our
Group in June 2003 and was subsequently promoted as the executive
vice general manager and the general manager of Zhejiang Lvsheng
Property Management Company Limited (T T&xFH ¥ £ E R HR A R))
from April 2008 to August 2008 and from August 2008 to December
2008, respectively. He also served as the assistant to general manager,
the vice general manager and the vice executive general manager of
Greentown Property Management from January 2009 to February 2011,
from February 2011 to November 2014 and from December 2014 to
present, respectively. Mr. Wu worked as the general manager of
Zhejiang Greentown Hotel Management Company Limited (37T %3k
BIEEIRBR AR from January 2010 to March 2014, and the general
manager of Zhejiang Greentown Property Community Service
Company Limited (/L &x M Y1 3 B = A )& iR IE B R A 7)), one of our
wholly-owned subsidiaries, from February 2013 to September 2013,
respectively, and his primary responsibility in such entities was the
management of daily operations.

In addition, Mr. Wu currently holds directorship in various subsidiaries
of our Company.

Mr. Wu has been the president of the Property Management Association
of Xihu District, Hangzhou (FT/N T AR W £ EE ) since July 2014,
He has been a Certified Property Manager authorized by MOHURD
since May 2013. Mr. Wu graduated from Zhejiang University (#T/IT X&)
in Hangzhou, the PRC in June 2002 with a bachelor’s degree majoring in
tourism management, and obtained his master’s degree of science in
quality management through an external program from The Hong Kong
Polytechnic University (F /&3 T A2 ) in Hong Kong in December 2007.
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Directors and Senior Management

ESENSREEE

Mr. Chen Hao (Bf’%), aged 47, has been our executive Director since
27 November 2015. He joined our Group in May 2015 as a vice general
manager primarily responsible for the management of community
products and services of the Group. He has been a director of
Greentown Property Management since November 2015 and a director
of Twin Cities Network since April 2015. Mr. Chen has served as a
director of Hong Kong Hung Seun International Resources Limited (&
BB EREJRB MR AR, a company primarily engaged in trade of
copper, market research and fund investment, since October 2009. He
has also been the vice chairman of Daye Youse Greentown Property
Development Co., Ltd. (K)A B &4 & i E F 3 B R A 7)) (being
held as to 30% by Greentown China and the remaining 70% by
Independent Third Parties which engages in the business of property
development) since January 2012. Mr. Chen studied in Jiangsu Xinhai
Senior High School (L& #T /&= ) (formerly known as Jiangsu Xinhai
Secondary School (JL&R#7)8H £)) from September 1985 to July 1988.

In addition, Mr. Chen currently holds directorship in various subsidiaries
of our Company.

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Shou Bainian (B ), aged 63, has been our non-executive Director
since November 27, 2015, and is responsible for providing guidance and
supervision regarding the business and operation of our Group. Mr. Shou
became an indirect holder of equity interests in Greentown Property
Management in September 2000. Mr. Shou has more than 15 years’
experience in the property development industry. He worked as the
executive vice chairman and the general manager of Greentown Property
Group Co., Ltd. (£ 3 = i = 5 B B R A 7)) (being the wholly-owned
subsidiary of Greentown China which engages in the business of property
development) from April 1998 to March 2015 and was primarily
responsible for its overall business operation and financial management.
He has been the director of Greentown Holdings since January 2002. He
has also served in various positions in Greentown China, including its
executive vice chairman and chief executive officer from July 2006 to June
2015 and its executive director since July 2006, and is primarily responsible
for its overall business operation and financial management. Mr. Shou was
also qualified as a senior economist (=R 4L 7AMD) in enterprise operation
and management by Zhejiang Province Human Resources and Social
Security Department (H /L& A 71 & R M tL € {RE EE) since December
1996. Mr. Shou graduated from Hangzhou University (1 M K &) in
Zhejiang Province, the PRC with a bachelor’s degree majoring in history in
April 1982.
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Directors and Senior Management

EENSAEERE

Ms. Xia Yibo (E—f), aged 54, has been our non-executive Director
since 27 November 2015, and is responsible for providing guidance
and supervision regarding the business and operation of our Group.
Ms. Xia became an indirect holder of equity interests in Greentown
Property Management in September 2002. Ms. Xia was the chairlady of
Hangzhou Greentown Decorating and Design Co., Ltd. (FT/NAERMEEE
& EF B R A 7)) from September 1996 to August 2002. She has also
been the chairlady of Shanghai Wanley Insurance Broker Co., Ltd. (&
BEMRBIELHBR AT (being held as to 90% by Hangzhou Haotian
Investment Co., Ltd.) since September 2002. Ms. Xia has been serving
as the director of Greentown Holdings since September 2002 and is
now the chairlady of this company. Ms. Xia graduated from the
Department of Chinese of Zhejiang Radio and Television University (4
JLEEEIR KE) in Zhejiang Province, the PRC in August 1985,

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Tian Zaiwei (HH#E3#), aged 68, was appointed as our independent
non-executive Director on June 13, 2016 which has been effective upon
Listing. He is responsible for supervising and providing independent
judgment to our Board. From March 1996 to December 2003, Mr. Tian
worked as the vice administrator of Harbin City Construction and
Comprehensive Development Office (W& f/E M M ZRARE BN A
%), the commander of the Harbin New Residential Area Construction
and Development General Headquarter (/& B & T (£ € %7 & 5 %
& % #2458 8 #0) and the general manager of Harbin Comprehensive
Construction and Development Co., Ltd. (BB ARS FAEEREAR
Al). Mr. Tian has been the general manager of Shuntiantong Real
Estate Development Group Co., Ltd. (JEXBEEMZEEEABR A A)
and the general manager of Beijing Tiangi Real Estate Development
Co., Ltd. Jt R XBUEH EFZE AR A 7)) since December 2003 and the
general manager of Beijing Tianshi Real Estate Development Co., Ltd.
(At R R B 5 Hb 2 B 3 B R 22 Al) since May 2001, and his primary
responsibility in such entities was the management of daily operations.
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Mr. Tian was elected as a member of the 12th session of the National
Committee of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference
(PREARBAHEEHET ZEE2REEEZ8)in February 2013. He
has also been a vice president of China Property Management
Association (FEI¥EEIEHE) since October 2014 and the president
of Helongjiang Chamber of Commerce in Beijing Qt R BEE I ERE)
since March 2007. He was awarded the National May 1 Labor Medal (&
Bl R —&B)4EE) in May 2006. Mr. Tian has been a senior engineer in
Construction Economics authorized by Heilongjiang Provincial
Personnel Department (2 3 )T & A = EZ) since September 1998, a
senior economist in Economics and Management authorized by
Heilongjiang Provincial Personnel Department (B3I 4 AEEE) since
September 1993 and a certified property manager jointly authorized by
Ministry of Personnel of Beijing of the PRC (2 A R HMEIIL R A
% &) and MOHURD since December 2007, Mr. Tian graduated from
Harbin College of Civil Engineering and Architecture (*5E/& 2 T2
B, now known as Harbin Institute of Technology, /a8 /& T ¥ K2
in Harbin, the PRC, with a bachelor’s degree majoring in industrial and
civil architecture in December 1992, and with a master’s degree of
engineering in January 1997.

Mr. Poon Chiu Kwok (&FEE]), aged 55, was appointed as our
independent non-executive Director on June 13, 2016 which has been
effective upon Listing. He holds a master’s degree in international
accounting, a post-graduate diploma in laws, a bachelor’'s degree in
laws and a bachelor’s degree in business studies. He has over 25 years
of experience in regulatory affairs, corporate finance, listed companies
governance and management. He is an executive director, vice
president and company secretary of Huabao International Holdings
Limited, whose shares are listed on the Stock Exchange. He currently
serves as an independent non-executive director of the following
companies listed on the Stock Exchange: AUX International Holdings
Limited, Changan Minsheng APLL Logistics Co., Ltd., Sany Heavy
Equipment International Holdings Company Limited, Sunac China
Holdings Limited, Tonly Electronics Holdings Limited, TUS International
Limited, Yuanda China Holdings Limited and Jinchuan Group
International Resources Co. Ltd. He was also an independent non-
executive director of CSSC Offshore & Marine Engineering (Group)
Company Limited (shares of which are listed on the Stock Exchange
and the Shanghai Stock Exchange) from 31 May 2011 to 8 May 2014
and Ningbo Port Company Limited (shares of which are listed on the
Shanghai Stock Exchange) from 1 April 2008 to 26 May 2014.
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Directors and Senior Management

EENSAEERE

Mr. Poon graduated from City Polytechnic of Hong Kong (now known
as the City University of Hong Kong) with his a bachelor’'s degree
majoring in arts in December 1994 and from the same university with
his Master's degree of Arts in November 1997. He also obtained his
bachelor's degree majoring in law from University of Wolverhampton
in the United Kingdom in October 2004 and a postgraduate diploma in
laws from University of London in December 2010 through long
distance learning, respectively. Mr. Poon has been a fellow member of
The Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators since April
2012. He has been a fellow member of The Hong Kong Institute of
Chartered Secretaries since April 2012 and is currently a member of its
Technical Consultation Panel and Professional Development
Committee. In addition, Mr. Poon has been a fellow of Hong Kong
Securities and Investment Institute since November 2014.

Mr. Wong Ka Yi (EEH), aged 42, was appointed as our independent
non-executive Director on 13 June 2016 which will become effective
upon Listing. He is responsible for supervising and providing
independent judgment to our Board. Mr. Wong currently serves as a
director and responsible officer in Fundatech Capital Limited and he is
a licensed person to conduct type 9 (asset management) regulated
activities under the SFO. He worked as a portfolio manager in HT
Capital Management Limited from May 2004 to April 2013 and Munsun
Asset Management (Asia) Limited from July 2014 to February 2015,
respectively. He was also designated as a chartered financial analyst by
the CFA Institute in September 2004. Mr. Wong graduated from the
University of Hong Kong with a bachelor’s degree majoring in
economics in July 1997.
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Senior Management

For details of Mr. Yang Zhangfa (8 £5%) and Mr. Wu Zhihua (R &),
please refer to the sub-section headed "— Directors — Executive
Directors” in this section.

Ms. Fang Minqing (58 &), aged 46, has been our chief quality officer
since 27 November 2015. She is responsible for management and
control of the quality of our service as well as for management of our
customer relationship. Ms. Fang joined our Group in August 2000,
currently serves as vice general manager of Greentown Property
Management since March 2012 and in charge of its operation
management center. She also worked as the assistant to general
manager of Greentown Property Management from July 2009 to March
2012 and has been the general manager of the Jiangsu Branch of
Greentown Property Management from January 2013 to February 2015.
Ms. Fang currently holds directorship in several subsidiaries of our
Company, including Jiaxing Greentown Property Service Company
Limited (3% B 4% %% ¥ % AR 7 & BR 2 &) since April 2008, Ningbo
Greentown Property Management Company Limited (S )R4x 5k Y15 E
EHMRAA]) since November 2012, Ningbo Greentown Advertisement
Company Limited (Z)& £k E & B PR /A F]) since December 2012 and
Greentown Property Service Group Jiangsu Company Limited (43547
¥R ERBII& AR A F) since July 2015. Ms. Fang graduated from
the Program of Property Management of Zhejiang University of
Technology (AT I L% KX 2) in Zhejiang Province, the PRC in December
2003 through part-time learning.

Mr. Yuan Weidong (R 3), aged 47, has been our chief technology officer
since 27 November 2015. He is responsible for the coordination and
operation of the “smart community” project of our Group. Prior to joining
our Group in November 2014, Mr. Yuan worked in NEC
Telecommunications Co., Ltd. (HE@AAR A A]) from July 1992 to May
2002 as the head of the engineering technology department and the
general manager of eastern China region. He also worked as the executive
vice general manager of Zhejiang Ronghui Communications Equipment
Co., Ltd. ()T B IE 38 (5 8 B PR 2 7)) from May 2002 to May 2014. Mr.
Yuan has been a Senior Engineer in Electronic Information authorized by
Tianjin Municipal Personnel Bureau (X # i A = &) since October 2001.
He graduated from Jilin University (% # X &) in Changchun, the PRC in
July 1992 with a bachelor's degree majoring in electronics and information
systems.
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Mr. Ho, Kenneth Kai Chung ({1 Bk &), aged 571, has been our chief
financial officer since 4 August 2015 and one of our joint company
secretaries since 27 November 2015. He is responsible for finance and
accounting works as well as company secretarial matters of our Group.
Before joining our Group in August 2015, Mr. Ho had worked in various
financial institutions. He worked as a senior analyst of Credit Lyonnais
Securities (Asia) Limited from September 1996 to February 1999 and
served in various positions including the vice president of the Asia &
Pacific area of JP Morgan Chase & Co. from February 1999 to October
2004. He also served in various positions within the HSBC group from
November 2004 to January 2013, including the head of the China
research department of HSBC Markets (Asia) Limited, the head of the
research department of the Beijing representative office of The
Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited, and the equity
sales director of HSBC Markets (Asia) Limited. From January 2014 to
March 2015, he served as the managing director of Munsun Asset
Management (Asia) Limited and was responsible for overseeing its
asset management business. He is a director of Guogin Greentown
(Beijing) Asset Management Co., Ltd. (Bl £33 (It R) EEEEBR A
AIYEEEE), one of our subsidiaries since September 2015.
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In addition, Mr. Ho currently holds or had held directorship in several
listed companies, including those set out below:

Place of listing and

Name of entity Principal Business stock code Position and period of time

46

EEZH

FEER

L R R

B I B R

TK Group (Holdings) Limited

RITEE (FR) BRAF

BBI Life Science Corporation

BBIAmRIEER AR

Tsaker Chemical Group Limited

YEBEEEAERAR

Evershine Group Holdings
Limited

XREBEZERAR AR

Fifth Element Resources Limited

design and fabrication of
plastic injection molds and
the mechanical design and
manufacturing of plastic
components

AR AR REEAR
BRI AR RO RRAT MBS

a provider with comprehensive
portfolio coverage in the life
sciences research product
and service industry in China

ERBELEBHEMETE
R 2T E m KRS

a producer of a number of
fine chemicals that function
as critical dye an pigment
intermediates

EERERHKERTRER
Gofiepiiflaebn

travel agency, advertising
and marketing and mobile
application business

RERE  BEERTSHEE
AR BB e RS 75

a junior mineral exploration
company

Main Board of the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 2283)

B A E AR (AR AD SR + 2283)

Main Board of the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 1035)

B2 AR (B AR HC5% : 1035)

Main Board of the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 1986)

B AR (BRAD 5% - 1986)

Growth Enterprise Market
of the Stock Exchange
(stock code: 8022)

Bt <X PRI S AR (et FU5% - 8022)

formerly listed on the Australian
securities exchange
(stock code: FTH)

an independent
non-executive director
since November 2013

B 20134 11 AMEEE
BYERTES

an independent
non-executive director
since October 2014

B 20144 10 A EIEE
B ERITES

an independent
non-executive director
since March 2015

B 20154 3 ABiET
BYERITEE

an independent
non-executive director
from November 2013 to
March 2014

2013 11 AE2014453 A

EEBUIERTES

an executive director from
February 2015 to January
2017

Fifth Element Resources Limited  #14R T2 EN1E A 7)

Mr. Ho is a Chartered Financial Analyst authorized by the CFA Institute.
Mr. Ho graduated from University of Sydney in Australia with his
bachelor's degree majoring in economics in May 1988 and from
University of New South Wales in Australia with his Master’s degree of
commerce in April 1991.
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Ms. Fan Li (8 3]), aged 40, has been our chief marketing officer since
27 November 2015. She is responsible for the market development of
our Group. Ms. Fan joined our Group in March 2002 and currently serves
as the assistant to general manager of Greentown Property
Management. She has served in various positions in our Group,
including, among others, the vice general manager of Zhejiang
Greentown Real Estate Consulting Company Limited (/LA 5= H EE 74
AR F], formerly known as Zhejiang Greentown Property Consulting
Company Limited (471 4k 30 1 2 7% 30 B R 2 A1), from March 2006 to
December 2014, and she was in charge of the management and
development of real estate consulting projects. She has also served as a
director of Zhejiang Greentown Real Estate Agency Company Limited
(ML FEE E# AR A A]) since January 2015. Prior to joining our
Group, Ms. Fan was the manager of Spring Garden Property Service
Centre (BERIEEWERTEH ) from February 2001 to March 2002. Ms.
Fan has been an Engineer in Construction Engineering authorized by
Zhuji Municipal Personnel Bureau (2™ A% /B) since July 2010 and a
Certified Property Manager authorized by MOHURD since May 2013.
She was elected as an executive director of Hangzhou Municipal Real
Estate Industry Association (F1 /N 1 5 b = % 1 &) in December 2013.
Ms. Fan graduated from Hangzhou University (f1/1 KX 2) in Hangzhou,
the PRC with a bachelor’s degree majoring in science in July 1998.
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Report of Directors
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The Board is pleased to present its report together with the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
(the "Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2016 (the “Reporting
Period”).

GLOBAL OFFERING

The Company carried out the global offering on 28 June 2016,
comprising of 777,776,000 Shares at HK$1.99 per Share. For details of
the relevant use of proceeds, please see the section headed “Use of
Net Proceeds from Listing” below.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is principally engaged in the provision of residential
property management services in the PRC, which include three types
of services: property services, consulting services and community living
services. Analysis of the principal activities of the Group during the year
ended 31 December 2016 is set out in the note 3 to the consolidated
financial statements.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2016 are set
out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on pages 123 to 124 of this annual report.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board recommended the payment of a final dividend of HK$0.04
per ordinary share of the Company for the year ended 31 December
2016. The final dividend is subject to the approval of shareholders of
the Company (the “Shareholders”) at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company to be held on 26 May 2017 (the "AGM") and
will be paid on 16 June 2017 to the Shareholders whose names appear
on the register of members of the Company on é June 2017.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the business of the Group during the year ended 31
December 2016, a description of the principal risks and uncertainties
that the Group may be facing, a discussion on the Group's future
business development and an analysis of the Group’s performance
during the Reporting Period using financial key performance indicators
are contained in the Management Discussion and Analysis on pages 19
to 36 of this Annual Report.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the Group's results, assets and liabilities of the Group for
the last four financial years are set out on page 6-8 of this annual
report. This summary does not form part of the audited consolidated
financial statements.
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USE OF NET PROCEEDS FROM LISTING

The Company was successfully listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange on 12 July 2016 (the “Listing Date"), issuing 777,776,000 new
shares, raising a total of HK$1.472 billion (equivalent to RMB1.2658
billion) net of underwriting costs and related expenses. As at the date
of this annual report, the unutilized proceeds amounted to HK$1.233
billion. As disclosed in the prospectus dated 28 June 2016 of the
Company (the "Prospectus”), the proceeds will be applied to the
following use:

—  49% for acquisitions of property management companies and
companies providing value-added services

—  22% for developing and promoting the “smart community”
project and community products and services

—  19% for loan repayment (already used as specified)

—  10% for working capital and general corporate purpose

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

Major Customers

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group's sales to its five
largest customers accounted for 6.2% (31 December 2015: 9.6%) of the
Group's total revenue and our single largest customer accounted for
4.7% (31 December 2015: 7.7%) of the Group's total revenue.

Major Suppliers

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group's five largest
suppliers accounted for 25.2% (31 December 2015: 17.8%) of the
Group's total purchases and our single largest supplier accounted for
12.0% (31 December 2015: 11.8%) of the Group's total purchases.

During the Reporting Period, none of the Directors or any of their close
associates or any Shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the
Directors, own more than 5% of the number of issued shares of the
Company) had any direct or indirect interest in the Group's five largest
customers and suppliers. Nonetheless, Mr. Shou Bainian, our non-
executive Director and ultimate controlling shareholder, and Mr. Song
Weiping, our ultimate controlling shareholder, were interested in 18.6%
equity interest of Greentown China in aggregate. For the year ended
31 December 2016, income from property management service
provided to Greentown China and its consolidated subsidiaries
amounted to RMB175.6 million, representing approximately 4.7% of
our annual revenue.
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the
Company and the Group during the year ended 31 December 2016 are
set out in note 10 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during the
year are set out in note 24 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the Group
during the Reporting Period ended 31 December 2016 are set out on
page 127 in the consolidated statement of changes in equity.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2016, the Company's reserves available for
distribution, amounted to approximately RMB363,069,000 (as at 31
December 2015: RMB97,576,000).

BANK LOANS AND OTHER BORROWINGS

Particulars of bank loans and other borrowings of the Company and
the Group as at 31 December 2016 are set out in note 19 to the
consolidated financial statements.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the Reporting Period and up to the date of this
annual report are:

Executive Directors:
Ms. Li Hairong (Chairman)
Mr. Yang Zhangfa

Mr. Wu Zhihua

Mr. Chen Hao

Non-executive Directors:
Mr. Shou Bainian
Ms. Xia Yibo

Independent non-executive Directors:

Mr. Tian Zaiwei (appointed as independent
non-executive Director on 12 July 2016)

Mr. Poon Chiu Kwok (appointed as independent
non-executive Director on 12 July 2016)

Mr. Wong Ka Yi (appointed as independent
non-executive Director on 12 July 2016)
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In accordance with article 84 of the articles of association of the
Company (the “Articles of Association”), Ms. Li Hairong, Mr. Chen
Hao and Mr. Shou Bainian shall retire by rotation, and being eligible,
have offered themselves for re-election at the AGM.

Details of the Directors to be re-elected at the AGM are set out in the
circular to the Shareholders dated 25 April 2017.

DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Biographical details of the Directors and senior management of the
Company are set out on pages 37 to 47 of this annual report.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE OF
INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received an annual confirmation of independence
pursuant to rule 3.13 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) from each of the independent
non-executive Directors and the Company considers such Directors to
be independent throughout the year ended 31 December 2016 and
remain so as of the date of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACT AND LETTERS
OF APPOINTMENT

Each of the executive Directors has signed a service contract with the
Company for a term of three years commencing on the Listing Date,
which may be renewable subject to both parties’ agreement.

Each of the non-executive Directors and independent non-executive
Directors has signed an appointment letter with the Company for a
term of three years commencing from the Listing Date, which may be
renewable subject to both parties’ agreement.

None of the Directors has a service contract which is not determinable
by the Group within one year without payment of compensation (other
than statutory compensation).

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Saved as disclosed in this annual report, no Director had a material
interest, either directly or indirectly, in any transaction, arrangement or
contract of significance to the business of the Group to which the
Company, or any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party
during the year ended 31 December 2016 and up to the date of this
annual report.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

Saved as disclosed in this annual report, no contract concerning the
management and administration of the whole or any substantial part of
the business of the Company was entered into or existed during the
Reporting Period.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

A remuneration committee was set up for reviewing the Group’s
emolument policy and structure for all remuneration of the directors
and senior management of the Group, having regard to the Group's
operating results, individual performance of the directors and senior
management and comparable market practices.

Details of the emoluments of the Directors and five highest paid
individuals during the Reporting Period are set out in note 7 and 8 to
the consolidated financial statements.

RETIREMENT AND EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
SCHEME

Details of the retirement and employee benefits scheme of the
Company are set out in note 5(b) to the consolidated financial
statements.

CHANGE OF DIRECTOR’S INFORMATION

On 21 March 2017, Mr. Poon Chiu Kwok was appointed as the
independent non-executive director of Jinchuan Group International
Resources Co. Ltd (a company listed on the Stock Exchange, stock
code: 2362).

Save as disclosed above, the Directors confirmed that no information is
required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITION IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2016, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and the chief executive of the Company in the Shares,
underlying Shares and debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities
and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO") which have been notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part
XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions which they were
taken or deemed to have taken under such provisions of the SFO), or
which were recorded in the register required to be kept pursuant to
section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set
out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules were as follows:

(i) Interests in Shares of the Company:

EERBRSTRAERRAD - HHE
ROREESTHEENEER AR

R2016F12B31H  EFERARTRSTH
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(i) REARXFRMDES :

Approximate
Percentage of

Shareholding in Long/short

Capacity/ Number of the Company position/

Name Nature of Interest Shares (%) Lending pool
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Mr. Shou Bainian Metes'.3 |nterest of a controlled 1,020,000,000 36.72 Long position

ELisEeS e SR corporation e
RIEFLEEE R

Ms. Xia Yibo Notes2.3) Interest of a controlled 1,020,000,000 36.72 Long position

B ki sz 3) corporation e
RIEFLEERE R

Ms. Li Hairong MNotes 49 Interest of a controlled 563,334,000 20.28 Long position

Z g A e s) corporation e
R EE R

Interest of spouse 28,000,000 1.01 Long position

[T A

Mr. Yang Zhangfa Neteé  Beneficial interest 60,000,000 2.16 Long position
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Mr. Wu Zhihua MNete?) Beneficial interest 30,000,000 1.08 Long position
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Notes:

Mr. Shou Bainian holds all issued shares in Lily International Investment
Company Limited (“Lily International Investment”), which holds 39% of the
issued shares in Orchid Garden Investment Company Limited (“Orchid
Garden Investment”).

Ms. Xia Yibo holds all issued shares in Shenalan International Investment
Company Limited (“ShenalLan International Investment”), which holds 21%
of the issued shares in Orchid Garden Investment. Ms. Xia Yibo is the spouse
of Mr. Song Weiping.

Given Osmanthus Garden Investment Company Limited (“Osmanthus
Garden Investment”), Lily International Investment and Shenalan
International Investment are indirectly interested in the Shares through
Orchid Garden Investment, Osmanthus Garden Investment, Lily International
Investment and Shenalan International Investment are deemed to be parties
acting in concert.

As such, Mr. Song Weiping, Mr. Shou Bainian and Ms. Xia Yibo, together
with their respective holding companies (being Osmanthus Garden
Investment, Lily International Investment and Shenalan International
Investment), are all deemed to be interested in the total Shares directly held
by Orchid Garden Investment (being 1,020,000,000 Shares in total).

Ms. Li Hairong holds all issued shares in Lilac International Investment
Company Limited (“Lilac International Investment”). Accordingly, Ms. Li
Hairong is deemed to be interested in the total Shares directly held by Lilac
International Investment (being 563,334,000 Shares in total).

Mr. Ju Jianhua is the spouse of Ms. Li Hairong. Therefore, Ms. Li Hairong is
deemed to be interested in the Shares which Mr. Ju Jianhua is interested in.
Mr. Ju Jianhua is one of the grantees under the Pre-IPO Share Award
Scheme.

Mr. Yang Zhangfa is one of the grantees under the Pre-IPO Share Award
Scheme.

Mr. Wu Zhihua is one of the grantees under the Pre-IPO Share Award
Scheme.
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(i) REEEEAERS

(i) Interests in associated corporations:

Number of  Approximate
Nature of Name of associated issued share percentage of
Name interest corporation capital interest  shareholding
B 81T BARR
=S EEME EEEE AR RAESHE B2 (%)
Mr. Yang Zhangfa Beneficial interest Shenyang Greentown N/A 20.00
Property Services
Company Limited
BEELEE B RS E R AR LA NEm 20.00

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2016, none of the
Directors or the chief executive of the Company had or was deemed to
have any interest or short position in the Shares, underlying Shares or
debentures of the Company or its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO) that was required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part
XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions which they were
taken or deemed to have taken under such provisions of the SFO), or
required to be recorded in the register required to be kept under
Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as otherwise disclosed in this annual report, at no time during the
Reporting Period was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to
any arrangement that would enable the Directors to acquire benefits
by means of acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or
any other body corporate, and none of the Directors or any of their
spouses or children under the age of 18 were granted any right to
subscribe for the equity or debt securities of the Company or any other
body corporate or had exercised any such right.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2016, to the best knowledge of the Directors, the
following persons (not being a Director or chief executive of the
Company) had interests or short positions in the Shares or underlying
Shares which fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions
of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO as recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company pursuant to section 336 of the
SFO:

TERRRRORBBRMDHE
BmRAR

R2016F12A31 8 ARBESMA - T
AL (WIESERARRESTHRAR)RA
NERGSIAEEAR D EERBE(EHFRBE
IRBIVEXVERE 2 M 3D SR A R AR RHE I
EERRARAIRIBGES M EE 5 51)5E 336
BT HFEZ B LA ZERIAR

Approximate
Percentage of

Shareholding in Long/short
Capacity/Nature Number of  the Company position/
Name of Interest Shares (%) Lending pool
HEXDRH  FR %R
] st/ EmtE BROBE KROEI(%) AIHEHHRSG
Orchid Garden Investment (Note D) Beneficial interest 1,020,000,000 36.72 Long position
Enkn LSy
Osmanthus Garden Interest of a controlled 1,020,000,000 36.72 Long position
Investment (Notes 1. 211 - 2) corporation a5}
Ry EEER
Mr. Song Weiping Netes 1. 2/ (i1~ 2) Interest of a controlled 1,020,000,000 36.72 Long position
corporation a5}
Ry EEER
Lily International Interest of a controlled 1,020,000,000 36.72 Long position
Investment (Notes 1. 31 - 3) corporation a5}
Ry EEER
Ms. Yao Huanjing Mot 4 Interest of spouse 1,020,000,000 36.72 Long position
phi s e FoiBiEs e
Shenalan International Interest of a controlled 1,020,000,000 36.72 Long position
Investment (Notes 1.9/ 1 - 5) corporation 55}
Ry EEER
Lilac International Investment Nete 96 Beneficial interest 563,334,000 20.28 Long position
Enkn LSy
Mr. Ju Jianhua MNete?) Interest of spouse 563,334,000 20.28 Long position
et e FoiBtEs i)
Beneficial interest 28,000,000 1.01 Long position
Enkn LSy
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Notes:

Save

Orchid Garden Investment is owned as to 40.0%, 39.0% and 21.0% by Osmanthus
Garden Investment, Lily International Investment and Shenalan International
Investment, respectively.

Given Osmanthus Garden Investment, Lily International Investment and Shenalan
International Investment are indirectly interested in the Shares through Orchid
Garden Investment, Osmanthus Garden Investment, Lily International Investment
and Shenalan International Investment are deemed to be parties acting in concert.

As such, Mr. Song Weiping, Mr. Shou Bainian and Ms. Xia Yibo, together with their
respective holding companies (being Osmanthus Garden Investment, Lily
International Investment and Shenalan International Investment), are all deemed to
be interested in the total Shares directly held by Orchid Garden Investment (being
1,020,000,000 Shares in total).

Osmanthus Garden Investment is wholly-owned by Mr. Song Weiping. Mr. Song
Weiping is deemed to be interested in the Shares held by Osmanthus Garden
Investment for the purpose of Part XV of the SFO. Mr. Song Weiping is the spouse
of Ms. Xia Yibo.

Lily International Investment is wholly-owned by Mr. Shou Bainian. Mr. Shou Bainian
is deemed to be interested in the Shares held by Lily International Investment for
the purpose of Part XV of the SFO.

Ms. Yao Huanjing is the spouse of Mr. Shou Bainian. Therefore, Ms. Yao Huanjing is
deemed to be interested in the Shares which Mr. Shou Bainian is interested in.

Shenalan International Investment is wholly-owned by Ms. Xia Yibo. Ms. Xia Yibo is
deemed to be interested in the Shares held by Shenalan International Investment.
Ms. Xia Yibo is the spouse of Mr. Song Weiping.

Lilac International Investment is wholly-owned by Ms. Li Hairong. Ms. Li Hairong is
deemed to be interested in the Shares held by Lilac International Investment for the
purpose of Part XV of the SFO.

Mr. Ju Jianhua is the spouse of Ms. Li Hairong. Therefore, Mr. Ju Jianhua is deemed
to be interested in the Shares which Ms. Li Hairong is interested in. Mr. Ju Jianhua is
one of the grantees under the Pre-IPO Share Award Scheme.

as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2016, the Directors were

not aware of any persons (who were not Directors or chief executive of
the Company) who had an interest or short position in the Shares or
underlying Shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed
under Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which would be
required, pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO, to be entered in the

register referred to therein.
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EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save as the below Pre-IPO Share Award Scheme, the Company has no
equity-linked agreements that were entered into or subsisted in 2016.

PRE-IPO SHARE AWARD SCHEME

On 1 January 2016, the Company adopted a Pre-IPO share award
scheme (the “Pre-IPO Share Award Scheme”) to grant certain senior
management personnel of the Group (“the Incentive Targets”) to
acquire certain shares of the Company (“the Incentive Shares”) from
Ms. Li Hairong. The Company adopted the Pre-IPO Share Award
Scheme in order to (i) implement our cultural concept that “workers
shall be entitled to his/her own work achievements,” (ii) optimize our
modern enterprise management system, (iii) improve our incentive and
control policies, and (iv) achieve joint development of both personnel
and the Company. Incentive Targets under the Pre-IPO Share Award
Scheme including 56 individuals decided at the discretion of the Board.
Such Incentive Targets comprise directors of functional departments
and management personnel of the Company’s branches and
subsidiaries (professional companies) bearing the rank of standing
deputy general manager or above, including management personnel
who retired after January 1, 2013 bearing such rank. The consideration
for the acquisition is by reference to the valuation of Greentown
Property Service as at 31 December 2015. Lilac International Investment
Company Limited (“Lilac”), a company wholly-owned by Ms. Li
Hairong, transferred an aggregate of 105,000,000 shares of the
Company to the Mass Wisdom Group Limited (“Mass Wisdom"), a
third party trust company, which was appointed as the trustee under
the Pre-IPO Share Award Scheme. The shares would be held by Mass
Wisdom on behalf of the Incentive Targets. The shares awarded under
Pre-IPO Share Award Scheme would vest on the date of the Listing.
The consideration would be payable by the Incentive Targets to Lilac
upon the Listing. If the Listing does not take place on or before 31
December 2016, Mass Wisdom shall transfer these shares of the
Company back to Lilac at nil consideration. During the reporting
period, there was no movement in the Incentive Shares.

% R 2R 15
T B R A BB B AR 9 RN RIS - A A
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On 18 April 2016, written resolutions of the shareholders of the
Company were passed to approve the amendments to the structure to
the Pre-IPO Share Award Scheme. Pursuant to the shareholders’
resolution, Begonia International Investment Company Limited
("Begonia”, a company wholly-owned by Mr. Yang Zhangfa, executive
director of the Company) and Blue-Bay International Investment
Company Limited ("Blue-Bay”, a company wholly-owned by Mr. Wu
Zhihua, executive director of the Company), transferred their
30,000,000 and 15,000,000 shares of the Company back to Lilac. On 18
April 2016, Lilac transferred 45,000,000 shares of the Company to Mass
Wisdom. The 45,000,000 shares became part of the Incentive Shares
and were awarded to Mr. Yang Zhangfa and Mr. Wu Zhihua on 18 April
2016, through the Pre-IPO Share Award Scheme as a continuation of
the original grant by Lilac to Begonia and Blue-Bay. After the transfer,
the total number of Incentive Shares increased from 105,000,000 to
150,000,000.

The Incentive Shares further increased from 150,000,000 shares to
300,000,000 shares, representing 10.8% of the total issued share capital
of the Company after the capitalisation issue completed on 12 July
2016, among which, Mr. Yang Zhangfa and Mr. Wu Zhihua owns
60,000,000 and 30,000,000 shares respectively.

The Shares under the Pre-IPO Share Award Scheme were fully vested
to all 56 participants on 12 July 2016, which was the date of the listing
of the Company, and the lock-up period was released on 11 January
2017.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

During the Reporting Period, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries had purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company'’s
listed securities.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Articles of
Association or the laws of the Cayman Islands that would oblige the
Company to offer new Shares on a pro rata basis to existing
Shareholders.
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POTENTIAL COMPETING BUSINESSES

Greentown Telecommunications

On 15 November 2016, Ms. Li Hairong transferred her 49% interest in
Hangzhou Greentown Information and Technology Company Limited
("Greentown Telecommunications”) to T &REE S RMARMN AR LD
A], an independent third party, such that as at 31 December 2016, is
legally and beneficially owned as to 51% by Mr. Yang Zhangfa, an
executive Director, and 49% by # /LR EEFE B HMRMHBR A A
Greentown Telecommunications is principally engaged in call center
operations and related services, and is a holder of ICP Licenses. Mr.
Yang Zhangfa interest in Greentown Telecommunications and the
business operated by Greentown Telecommunications are subject to a
non-competition undertaking executed by Greentown
Telecommunications, Mr. Yang Zhangfa and Ms. Li Hairong in favour of
our Company on April 29, 2016 (the “Greentown Telecommunications
Non-Competition Undertaking”).

For further details of the potential competing interest of Greentown
Telecommunications and the Greentown Telecommunications Non-
Competition Undertaking, please refer to the Prospectus.

Zhejiang Greentown Century Plaza

As at 31 December 2016, Zhejiang Greentown Century Plaza Property
Management Company Limited ("Zhejiang Greentown Century
Plaza”) is indirectly owned by Greentown Holdings Group Co., Ltd.
("Greentown Holdings"”) (which is indirectly owned by Mr. Song
Weiping, Mr. Shou Bainian and Ms. Xia Yibo as to 40%, 39% and 21%,
respectively) as to 98.75%. Zhejiang Greentown Century Plaza is
engaged in the business of property management, housing and
building facilities maintenance and repair, the provision of gardening
services, cleaning services, home services, renovation services and
parking services. The business operated by Zhejiang Greentown
Century Plaza is subject to a non-competition undertaking executed by
Zhejiang Greentown Century Plaza in favour of our Company on
January 13, 2016 (as supplemented by a confirmation letter dated
March 7, 2016) (the “Century Plaza Non-Competition Undertaking”).

For further details of Zhejiang Greentown Century Plaza and the
Century Plaza Non-Competition Undertaking, please refer to the
Prospectus.
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Excluded Group
The below entities (together, the "Excluded Group”) have limited
competition with the Group, details of which are set out as follows:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

Hangzhou Greentown Air-conditioning Equipment
Maintenance Services Company Limited (“Hangzhou
Greentown Air-conditioning Equipment Maintenance”)

As at 31 December 2016, Hangzhou Greentown Air-conditioning
Equipment Maintenance is wholly-owned by Hangzhou Dangui
Investment Company Limited (“Hangzhou Dangui Investment”)
(which is owned as to 51% by Greentown Holdings and 49% by a
limited partnership controlled by family members of Ms. Li
Hairong). Hangzhou Greentown Air-conditioning Equipment
Maintenance is engaged in the business of the provision of repair
services for air-conditioning systems and equipment as well as
regular maintenance services of air-conditioning systems and
equipment.

Zhejiang Greentown Greenery Engineering Company Limited
("Zhejiang Greentown Greenery Engineering”)

As at 31 December 2016, Zhejiang Greentown Greenery
Engineering is owned as to 45% by Zhejiang Greentown
Landscaping Consulting Co., Ltd. (1T 43k S ER A AB R A F)),
which is in turn wholly-owned by Greentown Property Group Co.,
Ltd. (W EHESBE AR A F]) (which is currently a subsidiary of
Greentown China), 20% by Xu Yaping, 15% by Ningbo Ronghua
Investment LLP (B )REFEREERLE(ERAE)), 10% by Mr.
Zhang Qinghong, 5% by Mr. Chen Fuguo and 5% by Mr. Jin
Yongsen. Zhejiang Greentown Greenery Engineering is engaged
in the business of the provision of greening services including the
provision of landscape planning services to property developers
and municipal authorities in respect of large communal spaces,
as well as carry out relevant landscaping construction works.

Shenyang Yinji Greenery Engineering Company Limited
("Shenyang Yinji Greenery Engineering”)

As at 31 December 2016, Shenyang Yinji Greenery Engineering is
wholly-owned by Hangzhou Dangui Investment. Shenyang Yinji
Greenery Engineering is engaged in the business of the provision
of greening services including the provision of landscape
planning services, as well as carrying out relevant landscaping
construction works.
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(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

Zhejiang Gelingtong Elevator Engineering Company Limited
("Zhejiang Gelingtong Elevator Engineering”)

As at 31 December 2016, Zhejiang Gelingtong Elevator
Engineering is a company established under the laws of the PRC
in September 2005 and owned as to 50% by Hangzhou Dangui
Investment and 50% by Hangzhou Guangri Elevator Engineering
Co., Ltd., an independent third party. Zhejiang Gelingtong
Elevator Engineering is engaged in the business of elevator
repair and maintenance services as well as carrying out actual
repair work. Our Group's property management services relating
to elevators are limited to regular inspection of the normal
operation of elevators and supervision of maintenance and repair
work relating to elevators.

Hangzhou Lvzhen Architectural Decoration Design and
Engineering Company Limited ("Hangzhou Lvzhen
Architectural”)

As at 31 December 2016, Hangzhou Lvzhen Architectural is
wholly-owned by Hangzhou Dangui Investment. Hangzhou
Lvzhen Architectural is engaged in the business of the provision
of all-inclusive and customized renovation services, including
design and renovation work, and architectural design services.

Zhejiang Greentown Housing Services System Company
Limited (“Zhejiang Greentown Housing Services System”)

As at 31 December 2016, Zhejiang Greentown Housing Services
System is a company established under the laws of the PRC in
October 2012 and owned as to 80% by Hangzhou Dangui
Investment and 20% as to Ms. Xie Yanyan (#i##%). Zhejiang
Greentown Housing Services System is engaged in the business
of carrying out interior renovation works and the provision of
interior repair services.

Zhejiang Greentown Jiabo Decoration Engineering
Management Company Limited (“Zhejiang Greentown Jiabo
Decoration”)

As at 31 December 2016, Zhejiang Greentown Jiabo Decoration
is owned as to 40% by Mr. Xiang Jun (IHE), 30% by Mr. Shen
Qiang (7£3%) and 30% by Hangzhou Dangui Investment. Zhejiang
Greentown Jiabo Decoration is engaged in the business of the
provision of interior design services and carrying out such
construction work and the provision of customized luxurious
interior layout services.

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)
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On April 1, 2016, each of the members of the Excluded Group
has executed a non-competition undertaking in favor of our
Company (as subsequently amended on April 30, 2016).

For further details of the Excluded Group, please refer to the
Prospectus.

Saved as disclosed, none of the Directors was engaged or had
interest in any business, apart from the business of our Group,
which competes or is likely to compete, directly or indirectly, with
our business, which would require disclosure under Rule 8.10 of
the Listing Rules.

NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKING

Pursuant to the deed of non-competition undertakings entered into
amongst Mr. Song Weiping, Mr. Shou Bainian, Ms. Xia Yibo,
Osmanthus Garden Investment, Lily International Investment, Shenalan
International Investment and Orchid Garden Investment (the
“Covenantors”) on 13 June 2016 (the “Deed of Non-competition”),
each of the Covenantors has irrevocably and unconditionally
undertaken, jointly and severally, with the Company that he/she/it shall
not, and shall procure that its/his/her associates (other than members
of the Group) shall not directly carry on, engage in, invest in,
participate in, attempt to participate in, render any services to, provide
any financial support to or otherwise be involved in or interested in,
whether alone or jointly with another person and whether directly or
indirectly or on behalf of or to assist or act in concert with any other
person, any business or investment activities in the PRC and Hong
Kong which is the same as, similar to or in competition or likely to be in
competition with the business carried on or contemplated to be carried
on by any member of the Group from time to time.

For details of the Non-competition Undertaking, please refer to the
Prospectus.

The Company has received confirmations from the controlling
Shareholders confirming their compliance with the Non-Competition
Undertaking during the Reporting Period for disclosure in this annual
report.

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the
compliance with the Non-competition Undertaking during the
Reporting Period based on the information and confirmation provided
by or obtained from the controlling Shareholders, and were satisfied
that the controlling Shareholders have duly complied with the Non-
competition Undertaking.
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DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN COMPETING BUSINESS

Save as disclosed in this annual report, as at 31 December 2016, none

of the Directors or their respective associates had engaged in or had

any interest in any business which competes or is likely to compete,

either directly or indirectly, with the businesses of the Group.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The following parties are our connected persons.

1.

Shenyang Yinji Greenery Engineering Company Limited
Shenyang Yinji Greenery Engineering, a company established in
the PRC with limited liability, is principally engaged in the
provision of environmental maintenance, gardening services in
the PRC. Shenyang Yinji Greenery Engineering is wholly-owned
by Hangzhou Dangui Investment, a company established in the
PRC with 51% of its equity interest being held by Greentown
Holdings, and the remaining 49% equity interest being held by
Ningbo Ronghua Investment LLP (R KEREGR X (BR
& %)), which is in turn held as to 80% and 20% by Ms. Ju Yao (#3
#) and Ms. Li Haizhi (£ /& 2) (both family members of Ms. Li
Hairong). Therefore, Shenyang Yinji Greenery Engineering is an
associate of Mr. Song Weiping and Ms. Li Hairong and hence a
connected person of our Company.

Zhejiang Gelingtong Elevator Engineering Company
Limited

Zhejiang Gelingtong Elevator Engineering, a company
established in the PRC with limited liability, is principally engaged
in the provision of elevator maintenance services in the PRC
which is held as to 50% by Hangzhou Dangui Investment,
therefore, it is an associate of Mr. Song Weiping and Ms. Li
Hairong and hence a connected person of our Company.

Hangzhou Greentown Air-conditioning Equipment
Maintenance Services Company Limited

Hangzhou Greentown Air-conditioning Equipment Maintenance,
a company established in the PRC with limited liability, is
principally engaged in the provision of air-conditioning
equipment maintenance services in the PRC, which is wholly-
owned by Hangzhou Dangui Investment, therefore, it is an
associate of Mr. Song Weiping and Ms. Li Hairong and hence a
connected person of our Company.
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4. Zhejiang Greentown Housing Services System Company
Limited
Zhejiang Greentown Housing Services System, a company
established in the PRC with limited liability, is principally engaged
in the provision of renovation, interior design, home repair and
maintenance and related services in the PRC, which is held as to
80% by Hangzhou Dangui Investment, therefore, it is an associate
of Mr. Song Weiping and Ms. Li Hairong and hence a connected
person of our Company.

The Group has entered into a number of continuing connected
transactions with its connected persons in the ordinary and usual
course of business, which are subject to the reporting, annual review
and announcement requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules:

1. Provision of Ancillary Services to the Group
The Group engages ancillary property management services
from certain connected persons in the ordinary course of
business.

(a) Provision of Elevator Maintenance Services by Zhejiang
Gelingtong Elevator Engineering to our Group
We engage the elevator maintenance services of Zhejiang
Gelingtong Elevator Engineering in the ordinary course of
our business.

Description of the Transaction

On June 10, 2016, Zhejiang Gelingtong Elevator
Engineering entered into an elevator maintenance services
framework agreement (the "Elevator Maintenance
Services Framework Agreement”) with our Company,
pursuant to which Zhejiang Gelingtong Elevator
Engineering agreed to provide elevator maintenance
services, including but not limited to conducting annual
inspections, safety maintenance, and providing repair
services to our Group for the properties projects managed
by our Group (“Elevator Maintenance Services”), for a
term commencing from the Listing Date until December 31,
2018.
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Consideration

The fees charged for the Elevator Maintenance Services
provided by Zhejiang Gelingtong Elevator Engineering to
our Group was determined based on (i) cost of raw
materials and wages needed for carrying out the Elevator
Maintenance Services; and (ii) the comparison of the fee
quote provided by Zhejiang Gelingtong Elevator
Engineering to our Group with the fee quotes provided by
other independent third party elevator maintenance
companies engaged by our Group for its other property
management projects. When comparing the fee quotes,
our Group considered factors including the price, scope of
services and the efficiency and ability of the service provider
to perform such services in a timely manner. The Elevator
Maintenance Services Framework Agreement was entered
into on normal commercial terms.

Annual Caps

Our Directors estimate that the maximum annual fee
payable by our Group in relation to the Elevator
Maintenance Services to be provided by Zhejiang
Gelingtong Elevator Engineering under the Elevator
Maintenance Services Framework Agreement for each of
the three years ending December 31, 2018 will not exceed
RMB12,600,000, RMB 14,086,000 and RMB15,748,000,
respectively.

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the fee paid by the
Group for the elevator maintenance services provided by
Zhejiang Gelingtong Elevator Engineering amounted to
RMB12,554,000 and the annual cap for the same period was
RMB12,600,000.
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(b)

Provision of Gardening Services by Shenyang Yinji
Greenery Engineering to our Group

We engage the gardening services of Shenyang Yinji
Greenery Engineering in the ordinary course of our
business.

Description of the Transaction

On June 10, 2016, Shenyang Yinji Greenery Engineering
entered into a gardening services framework agreement
(the "Gardening Services Framework Agreement”) with
our Company, pursuant to which Shenyang Yinji Greenery
Engineering agreed to provide to our Group gardening
services, including but not limited to turfing, watering and
trimming lawns, fertilization and pest removal for property
projects managed by our Group (the "Gardening
Services”), for a term commencing from the Listing Date
until December 31, 2018.

Consideration

The fees charged for the Gardening Services provided by
Shenyang Yinji Greenery Engineering to our Group were
determined based on (i) the total area covered by the
Gardening Services; and (ii) the comparison of the fee
quotes provided by Shenyang Yinji Greenery Engineering
to our Group with the fee quotes provided by other
independent third party contractors providing similar
services engaged by our Group for its other gardening
projects. When comparing the fee quotes, our Group
considered factors including the price, scope of services
and the efficiency and ability of the service provider to
perform such services in a timely manner. The Gardening
Services Framework Agreement was entered into on normal
commercial terms.
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(c)

Annual Caps

Our Directors estimate that the maximum annual fee
payable by our Group in relation to the Gardening Services
to be provided by Shenyang Yinji Greenery Engineering
under the Gardening Services Framework Agreement for
each of the three years ending December 31, 2018 will not
exceed RMB3,295,000, RMB4,563,000 and RMB4,741,000,
respectively.

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the fee paid by the
Group for the gardening services provided by Shenyang
Yinji Greenery Engineering amounted to RMB3,289,000 and
the annual cap for the same period was RMB3,295,000.

Provision of Home Decoration Services by Zhejiang
Greentown Housing Services System to our Group

We engage the renovation, home repair and decoration
services of Zhejiang Greentown Housing Service Systems in
the ordinary course of our business.

Description of the Transaction

On June 10, 2016, Zhejiang Greentown Housing Services
System entered into a home decoration services framework
agreement (the "Home Decoration Services Framework
Agreement”) with our Company, pursuant to which
Zhejiang Greentown Housing Services System agreed to
provide renovation, home repair and decoration services,
including but not limited to revamp of suspended ceilings,
floor laying and wall coating works for the property projects
managed by our Group (“Home Decoration Services”), for
a term commencing on the Listing Date until December 31,
2018.
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Consideration

The fees charged for the Home Decoration Services
provided by Zhejiang Greentown Housing Services System
to our Group were determined based on (i) the nature and
scope of Home Decoration Services needed; and (ii) the
comparison of fee quotes given by other Independent
Third Party service providers through conducting online
searches. Such online searches usually cover three or more
Independent Third Party service providers for price
comparisons. When comparing the fee quotes, our Group
considered factors including the price, scope of services
and the efficiency and ability of the service provider to
perform such services in a timely manner. The Home
Decoration Services Framework Agreement was entered
into on normal commercial terms.

Annual Caps

Our Directors estimate that the maximum annual fee
payable by our Group in relation to the Home Decoration
Services to be provided by Zhejiang Greentown Housing
Services System to our Group under the Home Decoration
Services Framework Agreement for each of the three years
ending 31 December 2018 will not exceed RMB2,583,000,
RMB3,412,000 and RMB3,182,000, respectively. Such fees
mainly comprise (i) renovation fees of newly completed
property projects; and (ii) inspection fees of property
projects.

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the fee paid by the
Group for the home decoration services provided by
Zhejiang Greentown Housing Services System amounted to
RMB217,000 and the annual cap for the same period was
RMB2,583,000.
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(d)

Provision of Air-conditioning Equipment Maintenance
Services by Hangzhou Greentown Air-conditioning
Equipment Maintenance to our Group

We engage the air-conditioning equipment maintenance
services of Hangzhou Greentown Air-conditioning Equipment
Maintenance in the ordinary course of our business.

Transaction Detail

On June 10, 2016, Hangzhou Greentown Air-conditioning
Equipment Maintenance entered into an air-conditioning
equipment maintenance services framework agreement (the
“Air-conditioning Equipment Maintenance Services
Framework Agreement”) with our Company, pursuant to
which Hangzhou Greentown Air-conditioning Equipment
Maintenance agreed to provide air-conditioning equipment
maintenance services, including but not limited to
conducting regular inspections, providing cleaning, repair
and maintenance services for the property projects
managed by our Group (”Air-conditioning Equipment
Maintenance Services”), for a term commencing from the
Listing Date until 31 December 2018.

Consideration

The fees charged for the Air-conditioning Equipment
Maintenance Services provided by Hangzhou Greentown
Air-conditioning Equipment Maintenance to our Group
were determined based on (i) the quantity and type of air-
conditioning equipment covered; and (i) the comparison of
the fee quote provided by Hangzhou Greentown Air-
conditioning Equipment Maintenance to our Group with
the fee quotes provided by Hangzhou Greentown Air-
conditioning Equipment Maintenance to other independent
third party customers for the provision of similar services
and also the fee quotes obtained from other third party
suppliers of our Group which provide similar services. For
the purpose of such fee quote comparison, apart from
comparing the price quoted, our Group also considers
other factors, including the supplier’s efficiency and ability
to provide such services in a timely manner. The Air-
conditioning Equipment Maintenance Services Framework
Agreement was entered into on normal commercial terms.
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Annual Caps

Our Directors estimate that the maximum annual fee
payable by our Group in relation to the Air-conditioning
Equipment Maintenance Services to be provided by
Hangzhou Greentown Air-conditioning Equipment
Maintenance to our Group under the Air-conditioning
Equipment Maintenance Services Framework Agreement
for each of the three years ending 31 December 2018 will
not exceed RMB1,173,000, RMB1,548,000 and
RMB2,043,000, respectively.

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the fee paid by the
Group for the air-conditioning equipment maintenance
services provided by Hangzhou Greentown Air-conditioning
Equipment Maintenance amounted to RMB650,000 and the
annual cap for the same period was RMB1,173,000.

Listing Rules Implications

Since (i) Zhejiang Gelingtong Elevator Engineering; (ii)
Shenyang Yinji Greenery Engineering; (iii) Zhejiang
Greentown Housing Service Systems; and (iv) Hangzhou
Greentown Air-conditioning Equipment Maintenance are
all associates of Ms. Li Hairong and are connected persons,
and the Elevator Maintenance Services, the Gardening
Services, the Home Decoration Services and the Air-
conditioning Equipment Maintenance Services (collectively,
the “Ancillary Services to our Group”) are all ancillary
property management services provided to the Group, the
continuing connected transactions under the Elevator
Maintenance Services Framework Agreement, the
Gardening Services Framework Agreement, the Home
Decoration Services Framework Agreement and the Air-
conditioning Equipment Maintenance Services Framework
Agreement have been aggregated pursuant to Rules
14A.81 and 14A.82 of the Listing Rules for the purpose of
determining our Group's compliance obligations under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The aggregated annual
caps in relation to the Ancillary Services to our Group for
each of the three years ending 31 December 2018 are
RMB19,649,000, RMB23,608,000 and RMB25,713,000,
respectively.
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Since at least one of the applicable percentage ratios (other
than the profits ratio) under the Listing Rules in respect of
the annual caps in relation to the Ancillary Services to the
Group, as aggregated, is expected to be more than 0.1%
but less than 5%, the transactions under each of the
Elevator Maintenance Services Framework Agreement, the
Gardening Services Framework Agreement, the Home
Decoration Services Framework Agreement and the Air-
conditioning Equipment Maintenance Services Framework
Agreement will be subject to the reporting, annual review,
and announcement requirements, but will be exempt from
the circular and independent Shareholders’ approval
requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

For details of the above continuing connected transactions,
please refer to the section headed “Connected
Transactions” in the prospectus of the Company.

The Company adjusts the scope and amount of continuing
connected transactions and the annual caps exempted
from disclosure (where necessary) in accordance with its
internal control procedures. During the Reporting Period,
the Company has followed the pricing policies and
guidelines for each of the continuing connected
transactions disclosed in this annual report when
determining the price and terms of such transactions
conducted. The Directors are of the view that the
Company's internal control procedures are adequate and
effective to ensure that transactions are so conducted.

During the Reporting Period, the independent non-
executive Directors have reviewed the aforesaid continuing
connected transactions and confirmed that the transactions
have been entered into:

() in the ordinary and usual course of business of the
Group;

(i)  on normal commercial terms; and
(i) in accordance with relevant agreements governing

them on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the
interests of the Shareholders as a whole.
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The Company’s auditors were engaged to report on the
Group’s continuing connected transactions in accordance
with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000
(Revised) “Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or
Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and with
reference to Practice Note 740 "Auditor’s Letter on
Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong
Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. The auditors have issued their
letter containing the findings and conclusions in respect of
the continuing connected transactions disclosed above by
the Group in accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing
Rules:

1. nothing has come to their attention that causes the
auditor to believe that the disclosed continuing
connected transactions have not been approved by
the Company'’s board of directors.

2. nothing has come to their attention that causes the
auditor to believe that the disclosed continuing
connected transactions were not entered into, in all
material respects, in accordance with the relevant
agreements governing such transactions.

3. with respect to the aggregate amount of each of the
continuing connected transactions, nothing has come
to their attention that causes the auditor to believe
that the disclosed continuing connected transactions
have exceeded the annual cap as set by the
Company.

A copy of the auditor’s letter on the continuing connected
transactions of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2016 has been provided by the Company to the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange.

The related party transactions as disclosed in Note 28 to
the consolidated financial statements did not constitute as
connected transactions or continuing connected
transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules
and in compliance with the disclosure requirements under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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Save as disclosed in this annual report, during the Reporting
Period, the Company had no connected transactions or
continuing connected transactions which fell to be
disclosed in accordance with the provisions under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules in relation to the disclosure of
connected transactions and continuing connected
transactions.

SIGNIFICANT LEGAL PROCEEDINGS
For the year ended 31 December 2016, the Company was not engaged

in any litigation or arbitration of material importance and no litigation
or claim of material importance is known to the Directors to be
pending or threatening against the Company

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

During the reporting period, the Company maintained liability
insurance for Directors and senior management (being the liability
insurance for Directors and senior management and prospectus liability
insurance) to provide the appropriate coverage for the Directors and
senior management of the Company.

POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS

The material post balance sheet events are disclosed in note 32 to the
consolidated financial statements.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee of the Company (the “Audit Committee”) had,
together with the management and external auditor of the Company
(the "Auditor”), reviewed the accounting principles and policies
adopted by the Group and the consolidated financial statements for
the year ended 31 December 2016.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to maintaining high standards of corporate
governance practices. Information on the corporate governance
practices adopted by the Company is set out in the Corporate
Governance Report on pages 77 to 93 of this annual report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information publicly available to the Company and to the
best knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the Company’s total
issued shares, the prescribed minimum percentage of public float
approved by the Stock Exchange and permitted under the Listing
Rules, was held by the public at all times during the Reporting Period
and as of the date of this annual report.
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AUDITOR B EEm

KPMG was appointed as the Auditor for the year ended 31 December EEFH @M EHBAEZTEAEE 2016512

2016. The accompanying financial statements prepared in accordance  F 31 H [t FE I #Z 8A0 - R F R & 5100 F55

with HKFRSs have been audited by KPMG. FIE BN B %% - ZERmRIEEAH
BHRELEAmS -

KPMG shall retire at the forthcoming annual general meeting and, Z2E5E eI EFAEREEEITHRERSE

being eligible, will offer itself for re-appointment. A resolution for the A& FiE{F W HFAEREKEEEZET -F

re-appointment of KPMG as Auditor will be proposed at the AGM. MEREER e SR Ay R
HRIRERBEFARE LIEZ -

On behalf of the Board AEEED

Li Hairong FE

Chairman gL

Hangzhou, 23 March 2017 M - 20173 238
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The Board is pleased to present the corporate governance report of
the Company for the year ended 31 December 2016.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Group is committed to maintaining high standards of corporate
governance to safeguard the interests of the Shareholders and to
enhance corporate value and accountability. The Company has
adopted the Corporate Governance Code and Corporate Governance
Report (the "CG Code") as set out in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules
as its own code of corporate governance. Save as disclosed in this
annual report, the Company has complied with all applicable code
provisions under the CG Code throughout the Reporting Period. The
Company will continue to review and monitor its corporate governance
practices to ensure compliance with the CG Code.

THE BOARD

Responsibilities

The Board is responsible for the overall leadership of the Group,
oversees the Group's strategic decisions and monitors business and
performance. The Board has delegated the authority and responsibility
for day-to-day management and operation of the Group to the senior
management of the Group. To oversee particular aspects of the
Company's affairs, the Board has established three Board committees
including the Audit Committee, the remuneration committee (the
“"Remuneration Committee”) and the nomination committee (the
“"Nomination Committee”) (together, the "Board Committees”). The
Board has delegated to the Board Committees responsibilities as set
out in their respective terms of reference.

All Directors have carried out duties in good faith and in compliance
with applicable laws and regulations, and have acted in the interests of
the Company and the Shareholders at all times.

The Company has arranged appropriate liability insurance in respect of
legal action against the Directors. The insurance coverage will be
reviewed on an annual basis.
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Board Composition

As at the date of this annual report, the Board comprises four executive
Directors, two non-executive Directors and three independent non-
executive Directors as follows:

Executive Directors:

Ms. Li Hairong (Chairman)
Mr. Yang Zhangfa

Mr. Wu Zhihua

Mr. Chen Hao

Non-executive Directors:
Mr. Shou Bainian
Ms. Xia Yibo

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Mr. Tian Zaiwei

Mr. Poon Chiu Kwok

Mr. Wong Ka Yi

The biographies of the Directors are set out under the section headed
“Directors and Senior Management” of this annual report.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Board has met at all
times the requirements under rules 3.10(1) and 3.10(2) of the Listing
Rules relating to the appointment of at least three independent non-
executive Directors with at least one independent non-executive
Director possessing appropriate professional qualifications or
accounting or related financial management expertise.

The Company has also complied with rule 3.10A of the Listing Rules
relating to the appointment of independent non-executive Directors
representing at least one-third of the Board.

The Company believes that the diversity of Board members will be
immensely beneficial for the enhancement of the Company’s
performance. Therefore, the Company has adopted a Board diversity
policy to ensure that the Company will, when determining the
composition of the Board, consider Board diversity in terms of,
amongst other things, age, cultural and educational background,
professional experience, skills and knowledge. All Board appointments
will be based on merits, and candidates will be considered against
objective criteria, having due regard for the benefits of diversity of the
Board. The Board diversity policy is summarized below:
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ERZMRELER - F2% Falai LT
NEARMEEEREL

The Board attaches great importance to the gender mix: women now
hold 22% of the total directorships, which is in line and higher that the
ratio for most of the listed companies;

The Board includes Directors with diverse backgrounds: executive
Directors have extensive management experience and are in charge of
the principal businesses of the Company; non-executive Directors are
highly experienced in corporate management, hence they are able to
provide effective recommendations on the Company’s operation and
development; independent non-executive Directors have experience
in property management industry, investment, finance, corporate
governance and international market.

As each of the independent non-executive Directors has confirmed his/
her independence pursuant to rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules, the
Company considers all of them to be independent parties.

Save as disclosed in the Directors’ biographies set out in the section
headed "Directors and Senior Management” in this annual report,
none of the Directors have any personal relationship (including
financial, business, family or other material or relevant relationship) with
any other Director and chief executive.

All Directors, including independent non-executive Directors, have
brought a wide spectrum of valuable business experience, knowledge
and professionalism to the Board for its efficient and effective
functioning. Independent non-executive Directors are invited to serve
on the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the
Nomination Committee.

As regards the CG Code provision requiring directors to disclose the
number and nature of offices held in public companies or organisations
and other significant commitments as well as the identity of the public
companies or organisations and the time involved to the issuer,
Directors have agreed to disclose their commitments and any
subsequent change to the Company in a timely manner.
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Induction and Continuous Professional Development

Each newly appointed Director is provided with necessary induction
and information to ensure that he/she has a proper understanding of
the Company’s operations and businesses as well as his/her
responsibilities under relevant statues, laws, rules and regulations. The
Company also arranges regular seminars to provide Directors with
updates on latest development and changes in the Listing Rules and
other relevant legal and regulatory requirements from time to time.
The Directors are also provided with regular updates on the Company’s
performance, position and prospects to enable the Board as a whole
and each Director to discharge their duties.

Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. The
company secretary of the Company has from time to time updated and
provided written training materials relating to the roles, functions and
duties of a Director. During the year ended 31 December 2016, all
Directors participated in appropriate continuous professional
development and provided the Company with their records of training
they received. Directors participated in the training which included
reading regulatory updates, attending seminars or conducting training
sessions and exchanging views.
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Continuous Professional
Development Training
BHESXERE
Reading or attending briefings
and/or seminars and/or conferences
relevant to regulatory and
governance updates

MEIHEREERER
Name of Director BHEEAERNERER =
EEHR BER/HNER
Executive Directors HITESE
Ms. Li Hairong PR+ Yes B
Mr. Yang Zhangfa BEELE YesH
Mr. Wu Zhihua REESE YesH
Mr. Chen Hao BRO&SEAE YesH
Non-Executive Directors FHITES
Mr. Shou Bainian sSHELE Yes &
Ms. Xia Yibo Bt Yes B
Independent Non-Executive Directors BYkHITES
Mr. Tian Zaiwei HEELE Yes &
Mr. Poon Chiu Kwok ERE LA Yes &
Mr. Wong Ka Yi ERHELE Yes B
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Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Under code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of chairman and
chief executive officer should be separate and performed by different
individuals.

The Chairman of the Board and the chief executive officer of the
Company (the “Chief Executive Officer”) are currently two separate
positions held by Ms. Li Hairong and Mr. Yang Zhangfa, respectively,
with clear distinction in responsibilities. The Chairman of the Board is
responsible for providing strategic advice and guidance on the
business development of the Group, while the Chief Executive Officer
is responsible for the day-to-day operations of the Group.

Appointment and Re-election of Directors

Each of the executive Directors has signed a service contract with the
Company for a term of three years commencing from the Listing Date,
which is renewable automatically for successive terms of three years
subject to termination as provided in the service contract.

Each of the non-executive Directors and independent non-executive
Directors has signed an appointment letter with the Company for a
term of three years commencing from the Listing Date, which may be
renewable subject to both parties’ agreement.

None of the Directors has a service contract which is not determinable
by the Group within one year without payment of compensation (other
than statutory compensation).

The procedures and process of appointment, re-election and removal
of Directors are set out in the Articles of Association. The Nomination
Committee is responsible for reviewing the Board composition and
making recommendations to the Board on the appointment or re-
election of Directors and succession planning for Directors.

Board meetings

The Company adopts the practice of holding Board meetings regularly,
at least four times a year, and at approximately quarterly intervals.
Notices of not less than fourteen days are given for all regular Board
meetings to provide all Directors with an opportunity to attend and
include matters in the agenda for a regular meeting.
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For other Board and Board Committee meetings, reasonable notice is
generally given. The agenda and accompanying board papers are
dispatched to the Directors or Board Committee members at least
three days before the meetings to ensure that they have sufficient time
to review the papers and are adequately prepared for the meetings.
When Directors or Board Committee members are unable to attend a
meeting, they will be advised of the matters to be discussed and given
an opportunity to make their views known to the Chairman prior to the
meeting. Minutes of meetings are kept by the joint company
secretaries with copies circulated to all Directors for information and
records.

Minutes of the Board meetings and Board Committee meetings are
recorded in sufficient detail about the matters considered by the Board
and the Board Committees and the decisions reached, including any
concerns raised by the Directors. Draft minutes of each Board meeting
and Board Committee meeting are sent to the Directors for comments
within a reasonable time after the date on which the meeting is held.
Minutes of the Board meetings are open for inspection by Directors.

During the Reporting Period, two board meetings and the attendance
of each Director at these meetings is set out in the table below:

REMEFEREFEREEERAM: - A2
AEHHAEEN  HRBNTERESESR
BELEBESEXM  UELHEBITEZTEY
EXeZ 8RR MM =RATEL - RER
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FREESERZHRLEZA -

EXER e L EReRN R LB ER
BEZGNEESREEMEENEELME
HHVRTE - BREFRINEOMEE SEF
CERNEFTERRETRNTRLBERN
g/ BERERBRTRNAEREAFTEES
EF UHREZEE -EF222NTRLH
NHAKMBEESRER -

RBEHRN EFGERT2REETSE
EREEHFEFTELRNBERENTE

Attended/Eligible
to attend the

Directors Board meeting(s)
2HE
=-3-0/% S0
= EHEEESRH
Executive Directors HITES
Ms. Li Hairong (Chairman) gL (EE) 2/2
Mr. Yang Zhangfa BEERE 2/2
Mr. Wu Zhihua REESLLE 2/2
Mr. Chen Hao BRO& S 2/2
Non-executive Directors FHITES
Mr. Shou Bainian SRFEE 2/2
Ms. Xia Yibo BER&+ 2/2
Independent Non-executive Directors BYKHITES
Mr. Tian Zaiwei MRS E 2/2
Mr. Poon Chiu Kwok R B S A 2/2
Mr. Wong Ka Yi ERHEHAE 2/2

No general meeting was held during the Reporting Period.
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MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its own code of conduct regarding
securities transactions by the Directors and employees (the “Securities
Dealing Code”). The Company had made specific enquiry with all
Directors whether they have complied with the required standard set
out in the Model Code from the Listing Date until 31 December 2016
and all Directors confirmed that they have complied with the Model
Code and the Securities Dealing Code from the Listing Date to 31
December 2016.

Delegation by the Board

The Board reserves for its decision all major matters of the Company,
including: approval and monitoring of all policy matters, overall
strategies and budgets, internal control and risk management systems,
material transactions (in particular those that may involve conflict of
interests), financial information, appointment of Directors and other
significant financial and operational matters. Directors could have
recourse to seek independent professional advice in performing their
duties at the Company's expense and are encouraged to access and to
consult with the Company’s senior management independently.

The daily management, administration and operation of the Group are
delegated to the senior management. The delegated functions and
responsibilities are periodically reviewed by the Board. Approval has to
be obtained from the Board prior to any significant transactions
entered into by the management.

Corporate Governance Function
The Board recognizes that corporate governance should be the
collective responsibility of the Directors which includes:

(@)  to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

(b)  to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management;

(c) to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual applicable to employees and Directors;

(d) to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance and make recommendations to the Board
and report to the Board on matters; and

(e) to review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in the corporate governance report.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises three members, namely Mr. Poon
Chiu Kwok (chairman), Mr. Tian Zaiwei and Mr. Wong Ka Yi, all of them
are independent non-executive Directors.

The principal duties of the Audit Committee include the following:

1. To review the relationship with the Auditor by reference to the
work performed by the Auditor, their fees and terms of
engagement, and make recommendations to the Board on the
appointment, re-appointment and removal of the Auditor;

2. To review the financial statements and reports and consider any
significant or unusual items raised by the Company's staff
responsible for the accounting and financial reporting function,
compliance officer or the Auditor before submission to the
Board;

3. To review the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company's
financial reporting system, internal control system and risk
management system and associated procedures, including the
adequacy of the resources, staff qualifications and experience,
training programmes and budget of the Company’s accounting
and financial reporting function.

The written terms of reference of the Audit Committee are available on
the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

For the period commenced from the Listing Date and ended on 31
December 2016, 2 meetings of the Audit Committee were held to
discuss and consider the following matters:

o Review the interim results of the Company and its subsidiaries as
of 30 June 2016;
J Review the auditor’s report in relation to the audit plan and

strategy of the Group;

o Review the financial reporting system, compliance procedure,
internal control (including the Company’s internal control of
corruption risks and the handling and identification of business
conflict of major shareholders in listed companies), risk
management system and procedures and re-appointment of
external auditor. The Board did not deviate from the
recommendations of the Audit Committee on the selection,
appointment, resignation or dismissal of external auditor.
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Attendance of each Audit Committee member is set out in the table &BHBEZZEeRELEZZSZNEREHENT

below: ol

Attended/Eligible
Directors to attend
BHERE
2= PEH IR
Mr. Poon Chiu Kwok (chairman) ERRBSTAE (EE) 2/2
Mr. Tian Zaiwei HAERLEE 2/2
Mr. Wong Ka Yi ERELE 2/2

Nomination Committee BEEEE

The Nomination Committee currently comprises three members, 22 FZ8eBRm=-&KE4%K  E=ET %L

namely Mr. Wong Ka Yi (chairman), Mr. Tian Zaiwei and Mr. Poon Chiu A (F[F) - AEELEREBERLE - 2305
Kwok, all of them are independent non-executive Directors. BT IESITE S -

The principal duties of the Nomination Committee include the AnNFIELZESemTE/RSHOT ¢
following:

1. toreview the structure, size and composition (including the skills, 1. ZlSFHEESHEE AR LA

knowledge and experience) of the Board at least annually and R(BIEREL - MIB R RBTE) Lt
make recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board AMAEAAARNERMBYESe
to complement the Company’s corporate strategy; ER e B s

2. to identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board 2  ¥@AESEEKRAIETIEEN AL

members and select or make recommendations to the Board on WIBIELEEAT LI ES A
the selection of individuals nominated for directorships; EEeREER

3. to assess the independence of independent non-executive 3, SERB IEMITE BHIB I
Directors;

4. to make recommendations to the Board on the appointment or 4, SEBEEINESHEIUREE(LHE

re-appointment of Directors and the succession planning for TERITRAS ) BITanEseR Y
Directors, in particular the chairman and the chief executive fe= M
officer; and

5. to review the Board diversity policy. 5. EHEZEeRas(lEE -

The Nomination Committee assesses the candidate or incumbent on 122 % 8 &€= - 4% - FELAR ABITE
criteria such as integrity, experience, skill and ability to commit time  F i 2 IS B & 4% ) S5 4@ 5T (i (38 A SR AE
and effort to carry out the duties and responsibilities. The (A -I2EEBerEEERERESESS
recommendations of the Nomination Committee will then be putto kT - IRE4EE et E(ARIEEE NI
the Board for decision. The written terms of reference of the FiRAAQFEUAIHER -

Nomination Committee are available on the websites of the Stock

Exchange and the Company.

2016FF#H HZWBRBEBRERAF
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During the year ended 31 December 2016, no meeting was held by the
Nomination Committee since the shares of the Company only became
listed on the Stock Exchange on 12 July 2016.

A meeting of the Nomination Committee was held on 23 March 2017
to review the structure, composition, size and diversity of the Board
and relevant recommendations were made to the Board, which
included the re-election of retiring Directors.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee comprises three members, namely Mr.
Poon Chiu Kwok (chairman), Mr. Tian Zaiwei and Mr. Wong Ka Yi, all of
them are independent non-executive Directors.

The principal duties of the Remuneration Committee include the
following:

1. to make recommendations to the Board on the Company’s
overall policy and structure for the remuneration of the Directors
and senior management and on the establishment of a formal
and transparent procedure for developing remuneration policy;

2. to review and approve the management’s remuneration
proposals with reference to the corporate goals and objectives
determined by the Board;

3. to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
packages of individual executive Directors and senior
management. These include benefits in kind, pension rights and
compensation payments, including any compensation payable
for loss or termination of their office or appointment;

4, to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of
non-executive Directors;

5. to consider salaries paid by comparable companies, time
commitment and responsibilities and employment conditions
elsewhere in the Group;

6. to review and approve compensation payable to executive
Directors and senior management for any loss or termination of
office or appointment to ensure that it is consistent with
contractual terms and is otherwise fair and not excessive;
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7. to review and approve compensation arrangements relating to
dismissal or removal of Directors for misconduct to ensure that
they are consistent with contractual terms and are otherwise
reasonable and appropriate; and

8. to ensure that no Director or any of his/her associates (as defined
in the Listing Rules) is involved in deciding his/her own
remuneration.

The written terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are
available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

For the period commenced from the Listing Date and ended on 31
December 2016, one meeting of the Remuneration Committee was
held to discuss and consider the following matters:

o Review the remuneration policy of the Company and its
subsidiaries

o Review the remuneration of Directors and propose adjustment to
the Board

Attendance of each Remuneration Committee member is set out in the

7. RERMEREERTRREMAERENE
CEBEFMEROEBER D - UER
AZERHRG OGN B ARERSG
WGER—B ARBETEREEE
3

8. MWREMEFIETMBEARELD
RAMER) MB2EEEMBCHH
B

FENZ B & a B AR 6 B 1OBE X P S AN R )
AR AR -

EFTHBEE2016912 831 BEIRE -
ZECURITIAGHZESTHUTmAS

BATAR :

o EHARQAREME R RZMBOR

ENEEHH YRAEFTSRHARRE

222
=54

BEHFHWEZEEREHEZEEZNERERT

table below: *

Attended/Eligible
Directors to attend
BHERE
S FE R E
Mr. Poon Chiu Kwok (chairman) ERRB A (EE) 1”1
Mr. Tian Zaiwei AEELE i7al
Mr. Wong Ka Vi ERELE 1/1

Remuneration of Directors and Senior Management EEREREERENETH

Details of the remuneration by band of the members of the Board and
senior management of the Company, whose biographies are set out
on pages 37 to 47 of this annual report, for the year ended 31
December 2016 are set out below:

Remuneration band (RMB)

HZE2016F12A3MBIEFE  EFEMRARF
MNEREEBFEZBEHNAFREINE
EEATENMESREFWOT ¢

Number of individual

MEEH(ARE) AH
0-500,000 8
500,001-1,500,000 8

2016FF#H HZWBRBEBRERAF
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ESHARMBRRNVVBHRREML

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR FINANCIAL
REPORTING IN RESPECT OF FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2016 which give
a true and fair view of the affairs of the Company and the Group and of
the Group's results and cash flows.

The management has provided to the Board such explanation and
information as are necessary to enable the Board to carry out an
informed assessment of the Company’s financial statements, which are
put to the Board for approval.

The Directors were not aware of any material uncertainties relating to
events or conditions which may cast significant doubt upon the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern.

The statement by the Auditor regarding their reporting responsibilities
on the consolidated financial statements of the Company is set out in
the Independent Auditor’s Report on page 119 to 122 of this annual
report.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board acknowledges its responsibility to ensure that sound risk
management and internal control system is established and maintained
within the Group, as well as its responsibility to review its effectiveness.
Such system aims at managing and reducing the business risks faced
by the Group to an acceptable extent, but not eliminating the risks of
failure to achieve business objectives. Moreover, it can only provide
reasonable and not absolute assurance against material misstatement,
loss or fraud.

The Board has authorized the Audit Committee to take charge of the
on-going monitoring of the Group's risk management and internal
control system as well as the annual review of its effectiveness. Such
review covers all material control aspects, including financial control,
operation control and compliance control.

Under the Company'’s risk management and internal control structure,
the management is responsible for the design, implementation and
maintenance of the risk management and internal control system,
thereby ensuring, in particular, ()appropriate policies and procedures
are designed and established to safeguard the Group's assets from
misappropriation or disposal; (ii) compliance with relevant laws,
regulations or rules; and (iii)reliable financial and accounting record are
kept properly in accordance with relevant auditing standards and
regulatory reports.
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The key features of the Company's risk management and internal
control structure include: (i) designated departments are responsible
for the implementation and execution of the Company’s risk
management and internal control system and heads of major operating
units or departments are in charge of the management and mitigation
of identified risks; (i) the management ensures appropriate measures
have been taken in relation to significant risks that may affect the
Group's business and operation; and (iii) internal auditor provides
independent confirmation to the Board, Audit Committee and the
management on the effectiveness of risk management and internal
control.

During the Reporting Period, the Company’s main duties on risk
management and internal control include:

o Each of the major operating units and departments carries out
daily risk management activities, which include identification of
significant risks that may affect the Group's results; assessment
and evaluation of identified significant risks based on their
impacts and possibilities; formulating plans for and
implementation of measures, control and emergency response
plans to manage and reduce such risks; and

o The management and finance department monitor and review
the risk management and internal control system on an ongoing
basis and report to the Audit Committee on its status;

o The management regularly follows up and reviews the measures,
control and emergency response plans in place for the identified
significant risks, so as to ensure sufficient attention, monitoring
and response is given to such risks;

o The management regularly reviews the risk management and
internal control system for the purpose of identifying the
deficiencies in procedures and control function, and designs and
implements rectification for such deficiencies;

J The management ensures the normal functioning of the
appropriate procedures and measures, such as making sure there
is no unauthorized use or disposition of assets, controlling capital
expenditure, maintenance of proper accounting record and
ensuring the reliability of financial information for business
operation and public disclosure.

ARmWEREE AR EHIRENE RIS
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Ik FFIN B EAEIE SREC HIRA R -
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ZTIFEA
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The internal audit function monitors the Company’s internal
governance and provides independent confirmation on the adequacy
and effectiveness of the risk management and internal control system.
The chief executives in charge of the internal audit function report
directly to the Audit Committee, submit the internal audit report to the
Audit Committee based on the auditing plan as approved by the
Board, and report the results of internal audit works to all Directors.
During the Reporting Period, the internal audit function performed
analysis and evaluation on the adequacy and effectiveness of the
Company's risk management and internal control system, in particular,
it inspected the documents in relation to risks prepared by operating
units and the management, and interviewed staff members at all levels.
The chief executives in charge of the internal audit function attended
the meeting of the Audit Committee, explained the results of the
internal audit and answered questions raised by the Audit Committee.

The Company has established the inside information policy for fair and
timely dissemination of information to public based on applicable laws
and regulations. The chief executives authorized by the Group to take
charge of the investor relations, corporate matters and financial control
functions are responsible for ensuring and monitoring compliance with
the applicable disclosure procedures for inside information. The
relevant chief executives may access inside information on "as
needed"” basis at any times. Personnel and professionals involved are
reminded to keep inside information confidential until public
disclosure. The Company has other procedures in place to prevent
mishandling of inside information, including prior approval of trading
of the Company’s securities by Directors and the management, regular
notice of lock-up period, restrictions on securities trading of Directors
and staff and code for project identification.

The Company has established arrangements for employees and other
stakeholders to raise concern on suspected misconduct in financial
reporting, internal control or other aspects in confidence. The Audit
Committee carries out regular reviews to ensure appropriate
arrangements are in place for fair and independent investigation and
proper actions for such matters.
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During the Reporting Period, the Audit Committee reviewed the
effectiveness of the Company's risk management and internal control
system. The annual review included: (i) reviewing the report on
implementation of internal control submitted by dedicated
department; (ii) regular discussion with chief executives at the
management level on the effectiveness of the risk management and
internal control and the work of the internal audit function; (iii)
evaluating the scope and quality of the management’s on-going
monitoring of the risk management and internal control system; (iv)
evaluating the effectiveness of the internal audit function so as to
ensure the coordination between the Group, internal and external
auditors, the resources adequacy for the operation of the internal audit
function and its appropriate standing within the Group; and (v)
proposing recommendation to the Board on the scope and quality of
the management’s on-going monitoring of the risk management and
internal control system; (vi) reviewing and discussing the internet
security risks in the use of information technology and the
corresponding safeguard measures.

Based on the above, the Audit Committee was not aware of any
significant issues that would adversely affect the effectiveness and
adequacy of the risk management and internal control system of the
Company.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The remuneration for the audit and non-audit services provided by the
Auditor to the Group during the year ended 31 December 2016 was
approximately as follows:
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Type of Services Amount (RMB)
PR 75 28 Bl SHE(AR¥T)
Annual audit services FEFTRS
Professional audit services on 2016 2016 F R ER T S BB BRI

interim financial report 800,000.00
Professional audit services on 2016 2016 FEM MR BT BEERS

annual financial statements 2,800,000.00
Audit services relating to the listing FEE RS
Professional audit services on 2016 listing report 2016 L EEt HERE 800,000.00
Total @t 4,400,000.00
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Ho, Kenneth Kai Chung (“Mr. Ho"), the joint company secretary of
the Company, is responsible for advising the Board on corporate
governance matters and ensuring that the Board policies and
procedures, as well as the applicable laws, rules and regulations are
followed.

In order to uphold good corporate governance and ensure compliance
with the Listing Rules and applicable Hong Kong laws, the Company
also engages Ms. Ng Sau Mei (“Ms. Ng”), senior manager of KCS
Hong Kong Limited (a company secretarial service provider), as the
other joint company secretary to assist Mr. Ho to discharge his duties
as company secretary of the Company. The primary corporate contact
person at the Company is Mr. Ho.

For the year ended 31 December 2016, Mr. Ho and Ms. Ng have
undertaken not less than 15 hours of relevant professional training
respectively in compliance with rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company considers that effective communication with the
Shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations and
understanding of the Group's business, performance and strategies.
The Company also recognizes the importance of timely and non-
selective disclosure of information, which will enable Shareholders and
investors to make the informed investment decisions.

The annual general meeting of the Company provides opportunity for
the Shareholders to communicate directly with the Directors. The
Chairman of the Company and the chairmen of the Board Committees
of the Company will attend the AGMs to answer Shareholders’
questions. The Auditor will also attend the AGMs to answer questions
about the conduct of the audit, the preparation and content of the
auditor’s report, the accounting policies and auditor independence.

To promote effective communication, the Company adopts a
shareholders’ communication policy which aims at establishing a two-
way relationship and communication between the Company and the
Shareholders and maintains a website of the Company at
www.lvchengfuwu.com, where up-to-date information on the
Company's business operations and developments, financial
information, corporate governance practices and other information are
available for public access.
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

To safeguard Shareholders’ interests and rights, a separate resolution
will be proposed for each issue at general meetings, including the
election of individual Directors.

All resolutions put forward at general meetings will be voted by poll
pursuant to the Listing Rules and poll results will be posted on the
websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange in a timely manner
after each general meeting.

Convening of extraordinary general meeting and putting
forward proposals

Shareholders may put forward proposals for consideration at a general
meeting of the Company according to the Articles of Association. Any
one or more members holding as at date of deposit of the requisition
not less than one-tenth of the paid-up capital of the Company carrying
the right of voting at general meetings of the Company shall at all
times have the right, by written requisition to the Board or any one of
the joint company secretary of the Company, to require an
extraordinary general meeting of the Company to be called by the
Board for the transaction of any business specified in such requisition;
and such meeting shall be held within two months after the deposit of
such requisition. If within 21 days of such deposit the Board fails to
proceed to convene such meeting the requisitionist(s) himself
(themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable
expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the
Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

As regards proposing a person for election as a Director, the
procedures are available on the website of the Company.

Enquiries to the Board

Shareholders who intend to put forward their enquiries about the
Company to the Board could send their enquiries to The investment &
Management Center via email (email address: ir@zjlcwg.com).

CHANGE IN CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

The memorandum of the Company and Articles of Association has
been amended and restated with effect from the Listing Date.
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RI5 - HEREREE

1. SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT 1. BERBAUFEZRNEER
=

MANAGEMENT POLICY OF GREENTOWN

SERVICE

1.1 Environmental Policy of Greentown Service
Greentown Service actively promotes sustainable
development and environmental conservation. Through a
wide range of environmental activities, it works hand in
hand with investors to build a green future. We are
committed to enhancing the green performance of
properties under our management and building an
environmentally friendly city in the future.

1.1.1 Create a green environment

Given that the business activities of Greentown
Service create environmental impact, the Group is
dedicated to minimizing the effect by incorporating
green concepts in its daily operation. Meanwhile, we
encourage stakeholders and the public to protect the
environment and work towards the full integration of
sustainability into the Group's core value.

Create value for the environment protection
Greentown Service has an environmental policy in
place that comprises a set of rules and standards for
its management procedures. The Group requires all
properties under its management to integrate green
concepts into their operation.

1.1
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1.1.2Understanding carbon emission in operation

1.1.2 7 RE S P E £ BB B

Greentown Service is aware that its business
operation leads to the use of various energy sources
and waste emission. In order to enhance management
of the office area, it strives to keep the environment
clean and tidy, thereby establishing a distinguished
corporate image.

Power consumption

Electricity accounts for most of the power
consumption of Greentown Service in the course of
its operation. We use electricity in the office area and
public area of the properties under our management.
Qur operation results in significant power
consumption, which indirectly causes emission of
greenhouse gases, including carbon dioxide.

Water consumption

The business operation of Greentown Service involves
appropriate use of water. We remind our staff to
avoid wastage and encourage effective water
consumption from time to time.

Waste

Greentown Service carries out operation in offices,
hence its waste production is limited. We also
educate our staff to make full use of office resources
and avoid wastage due to excessive use.

Waste gas and sewage emission

In its business operation, the Group does not produce
any waste gas and sewage emission that is harmful to
the environment.
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1.1.3 Commitments of Greentown Service:
o To maintain compliance with all environmental
laws and regulations as a part of corporate
social responsibilities;

o To require all business units to take various
measures for the purpose of mitigating their
environmental impact, which include reducing
resources and energy consumption as well as
cutting waste production and practicing recycle;

° To measure and monitor power and water
consumption and amount of waste generated
by the Group;

o To promote awareness of staff and relevant
parties on environmental protection and
enhancement of resources efficiency through
different projects and programs

1.1.4 Effective use of resources

Greentown Service implements energy-saving
renovation in the underground parking garage of the
properties under its management. We require all of
the regular T8 and T5 daylight tubes used in all
projects to be replaced by LED lights. In the coming
years, Greentown Service will pursue improvement of
energy efficiency of the properties under its
management and adopt new technology for
optimization of energy efficiency in such properties,
so as to enhance their environmental performance.
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In this financial year, Greentown Service has complied with EAPRFE  SHRENEEETE
applicable environmental laws and regulations relating to air and BRI - MK R THEHER - BE
greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into water and land, and NEERZYELNHEREARER -

generation of hazardous and non-hazardous waste.
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2. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY OF 2. BWRBLEELSER
GREENTOWN SERVICE
2.1 Employment Policy of Greentown Service
2.1.1 Employees are an integral part

2.1 #ZWRBWIEBEEE
Q1M EIRBMNEZART D

98

Greentown Service adopts a policy that emphasizes
on diversity and anti-discrimination to build a
professional team. It also offers competitive
remuneration package, a wide range of training
programs and opportunities for career development.
Seeing employees as a part of the Group, we strive to
fulfill their needs.

2.1.2We established the “Staff Caring System”

In order to cater employees’ needs at home and
workplace, Greentown Service established the “Staff
Caring System”. We aim at promoting all-rounded
development of our staff by offering various forms of
material or service support, which enables them to
bring their potential into full play and improve quality
of life.

The “Staff Caring System” of Greentown Service aims
not only at strengthening staff belongingness and
cohesion, but also effectively improving and
enhancing employees’ standards of living. Moreover,
we will pay close attention to understanding the
needs of different employees. Our staff is free to
make suggestions on benefits and express their
needs through the employee union.

We have two types of staff caring activities: (1) care at
home and (2) care at workplace. Pursuant to the
national and local laws and regulations, companies
are required to take care of employees’ needs at
different stages of development. We offer a variety of
benefits to enhance staff's quality of life, including
social insurance, housing provident, single-child
benefits, high temperature allowance, festival benefit,
holiday benefit, lifestyle welfare, staff travel benefit,
group activities benefit and birthday greetings. We
believe the “Staff Caring System” is the most effective
way to put corporate culture into practise and an
integral part of our remuneration and incentive system
as well.
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2.1.3Talent recruitment and retention

Apart from the above staff benefits, Greentown
Service also provides opportunities for staff to pursue
development. With an aim of attracting talent, we will
offer training opportunities at different stages of
development, which include staff education and
training mechanism, staff interview mechanism,
internal job competition and staff deployment.

2.1.4 Remuneration, compensation and dismissal policy

To secure income of employees, Greentown Service
has set up a remuneration management system,
under which it established a pay scale where staff's
remuneration package is organized by bands.

In addition, the Group established a management
mechanism for staff leaving, so as to promote
reasonable mobility of human resources and optimize
workforce structure for better staff quality. The
Company adheres to the principle of “fairness,
openness, justice”, “survival of the fittest” and
“rewarding the diligent and punishing the slothful”
when implementing the management system for staff
leaving. Staff resignation refers to the case where an
employee voluntarily leaves the company and
terminates the employment, whereas persuaded
resignation refers to the case where an employee
resigns as required by the company based on the
performance evaluation (the company decides to
terminate the employment early pursuant to the
codes and relevant laws and regulations such as the
“Labor Law of the People’s Republic of China” and
the “Labor Contract Law of the People’s Republic of
China").
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2.1.5Working hours and leaves 2.1.5 TFRFBEE IR

Greentown Service practices standard working hours,
integrated working hours and flexible working hours
systems. The exact working hours and leaves are
arranged by the Company based on business needs.
Pursuant to the relevant regulations, employees may
have to work overtime when business needs arise or
as required by the Company. Nonetheless, it is not
mandatory for staff to work overtime.

Employees of Greentown Service are entitled to be
paid for on national statutory holidays in accordance
with the prevailing national regulations. In addition,
our staff can take day offs for various purposes, such
as annual leaves, marriage leaves, maternity leaves
and family visitation.

2.1.6 Employee benefit

Greentown Service upholds the operating principle of
"happy working, healthy life”, with an aim of creating
a healthy workplace. We organize appropriate
activities and make plans for the needs of different
employees and their families, so that the employees,
their families and the Company can be benefitted.

° Activities and plans for employees

The Group organises “Warm Heart Action” and
other campaigns for staff members with
different hobbies and interests. We devote
resources to promote employees’ physical and
mental well-being. The Group also holds sports
events and singing competitions regularly for
workers to join freely.
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o Activities and plans for senior family members of
employees
The Group focuses on the needs of the elderly
in employees’ families and draw up plans such
as "Springwide Action”, where employees are
tasked to organize celebration for their families
during Chinese New Year, with a view of
enhancing their belongingness.
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e Activities and plans for children of employees HE T FLmZE e
E
The Group attaches great importance to the REBEHEET 2

development of staff’'s children, hence it
formulates plans including the “Learning Kids
Program” and holds a wide range of activities,
such as admission seminars to help employees
with their kids" education.
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During the Reporting Period, the Group complies with all E[#EHﬂF’Ej AEEFEMBEH
policy in relation to remuneration and dismissal, recruitment F kR - BEREA - TIER
and promotion, working hours, holidays, equal opportunity, 8 R FE#e  Zalt &
diversity, anti-discrimination and other benefits and welfare. I AR LA B L Ath 755 38 T2 A M O BUR
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2.2 Health and Safety
During the Reporting Period, Greentown Service complies
with the policy, laws and regulations in relation to safe
workplace and prevention of occupational hazards.

2.2.1 Employees’ health

Greentown Service promotes the operating model of
“healthy working, happy living”. In order to create a
healthy and safe workplace for its employees, it strives
to comply with the requirements under the applicable
laws. Social responsibility is always a priority to
Greentown Service as it is dedicated to provide a
safe, healthy and comfortable working environment
that serves as an effective platform for the mutual
development of the company and staff.

2.2.2 Staff safety management

Greentown Service has established the staff safety
management protocol, where its staff is regarded as
valuable assets as it upholds the core value of
“sincerity, good faith, attention to detail and
perfection”. Greentown Service aims for the
development of the employees, hence it sets its
primary operational objective as nurturing high-
calibre talents.

In fulfilling social responsibilities, Greentown Service
ensures employees’ safety and protects their legal
rights, so as to enhance the social benefits to which
they are entitled. We focus on matters of attention in
their daily practices and, from the perspective of
safety management, promote employees’ awareness
of self-protection and their capabilities to cope with
unexpected incidents, so that they can protect
themselves in the course of daily operation and
business trips.

102 GREENTOWN SERVICE GROUP CO. LTD. ANNUAL REPORT 2016

22 RERZE
FESHME  SWRB TR AR
T2 TERENMRERBE2H
FMERENBOR MESTHERARE N
B

221 BEIRE

HWREEE [REIE R
LR MEEER BB
TEAENZEX  BFE
BIELaMERmIE
RIE - BWRE—EBEGER
AHgET BHAEEILE
E—EZE - BERFEN
THERE KMEREEET
HAZEBHNRTFS -

222EIREEE
SR ETE TR ERE
RE - EIEH - EE B
& TR Wiz O BEERIE
SIT RETIARREERE
EHBWMRBERAEE THK
REARGFAEMIER M
EEBFEMET  BARIEE
WEZER-

MERE TG NEETRE
BOEEN  ERITHE
BEEMRE  MmEEITHNZ
PUHIREEINGERE
@ RMAHEETARETR
MEIBEHR RR2EEA
B Be8 TMaRR
EEH RSB IRYRE
EMHmEES  IREB TR
1 A TE RO THERF
REBFRE -



Environmental, Social and Governance Report

RIS HEREREE

We have set up a management system for the HPIRTEEIRGIE U IEE
prevention of all types of accidents and implemented HERMELE  RTIERER
the relevant management policy for different FHIETERAEREBEK &
procedures on the following areas, with an aim of BRETLENBELEE -

preventing avoidable occupational hazards.

Photo 3.We host fire drills regularly for  B=.%&{f& A8 T EHHEITHEELR -
our staff.

2.3 Development and Trainings 2.3 BEAEI
2.3.1 Talent nurturing 231 BERFOAL
Greentown Service recognizes the importance of A7 AR 75 B 15 T T 22 B AN g%
continuous learning and development to sustainable BBEMPFHEES - HAW
growth. Our staff is crucial to our development, BEIRAAMNERENEAE
therefore it is our main focus to nurture high-calibre — HBEEFSHMEI B
talents. FEFHNERERZR-
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2.3.2Training objective
Greentown Service believes its primary operational
objective to be nurturing high-calibre talents. In
organizing staff trainings, the Company aims at:

o Enhancing employees’ professional quality,
enriching and extending their knowledge and
skills;

o Enhancing employees’ competency and

competitiveness, so as to promote their career
development;

o Promoting mutual development of staff and the
Company to enhance the core competitiveness
of the Company

2.3.3 Training principles

° Systematic approach: Based on the corporate
culture of Greentown and nurture of professional
quality, the Company organizes standardized
trainings for different levels on business
knowledge, skills and management capability
and aims for staff development and continuous
development of the Company.

o Diversity: The Company designs training
program specific to the ranks and types of
positions, taking into account the diversity of
training content and forms.

o Active participation: Employees should actively
participate in the training events organized by
the Company.

2.3.4Training programs
The Group has a wide range of training programs in
place for employees at different seniority levels, so as
to provide systematic training for various stages of
their career.
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Photo 4. Continual training — Project Green
Lemon

With a focus on new employees, the Group
offers training program that lasts between five
to eight years after recruitment, so that
graduates are able to develop insights into our
corporate culture and management model.
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Photo 5. Core manager training program

The Group provides trainings to project
managers and management and offers different
management courses on a regular basis to
enhance their capabilities at work.
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e Photo 6. Trainings for senior management o  EBER.SREEEEI
Based on the strategic development of the REBRE RN 7 BRE
Company, we take initiatives to build an internal B’ RARRDFRARE
talent pool of general managers of future 4838 B LT MEBA T
subsidiaries. The Group organizes MBA courses - AEBEENT T
in collaboration with Zhejiang Gongshang 7R 2 HE S 2R MBA
University to further strengthen the skills of (IMEBRELT)EHR
candidates of general manager. Such move not WE-TRAAKE
only facilitates the Group's establishment of BEAT HBESIKFE
human resources management, but also helps sEo SN S ES PN
maintain a talent pool for its future NERER  RAEHE
development. SENERETASE

i o

2.4 Labor Standards 24 BERAGE

2.4.1 Prohibiting use of child labor 24NV EITEAET
Greentown Service strictly complies with the laws and AR RTS B S B R B RE T
rules relating to minimum working age and forbids BARBREREMBAD - 1
the employment of persons under the age of 18 in EA+TNABENRTALTEESR
any positions that involve any tasks. BT IENREAL -

2.4.2 Prohibiting use of forced labor 242 P REIME T
Greentown Service safeguards the human rights and A7 AR 75 25 LEAE ] 2 A 58
labor rights of its staff and prohibits any form of AT HEETHARM
forced labor. LBTHER -

During the Reporting Period, Greentown Service maintains EEREE - MR BHFa B @D

compliance with the policy, laws and regulations in relation 1FE T sk as bl 48 THYBCR R ARRE

to prevention of child or forced labor. BIEH ©
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25 HEEERE
251 BEEESE

2.5 Supply Chain Management
2.5.1 Cooperation with suppliers

Greentown Service continues to optimize the supply
chain management for the purpose of reducing
procurement costs and ensuring procurement quality.
Meanwhile, it strives to promote the performance of
the suppliers and contractors in sustainable
development.

Greentown Service has established a procurement
management procedure for centralized procurement.
There are three major types of procedures, including
tendering, online procurement and offline emergency
procurement. We also developed standardized,
centralized, systematic procurement so as to cut
operating costs.

We have a procurement bidding procedure in place
and put in efforts to optimizing the procurement
supervision mechanism, based on which we
standardize and strictly monitor the procurement
process of Greentown Service and take all measures
to protect the interest of the Group.

In selecting suppliers, we obtain quotations and
perform comprehensive assessment on their
reputation, information and previous customers to
arrive at a conclusion on their technical capability, so
as to engage the appropriate suppliers.

2.5.2 Anti-corruption

In order to prevent fraud in the procurement process,
Greentown Service reports any conflict of interest with
bidders and the directors. Meanwhile, we encourage
the reporting of any misconduct concerns through the
reporting mechanism. In addition, the Group has a set
of strict guidelines for the appropriate disciplinary
actions to prevent breach of rules by sub-contractors
or suppliers. The anti-corruption policy of the Group
states that it will not cooperate with any suppliers who
contravene the requirements.
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2.6

2.5.3 Safeguarding human rights and labor rights in
supply chain
Greentown Service complies with the relevant local
laws and has a zero tolerance policy towards child and
forced labor. We require our suppliers to observe the
same rules.

Product Responsibility

The Group consistently focuses on property service and
sees service quality as vital to property management
service. Apart from the traditional property service, we
develop an assurance system for quality control,
environmental management and occupational health and
safety management, while implement 85 management and
"serving with heart” to create a safe, comfortable and
convenient living environment for homeowners.

Greentown Service strives to become a leading property
service provider that has innovative idea, supreme service
quality, large business scale and rigorous system. It plans to
develop into a lifestyle service provider with the highest
value in China. Greentown Service adheres to the operating
principle of “Serving with Heart” to provide warm and
satisfactory service. The Group always provides tailor-made
services with “heart”. It also aims to bring happiness to
residents through people-oriented property services
provided with “care”, so that customers are satisfied and
impressed.

2.6.1 Improve quality of living through service provision
The Group has set up a quality management center
for supervision of quality management in the course
of operation, so at to uphold the highest service
standards. Greentown Service provides order
maintenance service and continuously optimizes the
security service segment, so that it is able to maintain
the quality of security teams and ensure order and
safety in the park. The Group also offers
environmental conservation service to keep the park
clean and green. It also requires all business units to
participate in regular professional trainings and keep
the park clean and beautiful.
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2.6.2 Enhanced “8S"” management system
Greentown Service strives to optimize its internal
management. It is committed to delivering the
highest quality service by establishing the 8S
management system.

° Sort (SEIRI): We separate necessary and
unnecessary items at workplace and effectively
save space by keeping an appropriate amount
of necessary items and disposing of unnecessary
items.

. Set in Order (SETTON): We arrange all
necessary items in the right position and way
based on the frequency of use, and label them
as appropriate so that they can be found within
30 seconds.

. Sweep (SEISO): We maintain, inspect and repair
the workplace, equipment, tools and facilities to
keep them in good condition, thereby ensuring
quality and efficiency.

° Standardize (SETKETSU): We repeatedly
practice the first three rules for establishing a
set of systematic standards to sustain the
achievements of 3S through persistent
initiatives.

. Self-discipline (SHITSUKE): Based on the above
four rules, we encourage staff to develop good
habits with an aim of changing their mindsets
and strengthening their quality.

o Safety: We prevent accidents by safety hazards
management.

° Save: We reduce wastage of human resources,
costs, space, time, inventory and materials.

° Service: Standards, regulations and conformity
are the foundation of service quality and
efficiency enhancement.
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Safety, save and service are the special “Ss” added
on top of the 55 management based on the
development needs of the Group.

2.6.3 Serving with heart
The Group enhances the smooth relationship
between the property service centre and homeowners
through “serving with heart”, which not only
motivates our staff, but also boosts customers
satisfaction.

To create a sense of nobility for homeowners through
hotel class services, we provide “reception service
that makes customers feel like home” to demonstrate
the etiquette and manners, exceptional professional
quality of staff and the service standard of the
Company. In addition, Greentown Service also offers
“unique greetings” to increase interaction with
homeowners and foster communication by showing
more care to them.

2.6.4 Protection of customer privacy
We set up management standards for the information
of owners’ profiles and optimize the content of such
information so that it is categorized for easy access.
We also ensure proper maintenance of material
documents to protect customers’ information.

During the Reporting Period, the operation of Greentown
Service complies with the requirements in relation to
product responsibility, such as customer health and safety,
marketing, labels and protection of privacy.

110 GREENTOWN SERVICE GROUP CO. LTD. ANNUAL REPORT 2016

% & (safety) + & 49 (save)H
R 7 (service) 52 1£ [5S] &
WER T BEEERRETE
g hneEe [S] o

2.6.3 RUBIBLRE
AEEBBREEIBBR
%1 EBEYERG T LEE
THBBRE - AKREN
BEL RIS MEREIRS B TH
TR BERRBEAETW

BTERXTZXEBLUAE
ARG EE R - AR
Rt [ & = 0 58 1) X AR
Bl MEXTRRRFEAEN
BERENMRINBEERS
REEHE AR IR AR ENE o
BN - ARIRARTS IR A [ KIR ]
BR YR AR5 | - B @ hnos
¥IoHENES BEURY
MBBRBR MEIEEE
ZHBL -

2.6 4 REFEFERRL
HARBEXIERERNE
B ZEREREENATY
FEEIEREEENDHARE
BREH AREREEX
HRFTH  KMERER
F&# -

HEHME  AKENELNA
REMBENER  MEATNRE
ML BEHE B%  RE



Environmental, Social and Governance Report

RI5 - HEREREE

2.7 Anti-corruption 27 RES

Anti-corruption policy

Greentown Service conduct business in an honest and
ethical manner. It has established the “"Orders of the
Board”, "Accountability of Safe Management amongst
others, and does not tolerate corruption at any level. In the
event that any employee does not procure from the
designated suppliers or report the types and amount of
supplies in a truthful manner; does not initiate the bidding
process as required; or commits any act that may harm the
interest of the Company, he will be dismissed as penalty. In
case economic loss is incurred, we will pursue those
responsible in accordance with the law.

Reporting

The reporting mechanism of Greentown Service provides
an effective platform for staff to report suspected
misconduct or corruption directly to the relevant
department head. The Company has established an audit
centre and formulated the “Audit System” for direct
handling and investigation of suspected cases of
corruption. If the case stands, Greentown Service will issue
verbal warning, written warning and final warning and
terminate employment under the management system. In
case of economic loss, the Group will seek legal recourse in
accordance with the laws.

Bribery

Greentown Service prohibits its employees from take
advantage of their positions to accept money or other
benefits from customers, suppliers or any parties
conducting business with the Company. In case of violation,
the responsible employee will be dismissed as penalty.

Money laundering

Greentown Service fully complies with the supervision and
reporting regulations of any money transactions in the
course of operation. It forbids its staff from the
unauthorised use of company seal, execution and approval
of external contracts ultra vires, or unauthorised termination
or change of contracts.

During the Reporting Period, the operation of Greentown
Service complies with the policy, laws and regulations in
relation to prevention of bribery, blackmailing, fraud and
anti-money laundering.
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2.8 HERBERKRHK

2.8 Invest in community

As a good corporate citizen, Greentown Service invests in
the community as it makes contribution to the economy
and environment, thereby bringing long-term benefits for
society. The Group provides a variety of services in the park
so that homeowners can enjoy high living quality in their
dream homes. The Group is dedicated to give back to
society, hence it places great emphasis on caring the
community and helping those in needs. Pooling all efforts
from employees and their network, the Group actively
participates and devotes resources to the community.

RBIRBERRIFEREAR - R
R IRE TS E A BB TR A
RRMLER - BRI Rt EH IR
B o AKERE E R R
R SEIEZEmELE BR
BREENSE - REEY ) MR
He EEWRHRLEDETE
MiLE - AREEET —URER
HP®OWHE BE2RTRNE
IRRAEE

2.8.1 Diverse community services 2.8.1 ZHRMANEERHE
With the support of the staff, the Group organizes AEBEEIXFHTABS
various activities to contribute to society. EEEIEME o

o Caring the elderly
Greentown Service consolidates the internal and
external resources from other professional
institutions in society to offer over 100 services
for the elderly living in the park. Such events
include home visits and interactive activities
held from time to time. Our annual “Noodle
Banquet” on Double Ninth Festival has become
a tradition for our elderly friends, meanwhile,
the academy for the elderly, Greentown Senior
College, is being promoted in parks across the

s HERE
RBIRBES T RER
AR Rt EHME R
BNER REERARE
EHRERM 10088
MERERY - T EH
WwHE EFIFD - B
EREHE - AEEE
FEBHERN 5
S| FHERAR
FLRRER - B

country. Currently, there are over 120 schools WELT Ve AR E R E
teaching more than 300 classes on over 40 AEEZREAEEEZHEX

subjects every year.

Photo 8.Greentown Service is dedicated to
encouraging everyone to show care
to the elderly
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Better examination environment for candidates

Greentown Service organizes “Charter to Help
Students” in June and July every year to
encourage homeowners not to make loud
noises, honk the horn of cars and generate
noises from construction so as to provide a
“zero-disturbance” environment. The Group
also forms a "Caring Car Fleet” for
transportation of students and provides cars for
emergency during the examination period.
Moreover, we set up “Caring Supply Points”
that provide water, fruits and snacks for students
and stationery packs, bandages and medicines
for heat-stroke for candidates and parents in
needs.

Swimming course

Greentown Service organizes the “Dolphin
Program” in July and August every year to offer
free swimming courses for children between 3
and 18 who cannot swim. The Group is going to
hold the “Dolphin Program” for the eighth
consecutive year. It is estimated that more than
93,000 participants joined the program.

Photo 9.”Dolphin Program” organized by

Greentown Service
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2.8.2 Community engagement 282 BEAREH
Greentown Service fulfills its responsibility as a GHRBERCEARNE
corporate citizen through different forms of T UARFREERE -
community investment. It has outstanding AR IR T /B FEAE ) K RS AN
achievements in property service and philanthropy RELN:FTESTENS
and will step up its efforts to contribute to society in N BMAOARKRFE—FERA
the coming year. EZBJREME - LSS -
o “Send Green to Mingin” e [—A—F#HE RE—
F#E]
In March, Greentown Service organizes the LR RIER S = A5
annual “Send Green to Mingin” charity event, WI—A—h& RE
where we raise fund for the desert in Mingin — AR EE -
County, Gansu by appealing to homeowners, ZomE) - HEEE B
employees, their families and friends. In the TRERWEBF - mH
Reporting Year, the donation totaled RREYBEDEREN
HK$205,638. EHREFELXBR
205,638 7T °
Photo 10.“Send Green to Mingin” charity B+ & RIS R P [ —
event organized by Greentown AR BE—HRH

Service ] REEE
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. “Happy Rainbow Program” o [EERAIFE]
Through crowdfunding, charity auction and RERISBEBRE &
donation, Greentown Service raises funds and E BEEFABEM
materials for children in mountainous area of WENZFMEREY
Guizhou. During the Reporting Year, the Group BB o ANEB N AR
raised a total of HK$18,540, as well as 742 pieces EFEEEEMENEE
of clothing and 2,366 books. RERYE  HEHRRE

18,5408 Jr © 1K #1742
1% MIEIZE2,3661H ©

Photo 11. “Happy Rainbow Program” organized by Br— 4R RS R Pt [ 248
Greentown Service AL | EHEl
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Independent auditor’s report
to the shareholders of Greentown Service Group Co. Ltd.
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Greentown
Service Group Co. Ltd. (“the Company”) and its subsidiaries (“the
Group”) set out on pages 123 to 240, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2016, the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended and notes to
the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2016 and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and
have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities
for the audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”),
together with any ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of
the consolidated financial statements in the Cayman Islands, and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do
not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
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HARETEE®

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

Revenue recognition — property management services

WATERR — MEEERE

Refer to accounting policy note 1(t) and note 3 to the consolidated financial statements.

A 2RIB A 1(0) BB SR RARE A EIREKMAE3

The Key Audit Matter
BRETEE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

EMNEANAEEZSR

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group generated
total revenue of RMB3,722 million which comprised revenue
from property services, consulting services and community
living services of RMB2,620 million, RMB618 million and
RMB484 million respectively.

BE2016F12A31HILFE - ERENREABARES722
BB ETEEMERBRAARK2620B8ET - AR
BRAAREISAETMEREERBUAARKWB4BE
IT o

Property services, which generally comprise property
management services, are rendered to a large number of
residential property owners in community projects and
significant uncertainty may exist as to whether cash will be
collected from each of these individual residential property
owners for the rendering of property management services
by the Group.

MERBEIZEENEERERS  EEERNERREENAE
EEMEXTIREMEEERG - EREEARE BREHE
ERIEEMEETRER S FEEBRNTEE -

Management is required to exercise significant judgement to
assess whether it is probable that the property owners will
pay the property management fees due so that revenue from
the provision of property management services may be
recognised by the Group in accordance with the
requirements of the prevailing accounting standards.
EREAFHERHE - UFEEEZRERA R
MEEEE UEEEERBERITSFENNERER DX
BIERBYA -

Our audit procedures to assess the recognition of

revenue from the provision of property management

services included the following:
BAAT A ERER R EE R REHEZOBA
METHRIEFEHE

understanding and evaluating the design,
implementation and operating effectiveness of
key internal controls over the Group's revenue
recognition processes for property management
services;

AR AIRT (i B S B Y R B IR RS WATERIRE
B E RS A R B R G - BIEAIRIER R
M

obtaining the property information summary
and (i) selecting a sample of community projects
from the property information summary and
comparing the details therein with the
underlying property management agreements
and invoices raised; and (ii) selecting a sample
of property management agreements and
comparing the relevant details therein with the
property information summary and invoices
raised;

ERYMERERRE  ((EWEEHRBETENE
BIBRERA  YASEFIBEEBEYEEIRHHEN
RRETHEH  RG)ERMEEEBEE
WS HBEEFERYEERNBEMERETY
#
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

HARETEE®

Revenue recognition — property management services (Continued)

WATERR — MXEERE ()

Refer to accounting policy note 1(t) and note 3 to the consolidated financial statements.

A 2RIB A 1) BB SR RARE A IR MAE3

The Key Audit Matter
HREGTER

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BERANETFNAEEZER

This judgement is dependent on the property occupancy
status (which includes whether the property is owner
occupied, leased, under renovation, vacant or the owner
cannot be contacted) which is set out in the property
information summary prepared by the Group. Properties with
different occupancy statuses have historically generated
different average collection rates.

BERAEGRT ESEMRENEERBEME Y ELEBiRRE
(BREVERTRELIER  HE R ZEREEMEE
I) - AETEEBRENMEERENTHRHREEZEF TR -

The property information summary includes details of the
respective community project’s management fee rate,
contracted gross floor area (“GFA") and chargeable GFA.
MEEHREREZERBENEREX  £EEEMAIK
EREHBENFFS -

We identified recognition of revenue from the provision of
property management services as a key audit matter because
revenue is one of the key performance indicators of the
Group and therefore there is an inherent risk of manipulation
of the timing and amount of revenue recognised by
management to meet specific targets or expectations and
because the determination as to whether revenue from
property management services should be recognised or not
may involve significant management judgement.
HPEMEEEREWANERI ABRETEE AR
AREEENBRERERz — ARGTEERERTER
FrE BRI 2 MR ATER SN SRR E A R - 1t
Oh - REEZFERMEEERBBANRER 685 B
EELE R HIE -
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assessing the classification of residential
property occupancy status, as asserted by
management, by inspecting on a sample basis,
utility bills, memorandum records for renovations
and the leasing of the unit, handover status and
other relevant documentation;
MBHEREKEEE REEBTECHE - By
HE - BRRREMEMERE X - ST EEEER
BENTEMEGRMRESE

assessing the estimates and judgements applied
by management relating to the collection rates
associated with each class of property
occupancy status by comparison with historical
collection rates and investigating the reasons
for any significant changes in collection rates in
the current year; and
BREBERREETHR  FEEREREE
W) AR AR RE RO WK R AT (R B B0 (b RN #U T - 3
HAEAFERREEREABCORE K

comparing details of journal entries raised
throughout the year which affected revenue and
which met specific risk-based criteria with
relevant underlying documentation.
BARFEEAZERA - X ARERBRRBARE
B ) SRR ERH F A B RHER AR R ST 1T L o
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INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND
AUDITOR'S REPORT THEREON

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises all the information included in the annual report,
other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the directors for the consolidated
financial statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging their
responsibilities for overseeing the Group's financial reporting process.
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BB ET RSB RRAENEM

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you, as a
body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations or the override of
internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

J Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.
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Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated

financial statements (Continued)

J Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the Group audit. We remain solely responsible
for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.
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Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements (Continued)

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence
and communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence and, where
applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of
the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Lai Chun Man.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

23 March 2017
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and
Other Comprehensive Income

meEaREMEEERAR

for the year ended 31 December 2016 #ZE 2016512 H31 BIEFE
(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) (JAARITAI7R)

2016 2015

2016 F 20154

Note RMB’000 RMB'000

P 5T ARET T AREEFIT

Revenue PN 3(a) 3,721,993 2,918,627
Cost of sales SHER K (3,005,966) (2,387,702)

Gross profit EF 716,027 530,925

Other revenue HAbUg A 4 16,228 20,071
Other net income H i F e 4 3,952 154
Selling and marketing expenses PHE LA EMAY (9,700) (5,690)
Administrative expenses THRYS (274,988) (232,578)
Other operating expenses Hib &M% (34,720) (29.116)
Profit from operations KEFHE 416,799 283,766
Finance income EE WA 5,297 2,185
Finance costs B E R AR (6,964) (9,254)
Netfinancecosts = | L Sa) (.e67) . (7,069)
Share of profits less (losses) of associates 73 B &/~ &) AR (E518) 4,428 1,784

Share of profits less (losses) DihE &R RFER (E18)

of joint ventures (1,018) (266)
Gain on acquisition of an associate WeBB R 2 N R ER 46 -
Loss on disposal of other financial assets WEAMSMEESS I 89)
Profit before taxation 4 A0 75 5 418,588 278,126
Income tax Fri5 % 6 (123,801) (75,559)

Profit for the year FRFE 294,787 202,567

The notes on pages 130 to 240 form part of these financial statements. E130E 240 B M TR L F I I R H) —
aN
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and
Other Comprehensive Income

meEaREMEEERAR

for the year ended 31 December 2016 #ZE 201612 31 BIEFE

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) (JAARITAI7R)

2016 2015
2016 F 20154
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
P 5T ARET T AREEFIT
Attributable to: U AL B -
Equity shareholders of the Company AR EESME 285,540 197,818
Non-controlling interests FEFRRS M 22 9,247 4,749
Profit for the year FRFE 294,787 202,567
Earnings per share sRER
Basic and diluted (RMB) HA K #E(ARE) 9 0.121 0.099
Profit for the year FRFHE 294,787 202,567
Other comprehensive income FAHMZERA
for the year (after tax and (BREREHSEAER)
reclassification adjustments)
Items that may be reclassified B A[fe B D HZE
subsequently to profit or loss: Bz HEE
Exchange differences on translation of:  NEITE Z &
— financial statements of — BREFINE B R R B SRR
overseas subsidiaries FEAZER Z5 42,473 (54)
Other comprehensive income FREMEEBA
fortheyear e LR Sl
Total comprehensive income FEREZEEARA
for the year 337,260 202,513
Attributable to: LR AL -
Equity shareholders of the Company NN AR R 328,013 197,764
Non-controlling interests FEPRRS M £ 9,247 4,749
Total comprehensive income for the year A2 EAEW A 337,260 202,513

The notes on pages 130 to 240 form part of these financial statements. 25 130 & 240
kY N
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e B IR Rk

at 31 December 2016 201612 A 31 H

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

(AARETTIIR)

2016 2015
2016 F 20154
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
P 5T ARET T AREEFIT
Non-current assets FREBEE
Property, plant and equipment M BE NERE 10 264,471 63,610
Interest in associates B2 N R RERS 11 32,443 11,946
Interest in joint ventures BENRER 12 94,266 3,104
Deferred tax assets RIETRIBE &= 22(b) 50,704 55,826
Prepayments TEfTFRIE 13 27,759 130,525
469,643 265,011
Current assets REEE
Other financial assets HEtorEE 14 = 28,200
Inventories FE 15 10,064 2,045
Trade and other receivables B 5 kHE MW FIE 16 546,666 419,952
Restricted bank balances ZRRFIIRTTAE B 17 114,654 90,780
Cash and cash equivalents BENBEEEY 18 2,181,692 835,897
2,853,076 1,376,874
Current liabilities REAEE
Bank loans RITER 19 - 180,000
Receipts-in-advance TEWGRIE 20 473,220 338,246
Trade and other payables B 5 NEMRERFE 21 942,949 847,430
Current taxation BEARR I8 22(a) 118,461 88,495
Provisions B 23 19,890 18,094
1,554,520 1,472,265
Net current assets/(liabilities) RBEE (AE)FH 1,298,556 (95,391)
The notes on pages 130 to 240 form part of these financial statements. F130E 240 E MM R Z S B mTN —
B e
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e B IR Ak

at 31 December 2016 7201612 A 31 H
(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) (JAARITAI7R)

2016 2015

2016 F 20154

Note RMB’000 RMB'000

s ARET T AREEFIT

Total assets less current liabilities BEERARBERS 1,768,199 169,620
Non-current liabilities kRBERE

Deferred tax liabilities FEIERIAEE 22(b) 10,804 2,502

Provisions P 23 11,659 18,241

22,463 20,743

NET ASSETS EEFSE 1,745,736 148,877
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BEXR#E

Share capital [N 24(c) 24 8

Reserves e 1,718,974 132,062

Total equity attributable to equity AR ERRREGEES

shareholders of the Company 1,718,998 132,070

Non-controlling interests JEIERRAER 26,738 16,807

TOTAL EQUITY RS 1,745,736 148,877

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 23 R 2017F3 23 BEES S E R ETIE -
March 2017.

Li Hairong Wu Zhihua
g REE
Director Director
EE EF

130 E 240 ENMIEBAZ FEM BRI A —

7 e

The notes on pages 130 to 240 form part of these financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

mEEm2EBR

for the year ended 31 December 2016 #ZE 2016512 H31 BIEFE
(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) (JAARITAI7R)

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company
ANTRERREL

The People's
Republic
of China
(the "PRC") Non-
Share Share  statutory Other Special  Exchange  Retained controlling Total
capital  premium reserve reserve reserve reserve profits Total interests equity
TEAR
£78
(A
Bk BBEE  EEBE  RMBE  REBE  EXER  REWR A FEREE L
Note RMB000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000
M ARMTn ARETT ARBTT  ARETR  ARETR  ARETrT  ARETR  ARBTR  ARETR  ARETR

Balance at 1 January 2015 1551818288 50,000 - 25000 1638 - - 130038 2068% 10568 27,284
Changes in eqity for 2015; N55EREE:
Profitfor the year ERFE - - - - - - 197818 197818 4789 202567
Other comprehensive income Ap2ERA - - - - - (54 - 54 - (5
Total comprehensive income SEANA - - - - - (54) 197818 197764 4749 02513
Capital contribution HE - - - - - - - - 5 %
Issue of shares Bk () 8 - - - - - - 8 - 8
Partal isposal of equity interests FALENBLIRAER

in subsidiaries - - - - - - - - 675 675
Dividends declared during the year ~~ ERETRRS 2p) - - - - - - (23000 (230000) - (230000)
Acquisition of subsidiaries KENEBAR - - - - - - - - 745 745
Contribution from shareholders HBATRELE

of asubsidlary (o)) - - - - 7,602 - - 7602 - 7,602
Transfer to reserves SETEE - - 20 - - - (280) - - -
Avising on reorganisation BHMETE el (50000 - - - - - - (30,000) - (30,000)
Balance at 31 December R2015512A31AR

2015 and 1 January 2016 01651518268 8 - 25,280 1,658 7,602 (54) 97,576 132,070 16,807 148,877
Changes in equity for 2016: WeFRERT:
Profitfor the year ERFIE - - - - - - 285,540 285,540 9,247 294,787
Other comprehensive income Ap2ERA - - - - - 42473 - 42473 - 42473
Total comprehensive income 2EBHA - - - - - 2413 28550 328013 9247 337,260
Issue of ordinary shares upon inital public RENAFEERETLAER

offering, net of issuing cost AR (el 7 1,265833 - - - - - 1,265,840 - 1,265,840
Capitalisation issue EREG 24()i) 9 ) - - - - - - - -
Arsing on share of reserve of an associate BB EBEAIBEEL - - - 95 - - - 95 - 95
Partal isposal of equity interests HAremBLaR ER

in subsidlaries 25(0) - - - (484) - - - (484) 684 200
Deemed distrbution to equity BiAHBATRERRAR

shareholders of a subsidiary () - - - - (6,536) - - (6,536) - (6,536)
Transfer to reserves ERTRHE 24(d)i) - - 20,047 - - - (20,047) - - -
Balance at 31 December 2016 Ro16E12A31 Bzt 24 1,05824 45327 1,269 1,066 0249 363069 1718998 26738 1745736

130 E 240 ENMIEBAZ FEM BRI A —

7 e

The notes on pages 130 to 240 form part of these financial statements.
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

mEBEERER

for the year ended 31 December 2016 #ZE 201612 31 BIEFE
(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) (JAARITAI7R)

2016 2015
2016 % 20154
Note RMB’'000 RMB’000
ks ARET T ARBFT
Operating activities RETH
Cash generated from operations REPTSIR S 18(b) 474,072 575,796
Income tax paid RS (80,411) (64,974)
Net cash generated from RETBAREER
operating activities 393,661 510,822
Investing activities RETER
Payments for the purchase of property, B EWE  ME M REMNK
plant and equipment (84,112) (57,752)
Proceeds from disposal of property, RIBYE  BE K
plant and equipment RAEFTS IR 2,684 436
Payments for purchase of other BEEMESREENK
financial assets (5,000) (33,500)
Proceeds from redemption of other B E fth & B & EFTIS 5KIE
financial assets 33,200 144,300
Investment income received from other  H & gl E MITE WS
financial assets 334 429
Payments for purchase of BEAMHNESRITARNK
available-for-sale financial instruments (24,300) -
Acquisition of subsidiaries, WHEHT B AR - TETFT
net of cash acquired HERE - 817
Disposal of subsidiaries, HEMBAR - TFHFT
net of cash disposed HERS - 80,000
Proceeds from disposal of B N R R TS RE
interest in associates 38,805 -
Payment for investment in associates REHE R BNR (21,787) (3,600)
Dividends received from associates B E QR E 2,010 -
Payment for investment in joint ventures  1&& & & 2 B 5K (92,180) (1,655)
Interest received R 3,482 2,185

I EBRREMHRERN—

\

The notes on pages 130 to 240 form part of these financial statements. 25 130 & 240
kY N o

128 GREENTOWN SERVICE GROUP CO. LTD. ANNUAL REPORT 2016



Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

mEBERER

for the year ended 31 December 2016 #ZE 2016512 H31 BIEFE
(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) (JAARITAI7R)

2016 2015
2016 F 20154
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Bt s ARMT ARBTT
Net cash (used in)/generated REES (FTA)
from investing activities FrBIR& 3 (146,864) 131,660
Financing activities RESER
Capital contribution from R EREE
non-controlling interests - 50
Disposal of subsidiaries to MR e B B A F)
non-controlling interests - 675
Distribution to shareholders Bt A RIARER 2k
of a subsidiary (454) -
Payment arising on reorganisation BHEEEZ MK = (50,000)
Proceeds from new bank loans FEIRTTERFIE 130,000 260,000
Repayment of bank loans ERRITER (310,000) (180,000)
Net proceeds from issue of shares RERARBERBEITRD
upon initial public offering, PR1SSRIRHEE
net of issuing costs HBREITAA 1,265,840 -
Interest paid ERFE (6,964) (9,254)
Dividend payment E=S-N] (21,897) (265,421)
Net cash generated from/ METEFRE (A BRS
(used in) financing activities REE 1,056,525 (243,950)
Net increase in cash and REeERRSEFEYWEM
cash equivalents HE 1,303,322 398,532
Cash and cash equivalents B1B1BZEER
at 1 January HEZEY 18(a) 835,897 437,419
Effect of foreign exchange EXSEHY
rate changes 42,473 (54)
Cash and cash equivalents R12B31AZEER
at 31 December HEZEEY 18(a) 2,181,692 835,897
The notes on pages 130 to 240 form part of these financial statements. E130E 240 B M TR L F I I R H) —
B o
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Notes to the Financial Statements

PR ERAR MY EE

for the year ended 31 December 2016 #ZE 201612 31 BIEFE

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a)

(b)

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (HKFRSs), which collective term
includes all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
(HKASs) and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (HKICPA),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. These financial statements also
comply with the applicable disclosure provisions of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. Significant accounting
policies adopted by the Group are disclosed below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs
that are first effective or available for early adoption for the
current accounting period of the Group. Note 1(c) provides
information on any changes in accounting policies resulting
from initial application of these developments to the extent
that they are relevant to the Group for the current and prior
accounting periods reflected in these financial statements.

Basis of preparation of the financial statements
The consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2016 comprise the Company and its
subsidiaries (together referred to as the "Group”) and the
Group's interest in associates and joint ventures.

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on
24 November 2014 as an exempted company with limited
liability under the Companies Law, Cap 22 (Law 3 of 1961 as
consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands. The
Company’s shares were listed on the Main Board on the
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) on 12 July 2016 (the “Listing”).
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Notes to the Financial Statements

PR ERAR MY EE

for the year ended 31 December 2016 #ZE 2016512 31 BIEFE

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(b)

Basis of preparation of the financial statements
(Continued)

In order to rationalise the current structure of the Group in
preparation for the Listing, the Company underwent a
reorganisation (“"Reorganisation”)of the business
comprising the Group, which was completed on 10 October
2015. Pursuant to the Reorganisation, the Company
became the holding company of the companies now
comprising the Group on 7 August 2015. Prior to the
Reorganisation, the Group's businesses were conducted
through Greentown Property Management Group
Company Limited ("Greentown PM”) and its subsidiaries.
Greentown PM was owned as to 51% by Greentown
Holdings Group Company Limited (“Greentown
Holdings", a company controlled by Mr. Song Weiping, Mr.
Shou Bainian and Ms. Xia Yibo), and 49% by Ms. Li Hairong.
After the Reorganisation, Greentown PM was owned by the
shareholders in the same proportionate share of ownerships
as before. The Reorganisation only involved inserting
certain non-operating companies as holding companies of
Greentown PM and there was no change in business and
operation of Greentown PM. Accordingly, no business
combination has occurred. The Reorganisation has been
accounted for using a principle similar to that for a reverse
acquisition as set out in HKFRS 3, Business Combinations,
with Greentown PM treated as the acquirer for accounting
purposes.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Renminbi (“RMB"), rounded to the nearest thousand, which
is the presentation currency. It is prepared on the historical
cost basis except for financial assets classified as fair value
through profit or loss and available-for-sale (see note 1(g))
which are stated at their fair value.

RMB is the functional currency for the Company’s
subsidiaries established in the mainland China. The
functional currency of the Company and the Company'’s
subsidiaries outside the mainland China are Hong Kong
dollars.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

PR ERAR MY EE

for the year ended 31 December 2016 #ZE 201612 31 BIEFE

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(b)

(c)

Basis of preparation of the financial statements
(Continued)

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRSs requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the application of
policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income
and expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions
are based on historical experience and various other factors
that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances,
the results of which form the basis of making the
judgements about carrying values of assets and liabilities
that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual
results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if
the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application of
HKFRSs that have significant effect on the financial
statements and major sources of estimation uncertainty are
discussed in note 2.

Changes in accounting policies

The HKICPA has issued a number of amendments to
HKFRSs that are first effective for the current accounting
period of the Group. None of these developments have
had a material effect on how the Group’s results and
financial position for the current or prior periods have been
prepared or presented.

The Group has not applied any new standard or
interpretation that is not yet effective for the current
accounting period.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

PR ERAR MY EE

for the year ended 31 December 2016 #ZE 2016512 31 BIEFE

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(d)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests
Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The
Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has rights,
to variable returns from its involvement with the entity and
has the ability to affect those returns through its power over
the entity. When assessing whether the Group has power,
only substantive rights (held by the Group and other
parties) are considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that control
commences until the date that control ceases. Intra-group
balances, transactions and cash flows and any unrealised
profits arising from intra-group transactions are eliminated
in full in preparing the consolidated financial statements.
Unrealised losses resulting from intra-group transactions
are eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains but only
to the extent that there is no evidence of impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a
subsidiary not attributable directly or indirectly to the
Company, and in respect of which the Group has not
agreed any additional terms with the holders of those
interests which would result in the Group as a whole having
a contractual obligation in respect of those interests that
meets the definition of a financial liability. For each business
combination, the Group can elect to measure any non-
controlling interests either at fair value or at the non-
controlling interests’ proportionate share of the subsidiary’s
net identifiable assets.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

PR ERAR MY EE

for the year ended 31 December 2016 #ZE 201612 31 BIEFE

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(d)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests
(Continued)

Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated
statement of financial position within equity, separately
from equity attributable to the equity shareholders of the
Company. Non-controlling interests in the results of the
Group are presented on the face of the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income as an
allocation of the total profit or loss and total comprehensive
income for the year between non-controlling interests and
the equity shareholders of the Company. Loans from
holders of non-controlling interests and other contractual
obligations towards these holders are presented as financial
liabilities in the consolidated statement of financial position
in accordance with notes 1(n) or (o) depending on the
nature of the liability.

Changes in the Group's interests in a subsidiary that do not
result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions, whereby adjustments are made to the
amounts of controlling and non-controlling interests within
consolidated equity to reflect the change in relative
interests, but no adjustments are made to goodwill and no
gain or loss is recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is
accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in that
subsidiary, with a resulting gain or loss being recognised in
profit or loss. Any interest retained in that former subsidiary
at the date when control is lost is recognised at fair value
and this amount is regarded as the fair value on initial
recognition of a financial asset (see note 1(g)) or, when
appropriate, the cost on initial recognition of an investment
in an associate or joint venture (see note 1(e)).

In the Company’s statement of financial position, an
investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment
losses (see note 1(k)), unless the investment is classified as
held for sale (or included in a disposal group that is
classified as held for sale).
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Notes to the Financial Statements

PR ERAR MY EE

for the year ended 31 December 2016 #ZE 2016512 31 BIEFE

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(e)

Associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity in which the Group or Company
has significant influence, but not control or joint control,
over its management, including participation in the financial
and operating policy decisions.

A joint venture is an arrangement whereby the Group or
Company and other parties contractually agree to share
control of the arrangement, and have rights to the net
assets of the arrangement.

An investment in an associate or a joint venture is
accounted for in the consolidated financial statements
under the equity method, unless it is classified as held for
sale (or included in a disposal group that is classified as
held for sale). Under the equity method, the investment is
initially recorded at cost, adjusted for any excess of the
Group's share of the acquisition-date fair values of the
investee's identifiable net assets over the cost of the
investment (if any). Thereafter, the investment is adjusted
for the post acquisition change in the Group's share of the
investee's net assets and any impairment loss relating to
the investment (see notes 1(f) and (k). Any acquisition-date
excess over cost, the Group's share of the post-acquisition,
post-tax results of the investees and any impairment losses
for the year are recognised in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss, whereas the Group's share of the post-
acquisition post-tax items of the investees’ other
comprehensive income is recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income.

When the Group's share of losses exceeds its interest in the
associate or the joint venture, the Group's interest is
reduced to nil and recognition of further losses is
discontinued except to the extent that the Group has
incurred legal or constructive obligations or made
payments on behalf of the investee. For this purpose, the
Group's interest is the carrying amount of the investment
under the equity method together with the Group's long-
term interests that in substance form part of the Group's
net investment in the associate or the joint venture.

(B = 1TRERASN -

1

BUAARETTIIR)

TESFTEE (&)

(e)

BENRMEERE
BERREARERARRERE

FEN  EAEEB RIS
HEBRZE(BRE2EMBRES
RE) 2 B o

BECEAREESARFREM
ATRENRBETOEEHREE
EFERARZ L -

REENRIRA L BEMNREILE
SOEARMBER - HEMMBRIRE
DEBFIEHE (READBRE
EHEZ HEAR]) BIBRIN - RIF
L WEVTERAANKR - X
MAKEEERIRE ARWEE A
AR EEREZAFEBLERE
AR D EH AR (IE) - it
% ZRERBASEMIGKREE
REEEFENBENRBERNED
K EIRE R 2 ERREBEEL
HAB(EMEIORK) - WBER
BHEKARNEAED - AEBEFE
FRIE B E A RIMIB R R XS
AR EE RN A B R
R MAREEEBIRE X FKE
BOBREEMEEBARERES
Bam M EMEERARATER

EAREREHEATREELE

BEIRE H IRl - AEEH
RESHRET  WATHERE

fEIR MM ARE AR E K
HEEME IR ERANK
AIRRSN - LT E - AEE RS
ERERATENREREEN L
BEELBRNASEHBE ARG
BEEREFE—HONAKER
Hitg s

2016FF#H HZWBRBEBRERAF

135



Notes to the Financial Statements

PR ERAR MY EE

for the year ended 31 December 2016 #ZE 201612 31 BIEFE

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(e)

Associates and joint ventures (Continued)

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from transactions
between the Group and its associates and joint venture are
eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interest in the
investee, except where unrealised losses provide evidence
of an impairment of the asset transferred, in which case
they are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment in a
joint venture or vice versa, retained interest is not
remeasured. Instead, the investment continues to be
accounted for under the equity method.

In all other cases, when the Group ceases to have significant
influence over an associate or joint control over a joint
venture, it is accounted for as a disposal of the entire
interest in that investee, with a resulting gain or loss being
recognised in profit or loss. Any interest retained in that
former investee at the date when significant influence or
joint control is lost is recognised at fair value and this
amount is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition of
a financial asset (see note 1(g)).

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
investments in associates and joint ventures are stated at
cost less impairment losses (see note 1(k)), unless classified
as held for sale (or included in a disposal group that is
classified as held for sale).
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Notes to the Financial Statements

PR ERAR MY EE

for the year ended 31 December 2016 #ZE 2016512 31 BIEFE

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(f)

(9)

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of

(i)  the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interest in the acquiree and the fair value of the
Group's previously held equity interest in the
acquiree; over

(i) the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets
and liabilities measured as at the acquisition date.

When (i) is greater than (i), then this excess is recognised
immediately in profit or loss as a gain on a bargain
purchase.

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated impairment
losses. Goodwill arising on a business combination is
allocated to each cash-generating unit, or groups of cash
generating units, that is expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination and is tested annually for
impairment (see note 1(k)).

On disposal of a cash generating unit during the year, any
attributable amount of purchased goodwill is included in
the calculation of the profit or loss on disposal.

Other investments in debt and equity financial
instruments

The Group's and the Company'’s policies for investments in
debt and equity financial instruments, other than
investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures,
are as follows:
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Notes to the Financial Statements

PR ERAR MY EE

for the year ended 31 December 2016 #ZE 201612 31 BIEFE

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(9)

Other investments in debt and equity financial
instruments (Continued)

Investments in debt and equity financial instruments are
initially stated at fair value, which is their transaction price
unless it is determined that the fair value at initial
recognition differs from the transaction price and that fair
value is evidenced by a quoted price in an active market for
an identical asset or liability or based on a valuation
technique that uses only data from observable markets.
Cost includes attributable transaction costs, except where
indicated otherwise below. These investments are
subsequently accounted for as follows, depending on their
classification:

Investments in financial instruments held for trading or
designated as at fair value through profit or loss are
classified as current assets. Any attributable transaction
costs are recognised in profit or loss as incurred. At the end
of each reporting period the fair value is remeasured, with
any resultant gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss.
The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss does not
include any dividends or interest earned on these
investments as these are recognised in accordance with the
policies set out in notes 1(t)(iii) and (iv).

Dated debt financial instruments that the Group and/or the
Company have the positive ability and intention to hold to
maturity are classified as held-to-maturity financial
instruments. Held-to-maturity financial instruments are
stated at amortised cost less impairment losses (see note

1(k)).
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Notes to the Financial Statements

PR ERAR MY EE

for the year ended 31 December 2016 #ZE 2016512 31 BIEFE

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(9)

(h)

Other investments in debt and equity financial
instruments (Continued)

Investments in financial instruments which do not fall into
any of the above categories are classified as available-for-
sale financial instruments. At the end of each reporting
period the fair value is remeasured, with any resultant gain
or loss being recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated separately in equity in the fair value
reserve. As an exception to this, investments in equity
financial instruments that do not have a quoted price in an
active market for an identical instrument and whose fair
value cannot otherwise be reliably measured are recognised
in the statement of financial position at cost less impairment
losses (see note 1(k)). Dividend income from equity financial
instruments and interest income from debt financial
instruments calculated using the effective interest method
are recognised in profit or loss in accordance with the
policies set out in notes 1(t)(iii) and (iv), respectively. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from changes in the
amortised cost of debt financial instruments are also
recognised in profit or loss.

When the investments are derecognised or impaired (see
note 1(k)), the cumulative gain or loss recognised in equity
is reclassified to profit or loss. Investments are recognised/
derecognised on the date the Group commits to purchase/
sell the investments or they expire.

Investment property

Investment properties are land and/or buildings which are
owned or held under a leasehold interest (see note 1())) to
earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation. These
include land held for a currently undetermined future use
and property that is being constructed or developed for
future use as investment property.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

PR ERAR MY EE

for the year ended 31 December 2016 #ZE 201612 31 BIEFE

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(h)

Investment property (Continued)

Investment properties are accounted for using the cost
model and stated in the consolidated financial position at
cost less accumulated depreciation, amortisation and
impairment losses (see note 1(k)). The cost of investment
property, less its estimated residual value and accumulated
impairment losses, is depreciated or amortised using the
straight-line method over its estimated useful life, unless
the investment property is classified as held for sale, as
follows:

— Buildings 20 years
When the use of a property changes from investment
property to owner-occupied property, the property is
reclassified as property, plant and equipment. The transfer
under cost model does not change the carrying amount of
the property transferred as well as the cost of the property.

Property, plant and equipment

The following items of property, plant and equipment are
stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses (see note 1(k)):

—  buildings held for own use which are situated on
leasehold land classified as held under operating
leases (see note 1(j)); and other items of plant and
equipment.

The cost of self-constructed items of property, plant and
equipment includes the cost of materials, direct labour, the
initial estimate, where relevant, of the costs of dismantling
and removing the items and restoring the site on which
they are located, and an appropriate proportion of
production overheads and borrowing costs (see note 1(v)).
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Notes to the Financial Statements

PR ERAR MY EE

for the year ended 31 December 2016 #ZE 2016512 31 BIEFE

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(i)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an
item of property, plant and equipment are determined as
the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the item and are recognised in profit or
loss on the date of retirement or disposal.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost or valuation
of items of property, plant and equipment, less their
estimated residual value, if any, using the straight line
method over their estimated useful lives as follows:

—  Buildings situated on leasehold land are depreciated
over the shorter of the unexpired term of lease and
their estimated useful lives, being no more than 20
years after the date of completion.

—  Leasehold improvements 3-5years
—  Office equipment and furniture 3-5 years
—  Motor vehicles 3-10years
—  Software 2-10 years

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost or valuation of the item
is allocated on a reasonable basis between the parts and
each part is depreciated separately. Both the useful life of
an asset and its residual value, if any, are reviewed annually.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

PR ERAR MY EE

for the year ended 31 December 2016 #ZE 201612 31 BIEFE

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (B S4TaERASN -

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

(). Leased assets
An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of
transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group determines
that the arrangement conveys a right to use a specific asset
or assets for an agreed period of time in return for a
payment or a series of payments. Such a determination is
made based on an evaluation of the substance of the
arrangement and is regardless of whether the arrangement
takes the legal form of a lease.

(i) Classification of assets leased to the Group
Assets that are held by group under leases which
transfer to the Group substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership are classified as being held
under finance leases. Leases which do not transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to
the Group are classified as operating leases.

(i) Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets held under
operating leases, payments made under the leases
are charged to profit or loss in equal instalments over
the accounting periods covered by the lease term,
except where an alternative basis is more
representative of the pattern of benefits to be derived
from the leased asset. Lease incentives received are
recognised in profit or loss as an integral part of the
aggregate net lease payments made. Contingent
rentals are charged to profit or loss in the accounting
period in which they are incurred.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

PR ERAR MY EE

for the year ended 31 December 2016 #ZE 2016512 31 BIEFE
(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (BRS1T3EBASN - HUAREITIIR)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 1 EEEHEXE)
(CONTINUED)
(k) Impairment of assets (k) EERBE
() Impairment of investments in debt and equity (i) BERERAZLHEHMER

securities and other receivables RIERE
Investments in debt and equity securities and other B A% AN 38 55 A K3 AR
current and non-current receivables that are stated at sy B SR AT (B sk o B AT
cost or amortised cost or are classified as available- HHEELE LM mE LIE
for-sale securities are reviewed at the end of each T R FRIE ' & RS HR
reporting period to determine whether there is Kgs WHETESREER
objective evidence of impairment. Objective evidence BEEE ZTEREIBERE
of impairment includes observable data that comes to AREEMBEEBANAT AR
the attention of the Group about one or more of the ZIEEE SR EREE ¢

following loss events:

—  significant financial difficulty of the debtor; — BEBABRAERFBR
B
— a breach of contract, such as a default or — BY R SEES
delinquency in interest or principal payments; R B ARS
— it becoming probable that the debtor will enter — (A ARRERE ST
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; Hih A5 &=
—  significant changes in the technological, market, — Bt mig - KESRE
economic or legal environment that have an BREBEHEBKAS
adverse effect on the debtor; and T ENEREE)
P53
— a significant or prolonged decline in the fair — BREARIARENATFE
value of an investment in an equity instrument RIS IFE TRREER
below its cost. B e
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Notes to the Financial Statements

PR ERAR MY EE

for the year ended 31 December 2016 #ZE 201612 31 BIEFE
(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (BRS1T3EBASN - HUAREITIIR)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 1 EEEHEXE)
(CONTINUED)
(k) Impairment of assets (Continued) (k) EBEERBEGE)
()  Impairment of investments in debt and equity (i) BEERRAIZHEHMAEW

securities and other receivables (Continued) FIERE (8)

If any such evidence exists, any impairment loss is MEFEENZEER (£

determined and recognised as follows: REEBZATER T UE

ERFER -

—  For investments in associates and joint ventures — BRIREEIEDERA AR
accounted for under the equity method in the ERNAIREETENKR
consolidated financial statements (see note Emzs (RMiE1eE)
1(e)), the impairment loss is measured by BB S 1B T AR I B R
comparing the recoverable amount of the 1(k)(ii) Lt 3R 3% & 59 7] U
investment with its carrying amount in [l & ¥8 £ H BR | & 5
accordance with note 1(k)(ii). The impairment & oo W AR 4 B 5 13k
loss is reversed if there has been a favourable FEEE Al Uk El & ZEHY
change in the estimates used to determine the HELRENES - &
recoverable amount in accordance with note B8 7 AL -
1(k)(ii).

—  For unquoted equity financial instruments —  BERAAIIERZIEET
carried at cost, the impairment loss is measured BAGRTEmMS @ &
as the difference between the carrying amount BEEZEREERR
of the financial asset and the estimated future BHEEFARKEBSRE
cash flows, discounted at the current market ZERE > mAkRE
rate of return for a similar financial asset where 25K BIREUSE
the effect of discounting is material. Impairment BEMNBITMIBERE
losses for equity financial instruments carried at BEIR o AT ETIRA
cost are not reversed. &€ ph T B RER

BT -
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PR ERAR MY EE

for the year ended 31 December 2016 #ZE 2016512 31 BIEFE

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (B S54TaERASN -

A

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)
(k) Impairment of assets (Continued)
(i) Impairment of investments in debt and equity

securities and other receivables (Continued)

For trade and other current receivables and
other financial assets carried at amortised cost,
the impairment loss is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of estimated future cash
flows, discounted at the financial asset's original
effective interest rate (i.e. the effective interest
rate computed at initial recognition of these
assets), where the effect of discounting is
material. This assessment is made collectively
where these financial assets share similar risk
characteristics, such as similar past due status,
and have not been individually assessed as
impaired. Future cash flows for financial assets
which are assessed for impairment collectively
are based on historical loss experience for
assets with credit risk characteristics similar to
the collective group.

If in a subsequent period the amount of an
impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be linked objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment loss was recognised, the
impairment loss is reversed through profit or
loss. A reversal of an impairment loss shall not
result in the asset’s carrying amount exceeding
that which would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised in prior years.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

PR ERAR MY EE

for the year ended 31 December 2016 #ZE 201612 31 BIEFE
(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (BRS1T3EBASN - HUAREITIIR)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 1 FESTHEX(E)
(CONTINUED)
(k) Impairment of assets (Continued) (k) BERBEE)
()  Impairment of investments in debt and equity (i) BEERRAIZHEHMAEW

securities and other receivables (Continued)

—  For available-for-sale financial instruments, the
cumulative loss that has been recognised in the
fair value reserve is reclassified to profit or loss.
The amount of the cumulative loss that is
recognised in profit or loss is the difference
between the acquisition cost (net of any
principal repayment and amortisation) and
current fair value, less any impairment loss on
that asset previously recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment losses recognised in profit or loss in
respect of available-for-sale equity financial
instruments are not reversed through profit or
loss. Any subsequent increase in the fair value of
such assets is recognised in other comprehensive
income.

Impairment losses in respect of available-for-
sale debt financial instruments are reversed if
the subsequent increase in fair value can be
objectively related to an event occurring after
the impairment loss was recognised. Reversals
of impairment losses in such circumstances are
recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment losses are written off against the
corresponding assets directly, except for impairment
losses recognised in respect of trade debtors and bills
receivable included within trade and other
receivables, whose recovery is considered doubtful
but not remote. In this case, the impairment losses for
doubtful debts are recorded using an allowance
account. When the Group is satisfied that recovery is
remote, the amount considered irrecoverable is
written off against trade debtors and bills receivable
directly and any amounts held in the allowance
account relating to that debt are reversed.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously charged
to the allowance account are reversed against the
allowance account. Other changes in the allowance
account and subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off directly are recognised in profit
or loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

PR ERAR MY EE

for the year ended 31 December 2016 #ZE 2016512 31 BIEFE

(B =1TRERASN - BUARKTTIIR)

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 1 FEESTHEE)
(CONTINUED)
(k) Impairment of assets (Continued) (k) EBEERBEGE)
(i) Impairment of other assets (iiy HiEERE

AEBRZREHREHNA
BRINRER - AREE 5
BEROHFERETR %
(FEBRIN) St AT FERR YR (E
BEESTBIFELARE

Internal and external sources of information are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period to
identify indications that the following assets may be
impaired or, except in the case of goodwill, an
impairment loss previously recognised no longer

ventures in the Company’s statement of financial
position.

exists or may have decreased: R
property, plant and equipment; —  WE - BEIE
prepayments; —  TARNHOE:
goodwill; and — BEER
investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint — AR BYBEA KT

REERAT - BLANF
NAEERENKE -

WFEEAZETR - Rl
FFEEMAWE 2R - b
Sh o A= E H B R E P
R HESFAEFEENA

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated. In addition, the recoverable
amount of goodwill is estimated annually whether or
not there is any indication of impairment.

Yol & -

Calculation of recoverable amount — FrETKRESE

The recoverable amount of an asset is the BEMNTWESEAED
greater of its fair value less costs of disposal and SEE R B AR R R {5
value in use. In assessing value in use, the BEMEZHNRS

estimated future cash flows are discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax discount rate
that reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to the
asset. Where an asset does not generate cash
inflows largely independent of those from other

F o AR EER
ERRMERTISHE
KREEEMEERT
[\ 2 5 B9 B A R R
o BEFRERER
EMRREHRE - WE

assets, the recoverable amount is determined EVEESREUBIIR
for the smallest group of assets that generates EMmEEMEANES
cash inflows independently (i.e. a cash- mA AEEBYES
generating unit). RERANK/NEEH

A (BNREELEL) B
AU el o
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Notes to the Financial Statements

PR ERAR MY EE

for the year ended 31 December 2016 #ZE 201612 31 BIEFE

A 2

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (B S4TaERASN -

1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Impairment of assets (Continued)

(k)

(ii)

Impairment of other assets (Continued)

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or
loss if the carrying amount of an asset, or the
cash-generating unit to which it belongs,
exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment
losses recognised in respect of cash-generating
units are allocated first to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill allocated to the cash-
generating unit (or group of units) and then, to
reduce the carrying amount of the other assets
in the unit (or group of units) on a pro rata basis,
except that the carrying value of an asset will
not be reduced below its individual fair value
less costs of disposal (if measurable) or value in
use (if determinable).

Reversals of impairment losses

In respect of assets other than goodwill, an
impairment loss is reversed if there has been a
favourable change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount. An
impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not
reversed.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to the
asset’s carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been
recognised in prior years. Reversals of
impairment losses are credited to profit or loss
in the year in which the reversals are recognised.

148 GREENTOWN SERVICE GROUP CO. LTD. ANNUAL REPORT 2016

1

BIAARETTIIR)

TESFTEE (&)

(k)

AERE
(i) Hft

(#8)
EERE(E)

HERR BB
HEEXEMBRESE
EEMMREERAE
A e R - AR E
S ERIRERR © 5L
ReES BRI
EERELDERARD
EHARSEAEM(K
BRI FTED B H
AENREE ERR
Lo B B DA ORL > 5% B AL
(REMAR) REMBE
ENRAEE HEEEN
REEMNSREENE
18 3l 22 SRR H &5 AR
(fHrIEt8) JEMEE
(R AT EEE) °

B R EEE
HRBEAINNEE -
5 A LABEE RT UL B £ 2R
MEEHLRANES
A EURERTE - B8
HREER G REE -

HERBEZ BEIRNE
EEBEFET AR
RR (B 5 18 By R 8 7 T 1Y
AREME < BERERZ 5
Ol 7£ 7 SR B @ e F AT

AfEz o



Notes to the Financial Statements

PR ERAR MY EE

for the year ended 31 December 2016 #ZE 2016512 31 BIEFE

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (B 51TaERASN

1

A

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Impairment of assets (Continued)

(k)

(N

(iii)

Interim financial reporting and impairment

Under the Rules Governing the Listing of Financial
instruments on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited, the Group is required to prepare an interim
financial report in compliance with HKAS 34, Interim
financial reporting, in respect of the first six months of
the financial year. At the end of the interim period,
the Group applies the same impairment testing, and
reversal criteria as it would at the end of the financial
year (see notes 1(k)(i) and (ii)).

Impairment losses recognised in an interim period in
respect of goodwill, available-for-sale equity financial
instruments and unquoted equity financial instruments
carried at cost are not reversed in a subsequent
period. This is the case even if no loss, or a smaller
loss, would have been recognised had the impairment
been assessed only at the end of the financial year to
which the interim period relates. Consequently, if the
fair value of an available-for-sale equity financial
instruments increases in the remainder of the annual
period, or in any other period subsequently, the
increase is recognised in other comprehensive income
and not profit or loss.

Inventories

Property development

Inventories in respect of property development activities
are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Cost and net realisable values are determined as follows:

Completed property held for resale

The cost of completed properties held for sale
comprises all costs of purchase, costs of conversion
and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to
their present location and condition. Net realisable
value represents the estimated selling price less costs
to be incurred in selling the property.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

PR ERAR MY EE

for the year ended 31 December 2016 #ZE 201612 31 BIEFE

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(m) Trade and other receivables

(n)

(o)

(p)

Trade and other receivables are initially recognised at fair
value and thereafter stated at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less allowance for impairment of
doubtful debts (see note 1(k)), except where the receivables
are interest-free loans made to related parties without any
fixed repayment terms or the effect of discounting would
be immaterial. In such cases, the receivables are stated at
cost less allowance for impairment of trade and other
receivables.

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at fair
value less attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to
initial recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are stated at
amortised cost with any difference between the amount
initially recognised and redemption value being recognised
in profit or loss over the period of the borrowings, together
with any interest and fees payable, using the effective
interest method.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair
value. Except for financial guarantee liabilities measured in
accordance with note 1(s)(i), trade and other payables are
subsequently stated at amortised cost unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are
stated at cost.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on
hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short-term, highly liquid investments that
are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and
which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value,
having been within three months of maturity at acquisition.
Bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand and form an
integral part of the Group's cash management are also
included as a component of cash and cash equivalents for
the purpose of the consolidated cash flow statement.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

PR ERAR MY EE

for the year ended 31 December 2016 #ZE 2016512 31 BIEFE

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Employee benefits

(q)

(i)

(i)

Short-term employee benefits and contributions to
defined contribution retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave,
contributions to defined contribution retirement plans
and the cost of non-monetary benefits are accrued in
the year in which the associated services are rendered
by employees. Where payment or settlement is
deferred and the effect would be material, these
amounts are stated at their present values.

Contributions to PRC local retirement schemes
pursuant to the relevant labour rules and regulations
in the PRC are recognised as an expense in profit or
loss as incurred.

Share-based payments

For equity-settled share-based payment transactions,
the fair value of the services received is recognised as
an expense with a corresponding increase in equity
over the vesting period during which the employees
become unconditionally entitled to the equity
instrument. The fair value of the services received is
determined by reference to the fair value of the equity
instrument granted at the date of the grant. At each
reporting date, the number of equity instruments that
are expected to be vested are estimated. The impact
on the revision of original estimates is recognised as
an expense and as a corresponding adjustment to
equity over the remaining vesting period, unless the
revision to original estimates is due to market
conditions. No adjustment is made if the revision or
actual outcome differs from the original estimate due
to market conditions.

The proceeds received from the exercise of the equity
instruments, net of any directly attributable
transaction costs, are credited to share capital when
the equity instruments are exercised.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

PR ERAR MY EE

for the year ended 31 December 2016 #ZE 201612 31 BIEFE

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(r)

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current tax
and movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities are
recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that they
relate to items recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity, in which case the relevant amounts of
tax are recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable
income for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period, and any
adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible and
taxable temporary differences respectively, being the
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their tax
bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax losses
and unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax
liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profits will be available against
which the asset can be utilised, are recognised. Future
taxable profits that may support the recognition of deferred
tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences
include those that will arise from the reversal of existing
taxable temporary differences, provided those differences
relate to the same taxation authority and the same taxable
entity, and are expected to reverse either in the same
period as the expected reversal of the deductible
temporary difference or in periods into which a tax loss
arising from the deferred tax asset can be carried back or
forward. The same criteria are adopted when determining
whether existing taxable temporary differences support the
recognition of deferred tax assets arising from unused tax
losses and credits, that is, those differences are taken into
account if they relate to the same taxation authority and the
same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse in a
period, or periods, in which the tax loss or credit can be
utilised.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

PR ERAR MY EE

for the year ended 31 December 2016 #ZE 2016512 31 BIEFE

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(r)

Income tax (Continued)

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax assets
and liabilities are those temporary differences arising from
goodwill not deductible for tax purposes, the initial
recognition of assets or liabilities that affect neither
accounting nor taxable profit (provided they are not part of
a business combination), and temporary differences relating
to investments in subsidiaries to the extent that, in the case
of taxable differences, the Group controls the timing of the
reversal and it is probable that the differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future, or in the case of
deductible differences, unless it is probable that they will
reverse in the future.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured based
on the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the
carrying amount of the assets and liabilities, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the
reporting period. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not
discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at
the end of each reporting period and is reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available to allow the related tax benefit to
be utilised. Any such reduction is reversed to the extent
that it becomes probable that sufficient taxable profits will
be available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution of
dividends are recognised when the liability to pay the
related dividends is recognised.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

PR ERAR MY EE

for the year ended 31 December 2016 #ZE 201612 31 BIEFE

A 2

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (B S4TaERASN -

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

(r) Income tax (Continued)
Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from each
other and are not offset. Current tax assets are offset
against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets
against deferred tax liabilities, if the Company or the Group
has the legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and the following additional
conditions are met:

— in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the
Company or the Group intends either to settle on a
net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously; or

— inthe case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if they
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either:

—  the same taxable entity; or

— different taxable entities, which, in each future
period in which significant amounts of deferred
tax liabilities or assets are expected to be
settled or recovered, intend to realise the
current tax assets and settle the current tax
liabilities on a net basis or realise and settle
simultaneously.

(s) Financial guarantees issued, provisions and

contingent liabilities

(i)  Financial guarantees issued
Financial guarantees are contracts that require the
issuer (i.e. the guarantor) to make specified payments
to reimburse the beneficiary of the guarantee (the
“holder”) for a loss the holder incurs because a
specified debtor fails to make payment when due in
accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

PR ERAR MY EE

for the year ended 31 December 2016 #ZE 2016512 31 BIEFE

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (B S54TaERASN -

A

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)
(s) Financial guarantees issued, provisions and
contingent liabilities (Continued)

(i)

Financial guarantees issued (Continued)

Where the Group issues a financial guarantee, the fair
value of the guarantee is initially recognised as
deferred income within trade and other payables. The
fair value of financial guarantees issued at the time of
issuance is determined by reference to fees charged
in an arm’s length transaction for similar services,
when such information is obtainable, or is otherwise
estimated by reference to interest rate differentials,
by comparing the actual rates charged by lenders
when the guarantee is made available with the
estimated rates that lenders would have charged, had
the guarantees not been available, where reliable
estimates of such information can be made. Where
consideration is received or receivable for the
issuance of the guarantee, the consideration is
recognised in accordance with the Group's policies
applicable to that category of asset. Where no such
consideration is received or receivable, an immediate
expense is recognised in profit or loss on initial
recognition of any deferred income.

The amount of the guarantee initially recognised as
deferred income is amortised in profit or loss over the
term of the guarantee as income from financial
guarantees issued. In addition, provisions are
recognised in accordance with note 1(s)(ii) if and when
(i) it becomes probable that the holder of the
guarantee will call upon the Group under the
guarantee, and (i) the amount of that claim on the
Group is expected to exceed the amount currently
carried in trade and other payables in respect of that
guarantee i.e. the amount initially recognised, less
accumulated amortisation.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

PR ERAR MY EE

for the year ended 31 December 2016 #ZE 201612 31 BIEFE

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)
(s) Financial guarantees issued, provisions and
contingent liabilities (Continued)

(ii)

Other provisions and contingent liabilities
Provisions are recognised for other liabilities of
uncertain timing or amount when the Group or the
Company has a legal or constructive obligation arising
as a result of a past event, it is probable that an
outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle
the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made. A
provision for onerous contracts is measured at the
lower of the expected cost of terminating the contract
and the expected net cost of continuing with the
contract. Before a provision is established, the Group
recognises any impairment loss on the assets
associated with that contract. Where the time value of
money is material, provisions are stated at the present
value of the expenditure expected to settle the
obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities
unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits
is remote.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

PR ERAR MY EE

for the year ended 31 December 2016 #ZE 2016512 31 BIEFE

A

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (B S54TaERASN -

1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration

(t)

received or receivable. Provided it is probable that the

economic benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue

and costs, if applicable, can be measured reliably, revenue

is recognised in profit or loss as follows:

(i)

Property service fee, consulting service fee and
community living service fee (formerly named as
“property management service fee, property
consulting service fee and community value-added
service fee” respectively)

These fees are recognised when services are
rendered.

For property service income arising from properties
managed under lump sum basis, where the Group
acts as principal, the Group entitles to revenue at the
value of property service fee received by the
properties. For property service income arising from
properties managed under commission basis, where
the Group acts as an agent of the property owner, the
Group entitles revenue at a pre-determined
percentage or fixed amount of the property service
fees the property owners are obligated to pay.

For community living service income that involved
sales of goods, the revenue of which is recognised
when goods are delivered at the customers’ premises
which is taken to be the point in time when the
customer has accepted the goods and the related
risks and rewards of ownership.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

PR ERAR MY EE

for the year ended 31 December 2016 #ZE 201612 31 BIEFE

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

(t)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

Rental income from operating leases

Rental income receivable under operating leases is
recognised in profit or loss in equal instalments over
the periods covered by the lease term, except where
an alternative basis is more representative of the
pattern of benefits to be derived from the use of the
leased asset. Lease incentives granted are recognised
in profit or loss as an integral part of the aggregate
net lease payments receivable. Contingent rentals are
recognised as income in the accounting period in
which they are earned.

Dividends

Dividend income from unlisted investments is
recognised when the shareholder’s right to receive
payment is established.

Interest income
Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the
effective interest method.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised in the statement
of financial position initially when there is reasonable
assurance that they will be received and that the
Group will comply with the conditions attaching to
them. Grants that compensate the Group for
expenses incurred are recognised as income in profit
or loss on a systematic basis in the same periods in
which the expenses are incurred. Grants that
compensate the Group for the cost of an asset are
deducted from the carrying amount of the asset and
consequently are effectively recognised in profit or
loss over the useful life of the asset by way of reduced
depreciation expense.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

PR ERAR MY EE

for the year ended 31 December 2016 #ZE 2016512 31 BIEFE

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(u)

Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated
at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction
dates. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are translated at the foreign exchange
rates ruling at the end of the reporting period. Exchange
gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction
dates. Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies that are stated at fair value are translated
using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates the fair
value was measured.

The results of foreign operations are translated into RMB at
the exchange rates approximating the foreign exchange
rates ruling at the dates of the transactions. Statement of
financial position items are translated into RMB at the
closing foreign exchange rates at the end of the reporting
period. The resulting exchange differences are recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated
separately in equity in the exchange reserve.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative amount
of the exchange differences relating to that foreign
operation is reclassified from equity to profit or loss when
the profit or loss on disposal is recognised.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

PR ERAR MY EE

for the year ended 31 December 2016 #ZE 201612 31 BIEFE

A 2

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (B S4TaERASN -

1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(v)

(w)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of an asset which
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready
for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the
cost of that asset. Other borrowing costs are expensed in
the period in which they are incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the cost of a
qualifying asset commences when expenditure for the asset
is being incurred, borrowing costs are being incurred and
activities that are necessary to prepare the asset for its
intended use or sale are in progress. Capitalisation of
borrowing costs is suspended or ceases when substantially
all the activities necessary to prepare the qualifying asset
for its intended use or sale are interrupted or complete.

Related parties
(@) A person, or a close member of that person’s family,
is related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management personnel
of the Group or the Group's parent.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

PR ERAR MY EE

for the year ended 31 December 2016 #ZE 2016512 31 BIEFE

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)
(w) Related parties (Continued)
(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies:

0]

(i)

(i)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

The entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the
others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is a
member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and
the other entity is an associate of the third
entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or
an entity related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a).

A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity).

The entity, or any member of a group of which it
is a part, provides key management personnel
services to the Group or to the Group's parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

PR ERAR MY EE

for the year ended 31 December 2016 #ZE 201612 31 BIEFE

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (B S4TaERASN -

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

(x) Segment reporting
Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment
item reported in the financial statements, are identified
from the financial information provided regularly to the
Group’s most senior executive management for the
purposes of allocating resources to, and assessing the
performance of, the Group's various geographical
locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless the
segments have similar economic characteristics and are
similar in respect of the nature of products and services, the
nature of production processes, the type or class of
customers, the methods used to distribute the products or
provide the services, and the nature of the regulatory
environment. Operating segments which are not
individually material may be aggregated if they share a
majority of these criteria.

2 ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with
HKFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It
also requires management to exercise its judgement in applying
the Group's accounting policies, which are continually evaluated
and are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances.

The following critical accounting policies involve the most

significant judgements and estimates used in the preparation of
the financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

PR ERAR MY EE

for the year ended 31 December 2016 #ZE 2016512 31 BIEFE

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (B S54TaERASN -

2 ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND ESTIMATES
(CONTINUED)

Note 26 contain information about the assumptions and their risk
factors relating to financial instruments. Other key sources of
estimation uncertainty are as follows:

(i) Estimated collection rate of property service fee
Property services are rendered to a large number of
residential property owners in community projects and
significant uncertainty may exist as to whether cash will be
collected from each of these individual residential property
owners for the rendering of property services by the Group.
Management is required to exercise significant judgement
to assess whether it is probable that the property owners
will pay the property service fees due. This judgement is
dependent on the property occupancy status (which
includes whether the property is owner occupied, leased,
under renovation, vacant or the owner cannot be
contacted). Properties with different occupancy statuses
have historically generated different average collection
rates.

(i) Impairment for trade and other receivables

The Group estimates impairment losses for trade and other
receivables resulting from the inability of the customers to
make the required payments. The Group bases the
estimates on the ageing of the trade and other receivable
balance, customer credit-worthiness, and historical write-off
experience. If the financial condition of the customers were
to deteriorate, actual write-offs would be higher than
estimated.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

PR ERAR MY EE

for the year ended 31 December 2016 #ZE 201612 31 BIEFE

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

2 ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND ESTIMATES
(CONTINUED)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

Recognition of deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets in respect of tax losses carried forward
and deductible temporary differences are recognized and
measured based on the expected manner of realisation or
settlement of the carrying amount of the relevant assets
and liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of each reporting date. In determining
the carrying amounts of deferred tax assets, expected
taxable profits are estimated which involves a number of
assumptions relating to the operating environment of the
Group and require a significant level of judgement
exercised by the directors. Any change in such assumptions
and judgement would affect the carrying amounts of
deferred tax assets to be recognized and hence the net
profit in future years.

Income tax

The Group is subject to income taxes in different
jurisdictions. Significant judgement is required in
determining the provisions for income taxes, as the
calculations of which depend on the ultimate tax
determinations and are subject to uncertainties. When the
final tax outcomes of these matters are different from the
amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will
impact the income tax in the period in which such
determinations are made.

Impairment of non-current assets

If circumstances indicate that the carrying amounts of
property, plant and equipment, investment properties,
interest in associates, interest in joint ventures and other
financial assets may not be recoverable, the assets may be
considered impaired and are tested for impairment. An
impairment loss is recognised when the asset’s recoverable
amount has declined below its carrying amount. The
recoverable amount is the greater of the fair value less costs
to sell and value in use. In determining the recoverable
amount which requires significant judgements, the Group
estimates the future cash flows to be derived from
continuing use and ultimate disposal of the asset and
applies an appropriate discount rate to these future cash
flows.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

PR ERAR MY EE

for the year ended 31 December 2016 #ZE 2016512 31 BIEFE
(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (BRS1T3EBASN - HUAREITIIR)

3 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 3 WARZEHEHR
(a) Revenue (@) WA
The principal activities of the Group are provision of TEENFEXBARBEYER
property services, consulting services and community living 7% R ARTE R E R A TE RS (Al
services (formerly named as “property management WO R AMEESIER - BB EE
services, property consulting services and community value- AR 7% K B @R B E AR TS ) ©

added services” respectively).

The amount of each significant category of revenue are as SEFXEHEAWAZSEBIT ¢
follows:
2016 2015
2016 20154
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR¥T ARETT
Property services LESE S
Property management services VB IE RS 2,619,927 2,090,872
2,619,927 2,090,872
Consulting services B R A%
Property under construction services TEEERS 522,533 475,957
Management consulting services BEIRR AR 95,503 74,820
618,036 550,777
Community living services BEEAEER®
Community products and services % 2 oh M IR 7% 308,561 105,023
Home living services KIE & EIRTE 134,442 145,691
Community space services & 2= 1 AR 75 41,027 26,264
484,030 276,978
3,721,993 2,918,627
No revenue from transaction with single external customer AIEREERRT - B — N x e
is amounted around 10% or more of the Group's revenue T HHWAE R EENE 25 HAE
for each of the periods presented. HUE A4 10% A | o
Further details regarding the Group's principal activities are BREAEBRTEERBRNTEZHER
disclosed below: TXIRE :
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Notes to the Financial Statements

PR ERAR MY EE

for the year ended 31 December 2016 #ZE 201612 31 BIEFE

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (B S4TaERASN -

3 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING

(CONTINUED)

(b) Segment reporting
The Group manages its businesses by geographical
location. In a manner consistent with the way in which
information is reported internally to the Group's most
senior executive management for the purposes of resource
allocation and performance assessment, the Group has
presented the following five reportable segments.

o Region 1: Hangzhou (include Yuhang)

o Region 2: Yangtze River Delta Region (include Ningbo)

o Region 3: Pearl River Delta Region
o Region 4: Bohai Economic Rim Region

J Region 5: Other Regions (including offshore locations)

Currently, the Group's activities are mainly carried out in
the PRC.

(i) Segment results, assets and liabilities
For the purposes of assessing segment performance
and allocating resources between segments, the
Group's senior executive management monitors the
results, assets and liabilities attributable to each
reportable segment on the following bases:

Segment assets include all non-current assets and
current assets with the exception of deferred tax
assets. Segment liabilities include trade payables,
accruals of the individual segments and bank
borrowings managed directly by the segments with
exceptions of current taxation and deferred tax
liabilities.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

PR ERAR MY EE

for the year ended 31 December 2016 #ZE 2016512 31 BIEFE

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (B S54TaERASN -

|

3 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING

(CONTINUED)
(b) Segment reporting (Continued)

i)

Segment results, assets and liabilities (Continued)
Revenue and expenses are allocated to the reportable
segments with reference to revenue generated by
those segments and the expenses incurred by those
segments or which otherwise arise from the
depreciation or amortisation of assets attributable to
those segments.

The measure used for reporting segment profit is
profit before taxation. In addition to receiving
segment information concerning profit before
taxation, management is provided with segment
information concerning revenue (including inter
segment sales), interest income and expense from
cash balances and borrowings managed directly by
segments, depreciation and amortisation, impairment
losses and additions to non-current segment assets
used by the segments in their operations. Inter-
segment sales are priced with reference to prices
charged to external parties for similar orders.

Information regarding the Group’s reportable
segments as provided to the Group’s most senior
executive management for the purposes of resource
allocation and assessment of segment performance
for the years ended 31 December 2016 and 2015 is set
out below:
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B RS R AR B AL

for the year ended 31 December 2016 #ZE 201612 31 BIEFE

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (BxS1T7EBRSN - WAA R ITIIR)

3 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 3 WARDHEZH (&)

(CONTINUED)
(b) Segment reporting (Continued) (b) DE2F(E)
() Segment results, assets and liabilities (Continued) (iy 2WEE BERAEGBE)

Year ended 31 December 2016

HZ2016512831ALEE
Pearl River Bohai
Yangtze River Delta Economic Other
Hangzhou Delta Region Region  Rim Region Regions Total
Ris
Ll REABE GKIABE SEELE HiphE @t
Yangtze
River
Hangzhou Region
(exclude Yuhang (exclude Ningbo
Yuhang) Region Ningbo) Region
B REAKE
(TR (T
) BRE ) ERHE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARMTT ARMTRT AR®TRT AR¥TRT AREBTR ARETR ARETR
Revenue from external customers  RESMNIBRFEMA 985,788 241,659 1,164,055 269,646 193,724 507,551 359,570 3,721,993
Inter-segment revenue AEEBA 6,704 31 1,057 45 22 590 - 8,449
Reportable segment revenue FES: VT ON 992,492 241,690 1,165,112 269,691 193,746 508,141 359,570 3,730,442
Reportable segment profit 2R BB 69,372 33,751 143,271 42,563 21,544 83,890 49,851 444,242
Interest income FIEHA 2,310 85 334 97 36 126 2,309 5,297
Interest expense B (6,964) - - - - - - (6,964)
Share of profits less losses of AlEHERENEREE
associates 4,428 - - - - - - 4,428
Share of profits less losses of HEAELEFERER
joint ventures (1,018) - - - - - - (1,018)
Depreciation and amortisation FRREREH
for the year (9,912) (468) 2,211) (457) (331) (662) (752) (14,793)
Reportable segment assets TE2RIBEE 903,228 159,843 875,235 202,820 153,102 261,812 1,576,264 4,132,304
Including: B
Interest in joint ventures REEPENRE 7,695 - - - - - 86,571 94,266
Interest in associates REERRNRE 32,443 - - - - - - 32,443
Additions to property, plantand  EAFENE - BER
equipment segment assets REAHEE
during the year 205,160 1,494 6,443 1,712 1,552 1,658 1,437 219,456
Reportable segment liabilities TERIBEE 1,187,308 90,745 567,586 133,260 101,602 71,138 156,368 2,308,007
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Notes to the Financial Statements

PR ERAR MY EE

for the year ended 31 December 2016 #ZE 2016512 31 BIEFE

(B =1TRERASN - BUARKTTIIR)

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

3 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 3 WARDHEZH (&)

(CONTINUED)
(b) Segment reporting (Continued) (b) DE2F(E)
() Segment results, assets and liabilities (Continued) (iy WEE BERAEGBE)

Year ended 31 December 2015

BENF2A3NBLEE
Pearl River Bohai
Yangtze River Delta Economic Other
Hangzhou Delta Region Region  Rim Region Regions Total
R
M REAE hofE  SEENE Hiioe ast
Yangtze
River
Hangzhou Region
(exclude Yuhang (exclude Ningbo
Yuhang) Region Ningbo) Region
M REAR
(FafE (FafE
Et) BhE EiiE) ERE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR  ARETRT  ARETT ARETT  ARETT  ARSTT  ARETE  ARETR
Revenue from external customers  RENIZFFHA 823,502 166,876 917 464 231,165 132,419 383,946 2325 291867
Inter-segment revenue AEERA 8,774 86 3640 902 9 179 12 13,602
Reportable segment revenue TEHFBUA 832,276 166,962 921,104 232,067 132428 384,125 263,267 2,932,229
Reportable segment profit PES: Vi) | 39,71 21,517 117,049 10,269 21,034 53,000 33,662 296,302
Interest income FIBMA 1,595 45 269 73 13 110 80 2185
Interest expense B (9,254) - - - - - - (9,254)
Share of profits less (losses) of HEBEREFER (H58)
associates 1,784 - - - - - - 1,784
Share of profits less (losses) of HMESELEFER (H8)
joint ventures (266) - - - - - - (266)
Depreciation and amortisation FREREREH
for the year (8,711) (354) (1,980) (467) (163) (398) (568) (12,641)
Impairment of goodwill HEHE (649) - - - - - - (649)
Reportable segment assets PEE: ¥k 694,790 94,137 741,951 160,621 80,504 179,314 148,382 2,099,699
Including: B
Interest in joint ventures REELENRE 3,104 - - - - - - 3104
Interest in associates REERRRRE 11,946 - - - - - - 11,946
Additions to property, plantand  FRFENE - BER
equipment segment assets READEE
during the year 13,998 602 2,005 622 193 437 1,340 19,197
Reportable segment liabilities 2ESPEE 954,345 60,738 575522 129,882 50412 70432 74,320 1,915,651
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Notes to the Financial Statements

PR ERAR MY EE

for the year ended 31 December 2016 #ZE 201612 31 BIEFE
(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (BRS1T3EBASN - HUAREITIIR)

3 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 3 WARDSEEHR(EF)
(CONTINUED)
(b) Segment reporting (Continued) (b) DE2F(E)
(i) Reconciliations of reportable segment revenues, (i) ATE2HFH>BUKRA - 8% &
profit or loss, assets and liabilities EREBENHIE
2016 2015
2016 20154F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T AREETIT
Revenue N
Reportable segment revenue Al 2o EpU A 3,730,442 2,932,229
Elimination of inter-segment revenue %1445 28 A (8,449) (13,602)
Consolidated revenue (note 3(a)) LA WA (M3F3(@)) 3,721,993 2,918,627
2016 2015
2016 £ 20154
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T AREFT
Profit F5HE
Reportable segment profit Al 2R 5 2R F)E 444,242 296,302

Elimination of inter-segment profits  %f 44> &8 & )8 = -
Reportable segment profit derived KRB AREBEINILBEFH)

from Group's external customers Al 23Rk ZBFH 444,242 296,302
Listing expenses WX (25,654) (18,176)
Consolidated profit before taxation  [REiAiI4R A& FI)E 418,588 278,126
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PR ERAR MY EE

for the year ended 31 December 2016 #ZE 2016512 31 BIEFE

(B =1TRERASN - BUARKTTIIR)

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

3 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 3 WARDHEZH (&)

(CONTINUED)
2016 2015
2016 £ 20154F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®ET T AREFIT
Assets BE
Reportable segment assets A 2RO LEE 4,132,304 2,099,699
Elimination of inter-segment receivables $ 35 B0 FE 1 RRIB (860,289) (513,640)
Deferred tax assets IEIEF I A = 50,704 55,826
Consolidated total assets REEEE 3,322,719 1,641,885
2016 2015
2016 F 20154
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T ARETIT
Liabilities afE
Reportable segment liabilities AI2Z/oBaE 2,308,007 1,915,651
Elimination of inter-segment payables $7 85 9> B FE R E (860,289) (513,640)
Current tax liabilities ENERFi B B & 118,461 88,495
Deferred tax liabilities RIEFRIBEE 10,804 2,502
Consolidated total liabilities SABEE 1,576,983 1,493,008
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PR ERAR MY EE

for the year ended 31 December 2016 #ZE 201612 31 BIEFE

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (B S4TaERASN -

BIAARETTIIR)

4 OTHER REVENUE AND OTHER NET INCOME HW AR H b F W=

2016 2015
2016 5 20154F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T ARETIT

Other revenue Hagg A
Government grants (note (i) BB () 10,511 16,147
Others Hi 5,717 3,924
16,228 20,071

()  Government grants mainly represent unconditional

discretionary financial support from local municipal

government authorities.

() BRAFwBhE B a5 TR HREEE
HE BRI BB -

2016 2015
2016 % 20154
RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBFT
Other net income HithF W
Net loss on sale of property, HEME - HER
plant and equipment FBEBRTRE (619) (275)
Net realised gains on other HihoRMEECER
financial assets Wzt $5E 334 429
Net foreign exchange gains HNE R AR 4,237 -
3,952 154
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PR ERAR MY EE

for the year ended 31 December 2016 #ZE 2016512 31 BIEFE
(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (BRS1T3EBASN - HUAREITIIR)

5 PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 5 HAIRE
Profit before taxation is arrived at after (crediting)/charging: FERFED GEA) /B TS EEE
=
2016 2015
2016 F 20154
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARETT
(a) Finance costs (a) BERE
Interest income on bank deposits RITIF A2 WA 5,297 2,185
Interest expense on bank loans RITEFAEZH (6,964) (9,254)
Net finance costs BMEKAFHE (1,667) (7,069)
(b) Staff costs by EIRmK
Salaries and other benefits HFe REMER 1,097,631 1,136,164
Contributions to defined contribution FERT B
scheme (note (i) (BFEEG)) 163,227 150,451
1,260,858 1,286,615
Included in: BUNE
— Cost of sales — HEKAK 1,111,709 1,151,540
— Administrative expenses — {THFAX 149,149 135,075
1,260,858 1,286,615
()  Employees of the Group's PRC subsidiaries are required to () AEENTEKNELBEEESM
participate in a defined contribution scheme administered R 5 T BT B 1 N B e 9 FLE i
and operated by the local municipal government. The ETE - REBMPENBART
Group's PRC subsidiaries contribute funds which are BT TRARENEEFET
calculated on certain percentages of the employee salary Botbmsr s UBZEER
as agreed by the local municipal government to the scheme PRAEH) ©
to fund the retirement benefits of the employees.
The Group has no other material obligation for the payment Br bt EHERIN - AREEREE
of retirement benefits associated with these schemes B3 5% S5 51 81 KB B A SRR A& B A 3
beyond the annual contributions described above. WEAREME -
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PR ERAR MY EE

for the year ended 31 December 2016 #ZE 201612 31 BIEFE
(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (BRS1T3EBASN - HUAREITIIR)

5 PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION (CONTINUED) 5 BiarFE(E&E)

2016 2015
2016 £ 20154
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARET T AREEFIT
(c) Otheritems (c) HER
Impairment losses REEE
— trade and other receivables — B 5 RE M EWGRIE
(note 16(b)) (FFEE16(b)) 28,699 22,321
— goodwill —BE - 649
28,699 22,970
Depreciation and amortisation e LY 14,793 12,641
Operating lease charges KEHEE R 42,357 28,804
Auditors’ remuneration Z SR BN &
— audit services — BAZRTE 4,400 4,327
6 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 6 HFREBERRNAEBH
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
(a) Taxation in the consolidated statement of profit or (a) MEFEBEHZEXRAMBIENRE
loss represents:
2016 2015
2016 20154
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR¥T T AREEFIT
Current tax BNERRE1E
PRC corporate income tax AR ZERTIS R 108,199 81,605
Under-provision in respect of prior years B{EFEBET 2 2,178 -
110,377 81,605
Deferred tax IEFERLIE
Origination and reversal of iy Z R EE D
temporary differences 5,122 (8,548)
Withholding tax on the profits of the  ZNE[E A B} & A &) 5
Group's PRC subsidiaries (note (b)(ii)) ~ F@¥1: (i 5 (b)(ii)) 8,302 2,502
. 13428 (6,046)
123,801 75,559
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PR ERAR MY EE

for the year ended 31 December 2016 #ZE 2016512 31 BIEFE

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

6

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 6

(B = 1TRERASN -

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
(CONTINUED)

(b)

Reconciliation between tax expense and

BUAARETTIIR)

mEBEERNAES (&)

(b) BIARMXZEZEABRTEN

accounting profit at applicable tax rates: SABEZHIR
2016 2015
2016 % 20154
RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARETFT
Profit before taxation BRA5% AT A 418,588 278,126
Notional tax on profit before taxation, ZMHREFLH Al A& FEER 2
calculated at the rates applicable to MEAERBEAFEZ
profits in the tax jurisdictions BEBA () & (i)
concerned (note (i) and (ii)) 107,331 69,532
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses, TR 7 IS L -
net of non-taxable income HIBR FEREARTUA 1,698 1,593
Tax effect of deductible temporary (BA),/ REER AR
difference (utilised)/not recognised T ERI BT E (2,683) 885
Tax effect of unused tax losses KERZ AERAHEEEY
not recognised MG E 9,563 1,793
Utilisation of tax loss previously B 2 AT R ER 2 HIBEE
not recognized (1,735) (395)
Tax effect of share of results of JERBE R REELEER L
associates and joint ventures BT E (853) (351)
Withholding tax on the profits of the ~ AREEFR R B RARFEZ
Group's PRC subsidiaries (note (i) TR (B3 Gii)) 8,302 2,502
Under-provision in respect of BTFERETR
prior years 2,178 -
Actual tax expense BEBRMIBRAS 123,801 75,559
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PR ERAR MY EE

for the year ended 31 December 2016 #ZE 201612 31 BIEFE

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (B S4TaERASN -

A 2

6 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
(CONTINUED)

(b) Reconciliation between tax expense and
accounting profit at applicable tax rates:
(Continued)

(i)

(i)

(iii)

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman
Islands and the British Virgin Islands ("BVI"), the
Group is not subject to any income tax in the Cayman
Islands and BVI.

The income tax rate applicable to Group entities
incorporated in Hong Kong for the income subject to
Hong Kong Profits Tax during the reporting period is
16.5% (2015: 16.5%). No provision for Hong Kong
Profits Tax has been made as the Group did not earn
any income subject to Hong Kong Profits Tax during
the above periods.

PRC Corporate Income Tax
The Group’s PRC subsidiaries are subject to PRC
income tax at 25% unless otherwise specified.

Among the subsidiaries of the Group, the respective
tax authority in Hangzhou and Ningbo have approved
an income tax rate of 20% for Hangzhou Greentown
Vocational Training School and Ningbo Greentown
Advertisement Company Limited for the years ended
31 December 2016 and 2015.

PRC dividend withholding tax

According to the Implementation Rules of the
Corporate Income tax Law of the PRC, the Company's
subsidiaries in the PRC are levied a 10% withholding
tax on dividends declared to their foreign investment
holding company arising from profit earned
subsequent to 1 January 2008. In respect of dividends
that are subject to the withholding tax, provision for
withholding tax is recognised for the dividends that
have been declared, and deferred tax liability is
recognised for those to be declared in the
foreseeable future. As at 31 December 2016,
withholding tax of RMB10,804,000 has been provided
for in respect of the tax that would be payable on the
distribution of the retained profits of the Group's PRC
subsidiaries.
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BIAARETTIIR)

6 HmEBBERNAEHR ()

(b) BIARMXZEZEABRTEN
BBz HR - (8)

(i)

(i)

(iii)

RIZFSHS M IRE# 2B
EEBERFES])WAR
RHO NREBBAZRE
MHERENRBERES
HIFTIS R ©

REBEMAINEREE
AREHMAREEFE
R AR EBTERH R
516.5% (20154 : 16.5%) °
FR A AN £2 [ 5 b it B R A 4
BEVT M ABNE B FIBHR
BIRA - MAEBT ERE
BRSTRIELBE -

hESEMSH
BREEREBEN REBEBHSP
Eil g = NGB R TR T
25% B

B E2016%F K 2015F 12 A 31
HIEFE  EAEEHNE
NG W DNE- =k
16 B8 = B 1AV )N T A% 30k Bk 3
BIlBEREERGEHESR
R A &)t H 20% & AT 15 B Bt

PEREENS
BIE(PEAREFBE S ERT
BEOERE RN - §E 2008 F
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T ALEEREEIRRE MR
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Notes to the Financial Statements

PR ERAR MY EE

for the year ended 31 December 2016 #ZE 2016512 31 BIEFE
(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (BRS1T3EBASN - HUAREITIIR)

7 DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS 7 EEME
Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to section 383(1) of the RIEF A D aEM 58 383(1) 16 K A | (3
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies BEENREROIE2HM  EFM2
(Disclosure of Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation WEEIT -

are as follows:

Salaries,
allowances
and Retirement
Directors’ benefits Discretionary scheme 2016
fees in kind bonuses contributions Total
E A= 4:11 RIK 2016 %
E=He REVER HEfRA STEIMRR @t

RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTR AR®TR AREBTR AR®TR ARET:R

Chairman E35

Ms. Li Hairong ENL - 311 600 - 911
Executive directors HITEE

Mr. Yang Zhangfa BEERE - 250 432 70 752
Mr. Wu Zhihua REERE - 250 285 70 605
Mr. Chen Hao ETLE = 191 312 = 503
Non-executive directors *HTES

Mr. Shou Bainian SHELE 85 = = = 85
Ms. Xia Yibo E-R&L 85 - - - 85

Independent non-executive BIFHTES

directors
Mr. Tian Zaiwei AEREE 85 - - - 85
Mr. Poon Chiu Kwok BRERLE 85 - - - 85
Mr. Wong Ka Yi BERERHE 85 - - - 85

425 1,002 1,629 140 3,196
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PR ERAR MY EE

for the year ended 31 December 2016 #ZE 201612 31 BIEFE

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

7 DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(B = 1TRERASN -

BIAARETTIIR)

7 EEME(E)

Salaries,
allowances
and Retirement
Directors’ benefits Discretionary scheme 2015
fees in kind bonuses  contributions Total
e 2 RIK
B0 REDERN BIBTEAL PRI 2015 F AET
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETT AR®ETT ARETR
Chairman TE
Ms. Li Hairong ENESy - 323 600 - 923
Executive directors YITES
Mr. Yang Zhangfa BEEEE - 251 422 62 735
Mr. Wu Zhihua REFRE - 241 283 60 584
Mr. Chen Hao BERE - 63 104 - 167
- 878 1,409 122 2,409

(i)

(i)

On 27 November 2015, Mr. Yang Zhangfa, Mr. Wu Zhihua
and Mr. Chen Hao were appointed as executive directors,
Mr. Shou Bainian and Ms. Xia Yibo were appointed as non-
executive directors and Mr. Tian Zaiwei, Mr. Wong Ka Yi
and Mr. Poon Chiu Kwok were appointed as independent
non-executive directors.

There were no emoluments during the above periods paid
by the Group to the directors or any of the five highest paid
individuals set out in note 8 below as an inducement to join
or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of
office. In addition, no director has waived or agreed to
waive any emoluments during the above periods.

Discretional bonus is determined by reference to the
performance of individuals and the Group.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

PR ERAR MY EE

for the year ended 31 December 2016 #ZE 2016512 31 BIEFE

(B =1TRERASN - BUARKTTIIR)

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

8 INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS 8
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, three (2015:
three) are directors whose emoluments are disclosed in note 7.

The aggregate of the emoluments in respect of the other two

EeaHAL

hAEEmH ALTH = A015F : =
AN BES  HFEOMSHMIE7HE -
H#ME (20154F « M%) ATHEIS 2

(2015: two) individuals are as follows: HEIIWT -
2016 2015
2016 F 20154F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T AREETIT
Salaries, allowance, and benefits in kind e EBREYEN 336 324
Discretionary bonuses BIETEAL 1,567 741
Retirement scheme contributions RREFEIHE R 70 124
1,973 1,189
The emoluments of the above individuals with the highest FitsmFATHMEHENAT
emoluments are within the following bands:
2016 2015
2016 F 20154
Number of Number of
individuals individuals
AB A
Nil — HKD1,000,000 =% 1,000,000 7T 1 2
HKD1,000,000 — HKD1,500,000 1,000,000 7% 7T 2 1,500,000 7% 7T 1 -
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PR ERAR MY EE

for the year ended 31 December 2016 #ZE 201612 31 BIEFE

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (B S4TaERASN -

9 EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the profit
attributable to ordinary equity shareholders of the Company of
RMB285,540,000 (2015: RMB197,818,000) and the weighted
average of 2,367,637,290 ordinary shares (2015: 2,000,000,000
shares) in issue during the year, calculated as follows:

BIAARETTIIR)

BREF
FREARZGFDIRBEFARR R #ERR
B {6 A1 A R ¥ 285,540,000 7T (2015
F: AR#197,818,0007T) KB #H1TH
iR Hn#E I 15 812,367,637,290 8% (2015
4 : 2,000,000,000 %) 5t - BETEH
R :

Weighted average number of ordinary shares EERMEFEHH
2016 2015
2016 F 20154
Issued ordinary shares at 1 January R1TATREETERR
(note 24 (i) (B35 24()(0) 1,000,000,000 100,000
Effect of issue of shares upon M2015F8 H7 HEMH%E
Reorganisation on 7 August 2015 %’\%TTHXT/J-J\Z%;;
(note 24 (c)(i)) (PR EE 24(c)(0))) - 999,900,000

Effect of capitalisation issue on

5’32016¢7H 12 Elémbé’éﬁz

12 July 2016 (note 24 (c)(ii)) 2 (3 24(0i)) 1,000,000,000  1,000,000,000
Effect of issue of shares upon initial public 7201647 B 12BEX A
offering on 12 July 2016 (note 24 (c)(iii)) éé?ﬁ%ﬁﬂ%ﬁ%g
(PR &E 24(c)(iii)) 367,637,290 -
Weighted average number of ordinary R12 A 31 Bz B@RMETFHE
shares at 31 December 2,367,637,290 2,000,000,000

The weighted average number of shares in issue during the year
ended 31 December 2015 and 2016 is determined based on the
assumption that 2,000,000,000 ordinary shares of the Company
were in issue, comprising 1,000,000,000 shares in issue and
1,000,000,000 shares issued pursuant to a capitalisation issue, as
if these shares were outstanding throughout the year of 2015 and
the period from 1 January 2016 to the Listing Date.

There were no dilutive potential ordinary shares during the years

ended 31 December 2016 and 2015 and, therefore, diluted
earnings per share are the same as the basic earnings per share.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

PR ERAR MY EE

for the year ended 31 December 2016 #ZE 2016512 31 BIEFE
(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (BRS1T3EBASN - HUAREITIIR)

10 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 10 1% BERRHE
Office
Leasehold  equipment Motor Construction-
Buildings improvements and furniture vehicles Software in-progress Total
HE WAE
BF nE%E  RERZA "E B# ERIR @it

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR  ARBTL ARETR ARBTL ARETR ARBTL ARETR

Cost: AR
At 1 January 2015 R2015F181H 4,939 11,877 27,012 14,566 2,404 - 60,798
Additions RE - 6,320 5,541 1,948 4942 - 18,751
Acquisition of subsidiaries KB AT - - 50 - 39% - 446
Transferred from investment E&BRENE

properties 31,015 - - - - - 31,015
Disposals HeE - (697) (1,089) (306) - - (2,092
At 31 December 2015 R2015F12 8318 35,954 17,500 31,514 16,208 7,742 - 108,918
Additions RE 171,330 6,786 15,953 1,575 6,054 17,758 219,456
Disposals bl (3,980) - (1,019 (98) - - (5,097)
Disposal of subsidiaries HEMBAT - - (114) - (396) - (510)
At 31 December 2016 R2016F12A318 203,304 24,286 46,334 17,685 13,400 17,758 322,767

Accumulated depreciation: RFE :

At 1 January 2015 R201561A18 (994) (5,215) (14,562) (5,010) (1,392) - 27173)
Charge for the year FERY (1,577) (4,691) (4,390) (1562) (298) - (12,518)
Transferred from investment EEARENE

properties (6,998) - - - - - (6,998)
Written back on disposals & - 269 887 225 - - 1,381
At3! December 2015 WNSFRANA O . osn U80S 63 . 0o T B
At 1 January 2016 R2016F1A1H (9,569) (9,637) (18,065) (6,347) (1,690) - (45,308)
Charge for the year EEXH (1,65) (4,421) (5,400) (1,52) (1,789) - (14,793)
Written back on disposals &R [ 858 - 841 95 - - 1,794
Disposal of subsidiaries HEMBAR - - 3 - 8 - M
At 31 December 2016 R2016F12A31H (10,367) (14,058) (22,621) (7,780) (3,470) - (58,296)
Net book value: SRERE -
At 31 December 2016 201646128318 192937 10,228 23713 9,905 9,930 17,758 264,471
At 31 December 2015 R2015F128318 26,385 7,863 13,449 9,861 6,052 - 63,610
Buildings of the Group are all located in the PRC. No property, KREBRARFEHMNNRTE - AEBH
plant and equipment of the Group was pledged as collateral for myE .  BELRBEDETIEALRER
the Group's borrowings. EREHE R
As at 31 December 2016, certain buildings with carrying value of R2016FENANE ATEREAAR
RMB21,194,000 (2015: RMB22,667,000) had no property #91,194,000 7T(20154F = ARME 22,667,000
certificates due to the collectively-owner right, and buildings with TN EFREEEEMEREMGES
carrying value of RMB146,016,000 (2015: nil) were in the process REREE A AR 146,016,000 7T (2015 4F
of application of property certificates. B NEFEERREEMGREE
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Notes to the Financial Statements

PR ERAR MY EE

for the year ended 31 December 2016 #ZE 201612 31 BIEFE
(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (BRS1T3EBASN - HUAREITIIR)

11 INTEREST IN ASSOCIATES 1M1 REBEQATNES
2016 2015
2016 F 20154
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARMT ARBTT
Costs of investment, unlisted JE EHIRERK AN 22,704 11,448
Share of post-acquisition results, JE(R B8 245
net of dividends received (BHIBBWRE) 5,132 498
Share of reserve of associates FEALHS & A B 95 -
Goodwill [EES 4,512 -
32,443 11,946
The following list contains associates of the Group, all of which TRINEG AT EEREATED
are unlisted corporate entities whose quoted market price is not EWRE T AREFEBRLE AT ZER
available:
Form of Place of Effective interest
business incorporation Registered held by the Group
Name of associate structure and business capital At 31 December Principal activity
AR FEERANERER
L INCEE EBRBES  EXHE HUEE M12A31R TEXH
2016 2015
20165 20155
Yiwu State-owned Greentown Property  Incorporated the PRC RMB3,000,000 40% 40% Property management
Services Company Limited
EEMEAERANEREBERAF Rl hE ARH NERHE
3,000,0007T
Shanghai Xinhu Greentown Property Incorporated the PRC RMB5,000,000 40% 40% Property management

Services Company Limited
("Shanghai Xinhu")

LSRN EREAR AR ML e AR® NERH
([ LissmH)) 5,000,000
Shenyang Xinhu Greentown Property Incorporated the PRC RMB5,000,000 40% 40% Property management
Services Company Limited
BRI EREERAR ML i ARE NERH
5,000,0007C
Jiaxing Xinhu Greentown Property Incorporated the PRC RMB500,000 40% 40% Property management
Services Company Limited
REMABINERBEERAR Bl i AR NERH
500,000
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PR ERAR MY EE

for the year ended 31 December 2016 #ZE 2016512 31 BIEFE
(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (BRS1T3EBASN - HUAREITIIR)

11 INTEREST IN ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED) 11 REEQARRNERS (&)
Form of Place of Effective interest
business incorporation Registered held by the Group
Name of associate structure and business capital At 31 December Principal activity
LR rEBHANERESR
L NGRS ERERES  EXME HUEE M12A318 TEXRH
2016 2015

2016 % 20156

Quzhou Xinhu Greentown Services Incorporated the PRC RMB500,000 40% 40% Property management
Company Limited

BENFAANERBERAR Bl A i AR 5000007 MERY

Jurong Xinhu Baohua Conference Incorporated the PRC RMB100,000 40% 40% Meeting and banquet
Center Company Limited services

ARHHEEGETLERAT ML i AE#100,0007C eEREERE

Zhejiang Xinhu Greentown Property Incorporated the PRC RMB3,000,000 40% 40% Property management

Services Company Limited
("Zhejiang Xinhu")

LR REER AR ML i AR% nERY
(IsT 38 ]) 3,000,000
Hangzhou Xinhu Hotel Management Incorporated the PRC RMB1,000,000 20% 20% Hotel management
Company Limited
MMNFTAEEERBRAF Rl i AE® EEER
1,000,0007T
Hangzhou Lvman Technology Company  Incorporated the PRC RMB5,000,000 20% 20% L.T. services, Technical
Limited ("Lvman Technology") consultation
mMsERRARAR ([RBNE]) ML i AR® ERRIMRB KA
5,000,0007C
Zhejiang Greentown Uoko Asset Incorporated the PRC RMB30,000,000 40% 40% Investment consultant
Management Company Limited service, asset
("Greentown Uoko") (notel(i)) management service
MR ETEEERERAT ML i AR® REKART -
(T @% ) () 30,000,000 7 EEEERYE
Zhejiang Twin Cities cultural creation Incorporated the PRC RMB11,000,000 45% - Cultural exhibition,
Company Limited advertising
("Twin Cities Culture")(note(ii))
TSN L AIEBR AT ML e AR® XILBRE &S
(23 < DIGED) 11,000,000 7
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PR ERAR MY EE

for the year ended 31 December 2016 #ZE 201612 31 BIEFE

(B =1TRERASN - BUARKTTIIR)

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

11 INTEREST IN ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED) 11 REEQARRNERS (&)
Form of Place of Effective interest
business incorporation Registered held by the Group
Name of associate structure and business capital At 31 December Principal activity
LR rEBHANERESR
L NGRS ERERES  EXME HUEE M12A318 FEEHR
2016 2015
2016 20155
Zhangjiang Communications Investment  Incorporated the PRC RMB5,000,000 40% - Property management
Greentown Property Service Company
Limited (formerly known as “Zheyuan
Property Management Company
Limited”) (“Communications
Investment Greentown") (note (ii))
LR ERBERAR) Rl A i ARH nERY
(REFTNFERERAR") 5,000,000 7T
(Tt ) (B i)
Zhejiang Lvbang Property Services Incorporated the PRC RMBS,000,000 15% - Property management
Company Limited ("Lvbang PM")
(note (iv))
IR ANEERERRA Bl Av i AE® ESY
(IeamxER ) () 5,000,000 7
Zhejiang Lansong Supply Chain Incorporated the PRC RMB10,010,000 24% - Supply Chain
Management Company Limited Management
MIEEHRERERERAR ML hE AE® HEBER
10,010,000
* All the PRC entities are limited liability companies. The English translation of * FETRERAEREMETLA - RAAIBHEEH

the company name is for reference only. The official names of these BENHEEHRS2E - ZERRANEEERA
companies are in Chinese. e
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Notes to the Financial Statements

PR ERAR MY EE

for the year ended 31 December 2016 #ZE 2016512 31 BIEFE

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (B&

11

INTEREST IN ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED)

(i)

(i)

(i)

(iv)

In September 2015, the Group entered into a binding
cooperation framework agreement with Sichuan Uoko
Investment Management Co., Ltd., a Chinese online
apartment rental site headquartered in Chengdu, to set up
Greentown Uoko, in which the Group holds 40% equity

interests.

In February 2016, the Group entered into an equity transfer
agreement with Lancheng Property Construction
Management Group Co., Ltd., of which Mr. Song Weiping
is a major shareholder, to acquire its 45% equity interests in
Twin Cities Culture for a cash consideration of RMB1. As of
31 December 2016, the paid up capital of Twin Cities
Culture was RMB350,000. After the acquisition, Twin Cities
Culture became an associate of the Group. The excess of
Group's share of acquisition date fair value of the investee's
identifiable net assets over the cost of investment of
RMB46,000 was recognised in the consolidated statements
of profit or loss of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2016.

In June 2016, the Group entered into an equity transfer
agreement with a third party to acquire 40% equity interests
in Communications Investment Greentown for a cash
consideration of RMB2,276,000. After the acquisition,
Communications Investment Greentown became an
associate of the Group.

In November 2016, the Group entered into an equity
transfer agreement with a third party to acquire 15% equity
interests in Lvbang PM for a cash consideration of
RMBS5,250,000. As the Group has one fifth voting power in
the board of director of Lvbang PM, the Group accounted
for the investment as interest in associates.

All of the above associates are accounted for using the equity

method in the consolidated financial statements.

SITEERAIN

11

BUAARETTIIR)

REE N A ER (&)

0)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

R2015%9 A » REBHERIR
RER P ER ERERM)IERE
BEEBRABRARIRI TELNRIN
AEEZRER UMK AEEFE
A0% PR AT B R -

R2016%F2 7 REBHERFE
EREEEEERAR(RIEFE
EATERF)FILBREEZRD
& UERBARE I TEAER
XA BY45% IR AN 1 55 o B E 2016
F12A318  EWEHHE R
A AR 350,0007T © AUEEE -
S L AR EEREE AT
REE DU AR E A &
BIEEFEBDRERANZEEA
R# 46,000 TE AR EEE E 2016
FI2ANBIEFEMNGEEIERE
FIER ©

R2016F 6 A+ AEBEBIE =
FEIS s R - UWIReRE
A R 2,276,000 7T Y B8 32 #% 4% 3%
40% PR HE - J‘EALIAZE%& A EF K
BAEEREE QG

R2016F 1M A REBBEE=H
ARG LS REA
R ¥ 5,250,000 T R EE 4R FB W F
B 15%HE - AR AEBEHEFLIB
METEERESHEY 2 —RERE
REBEZILE AR ERZ AR
HME R o

FTE Liiit 2 RRS IR B ERIER GRS
ATEHRERNIE -
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Notes to the Financial Statements

PR ERAR MY EE

for the year ended 31 December 2016 #ZE 201612 31 BIEFE
(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (BRS1T3EBASN - HUAREITIIR)

12 INTEREST IN JOINT VENTURES 12 REELENES
2016 2015
2016 F 20154
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T ARBTT
Costs of investment, unlisted JE EHIRERK AN 96,313 4,133
Share of post-acquisition results, JE(R B8 245
net of dividends received (R E WAL E) (2,606) (1,588)
Goodwill [EES 559 559
94,266 3,104
Details of the Group's interest in joint ventures, which is RAEDEN G EER AR ARE
accounted for using the equity method in the consolidated EREEtENERMFBNOT

financial statements, are as follows:

Form of Place of Effective interest
business incorporation Registered held by the Group
Name of joint venture structure and business capital At 31 December Principal activity
TR FEERANERER
RELEEHR RBRBEA  EXHE HUEE M12A318 TEEH
2016 2015

2016 20154

Zhejiang Lvxi Property Management Incorporated the PRC RMB5,000,000 50% 50% Property management
Company Limited ("Zhejiang Lvxi")
MIRENEERERAR (HIRA]) MK e AR® NERH
5,000,000
Nantong Golden Butler Property Incorporated the PRC RMB500,000 50% 50% Property management

Management Company Limited
("Nantong Golden")

HRLEFNEEERERAR(EES)) HEMKL e AR® NERH
500,000
Shanghai Huamu Greentown Property Incorporated the PRC RMB1,000,000 50% 50% Property management
Management Company Limited
LA EREERAR Bl i AR NERH
1,000,000 7T
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Notes to the Financial Statements

PR ERAR MY EE

for the year ended 31 December 2016 #ZE 2016512 31 BIEFE
(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (BRS1T3EBASN - HUAREITIIR)

12 INTEREST IN JOINT VENTURES (CONTINUED) 12 REZEXEAER ()

Form of Place of Effective interest
business incorporation Registered held by the Group
Name of joint venture structure and business capital At 31 December Principal activity
ALK FREFANERESR
RELXER EREBEA EXnE AMEE M12A318 TEEH
2016 2015

20165 20154

Anhui Yanye Greentown Property Incorporated the PRC RMB3,000,000 60% 60% Property management
Management Company Limited
("Anhui Yanye") (note (i)

ZHEXANEREERLA Bl A i AE® nERY
(TRBER]) () 3,000,0007C
Jinan High-tech Greentown Property Incorporated the PRC RMB10,000,000 51% - Property management

Management Company Limited
("Jinan High-tech”) (note (ii))

BRI EERERAR Bl A i AE® nERY
(IR EH ) (M i) 10,000,000
Xiangtan Chengfa Greentown Property  Incorporated the PRC RMBS,000,000 51% - Property management

Service Company Limited
("Xiangtan Chengfa") (note (ii))

ETHEZADEREBERAF i AV i AR NERH
(CEmm ) () 5,000,0007C
Sensegain King (Hong Kong) Limited Incorporated Hong Kong HKD50 million - - Investment holding
("Sensegain King") (note (iii)) ordinary share
of HKD1 each
Rt (FE)ARRA Ballizav BB SOBEEAT REER
(Tt |) (P (i) BR1ETZ
gl
USD26,280,000 45.66%
preference
shares of
USD1 each
26,280,000% 7T
R1ETZ
Bk
* All the PRC entities are limited liability companies. The English translation of * FEBERATBEEREEAR - ARIEHEN
the company name is for reference only. The official names of these EVHEEHSE - ZERANEEEBA
companies are in Chinese. e
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PR ERAR MY EE

for the year ended 31 December 2016 #ZE 201612 31 BIEFE

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

12 INTEREST IN JOINT VENTURES (CONTINUED)

(i)

(i)

(i)

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group
acquired 60% equity interests in Anhui Yanye. According to
the articles of association of Anhui Yanye, a shareholder
resolution shall be valid and effective only if it has been
passed by all equity shareholders. The Group accounted for
the investment as interest in joint ventures.

Jinan High-tech and Xiangtan Chengfa were established by
the Group in 2016 and according to the articles of
associations of the entities, a shareholder resolution shall
be valid and effective when being passed by two- thirds of
equity shareholders. The Group accounted for the
investments as interest in joint ventures.

Sensegain King is a joint venture in which the Group has
joint control through its acquisition of 45.66% interest in its
preference shares on 20 December 2016. Sensegain King is
an investment vehicle structured for the purpose of
investing in common shares of an unlisted big-data
company in the United States. As at 31 December 2016, the
ordinary share capital of HKD50 million has not been paid
up and the preference shares of USD26,280,000 has been
fully paid up.

Furthermore, major operating decisions of Sensegain King
and the eventual disposal of the common shares of the big-
data company requires the unanimous approval of the
ordinary and preference shareholders.

As at 31 December 2016, Sensegain King has not made any
investment in the big-data company. According to a
shareholders agreement, the Group is only responsible for
the proportionate share of the profit and loss, assets and
liabilities arising from its indirect investment in the common
shares of the big-data company.

All of the above joint ventures in which the Group participates

are unlisted corporate entities with no quoted market prices

available.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

PR ERAR MY EE

for the year ended 31 December 2016 #ZE 2016512 31 BIEFE
(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (BRS1T3EBASN - HUAREITIIR)

12 INTEREST IN JOINT VENTURES (CONTINUED) 12 REZEXEAER ()

Summarised financial information of Sensegain King, adjusted for Be s MBEMZE (BEREstBETE
any differences in accounting policies, and a reconciliation to the MZEELHAR) MREUTEHRRERE
carrying amount in the consolidated financial statements, are ZHBRIEFENT

disclosed below:

2016 2015
2016 F 20154F
RMB’000 RMB‘000

AR®T R ARETT

Gross amounts of the Joint venture's EELEEWEE 2B

Current assets MBEE 189,600 -
Current liabilities mENAEE 18 -
Equity e 189,582 -
Included in the above current assets: STALIUREEE -

Cash and cash equivalents RERBFASEEY 189,600 -

Reconciled to the Group's interest in AEEREELERRNEE
the Joint venture
Gross amount of net assets of the Joint BEPENEEFEERE

venture 189,582 -
Carrying amount in the consolidated e B ER R REEDL
financial information 86,571 -
Aggregate information of joint ventures that are not individually BRIWTAEAHESLELEMGESER
material:
2016 2015
2016 F 20154
RMB'000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARETT

Aggregate carrying amount of individually #4R& BT I5RFT NERIZEE X

immaterial joint ventures in the BELENEREE

consolidated financial statements 7,695 3,104
Aggregate amounts of the Group's share ARNEEEHZEE S

of those joint ventures' losses from KEEANBENESRE

operations (1,018) (266)
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PR ERAR MY EE

for the year ended 31 December 2016 #ZE 201612 31 BIEFE
(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (BRS1T3EBASN - HUAREITIIR)

13 PREPAYMENTS 13 FEfRRE

2016 2015
20165 20154
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMT ARBTT
Prepayments for purchase of property, BEYE  BEREEDN
plant and equipment (note (i)) TETFRIE (T EE () = 130,525
Prepayments for acquisition of an W R B & N B TR RRIE
associate (note (ii) (B 3E (i) 3,459 -
Prepayments for purchase of unlisted BEIELMAHEE
available-for-sale equity financial IR &t T B8 7R
instruments (note (jii) (B 3E (i) 24,300 -
27,759 130,525
() According to the contract payment terms, prepayments of () WBESHNTER  wRBIE=

FEEMBNENTENRBARE
91,525,000 7T & A E& # 39,000,000
T B A 2014 K 2015F B H o
R2016FER S ZMER - FHA
BHNBEAFEERENE  BEK

RMB91,525,000 and RMB39,000,000 were made during 2014
and 2015 respectively in relation to the purchase of a new
office building from an independent third party. The
prepayment of the new office building was transferred to
property, plant and equipment upon taking delivery of the

property in 2016. & o
(i) On 21 October 2016, the Group entered into an agreement (i) M2016F10821H » KEEFTZ

ik - LWIRE)FE AR 3,459,000
TR RBR LS MEERER
N A% xR #E - KB B R20165F
12A31BATEN - ZBREER
201772 B 17 B5ERK »

for capital injection of RMB3,459,000 to acquire a 49%
equity interests of Anhui Shengan Greentown Property
Service Company Limited. The consideration was prepaid
before 31 December 2016. The acquisition was completed
on 17 February 2017.

R2016F 1A AKERE =)
RIMARE B - A E Jiaxin
Youfu Investment Partnership 50%
EREBKE - REBARK
24,300,0007T 2 72016412 A 31
HATFER - RAHmERH - 25
RS -

(i) In November 2016, the Group entered into a limited (iii)
partnership agreement with third parties for a purchase of
50% equity interests in the limited partnership of Jiaxin
Youfu Investment Partnership. A total amount of
RMB24,300,000 was prepaid before 31 December 2016. The
transaction has not been completed up to the date of this
report.
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PR ERAR MY EE

for the year ended 31 December 2016 #ZE 2016512 31 BIEFE
(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (BRS1T3EBASN - HUAREITIIR)

14 OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS 14 HttSmEE
2016 2015
2016 F 20154
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARMT ARBTT
Current B
— Financial assets classified as fair value — 98 &7 A FET AEZR
through profit or loss (“FVTPL") (MBRAFEFABRDH
(note (i) and 26(e)) S RVEE (PHFE () & 26(e) - 28,200
() These financial assets represent certain treasury products () ZEemEERBETERKER
issued by certain financial institutions and were purchased TUIREREHREENETES
at the end of each reporting period. Their fair values Eme BEATERSFERBHH
approximates to their carrying amounts as at respective HIFEEMESE - @R EEN2016
year end dates. The financial assets were disposed of FRAEE -

before the end of the year 2016 at that time.

The Group's exposure to credit and market risks and fair value REBNEE LT SRR & SEZATE
information relating to FVTPL are disclosed in note 26. STABRABN A FEE R E 261
= o
15 INVENTORIES 15 78
2016 2015
2016 F 20154
RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBFT
Properties held for sale BIEHEME 8,118 342
Consumables SR 1,946 1,703
10,064 2,045
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PR ERAR MY EE

for the year ended 31 December 2016 #ZE 201612 31 BIEFE
(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (BRS1T3EBASN - HUAREITIIR)

16 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 16 EZRHEMEKKIE
2016 2015
2016 F 20154
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARET T ARBFT
Trade and bills receivable B R IE R EWERE 375,375 257,808
Less: Allowance for impairment of trade & : B 5 fE U ZUAE N FE W Z 1% 5 (B
and bills receivables (note 16(b)) B 5 (M 3T 16(b)) (24,320) (23,156)
351,055 234,652
Other receivables H A FEUFRIE 102,026 60,473
Deposits and prepayments e RFER R 75,527 51,038
Amounts due from related parties JRE L 8 58 75 kI8 (P 3% 28(d))
(note 28(d)) 14,282 71,485
Amounts due from other staff FEUR E A B T 70E 3,776 2,304
546,666 419,952
Trade and bills receivables are primarily related to revenue B S EWIE K e =ik = EEIR Y
recognised from the provision of property services, consulting HE R~ AR & & R A E AR 75 P i
services and community living services. REU A AR o
Amount due from related parties are unsecured and interest-free. JEURRSE S IEEEIEE R s o
(a) Ageing analysis (a) BREEDAT
As of the end of the reporting period, the ageing analysis REEREEER - BIBWAFERE
of trade and bills receivable based on the date of revenue CEPNENESE Y A E PN AR
recognition and net of allowance for impairment of trade BB ) S 5 FE UG IA [ R SR
and bills receivable, is as follows: BERESITT -
2016 2015
2016 % 20154
RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBFT
Within 1 year —FR 309,440 206,811
1to 2 years —ZEWE 31,429 26,237
Over 2 years [GEI 10,186 1,604
351,055 234,652
Trade and bills receivable are due when the receivables are B 5 Wk TE I IR A R UG
recognised. THRMERIESE -
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PR ERAR MY EE

for the year ended 31 December 2016 #ZE 2016512 31 BIEFE

A

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (B S54TaERASN -

16 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(CONTINUED)

BUAARETTIIR)

16 BEZKEMEWRE ()

(b) Impairment of trade debtors and bills receivable (b)y BEZEWFEREKZERE
Impairment losses in respect of trade debtors and bills Z 5 W IE K R BB EE 1B
receivable are recorded using an allowance account unless TR A BEERFCEAR  BRIEARE
the Group is satisfied that recovery of the amount is BZ 49U O] & ZER) AT RE MR E - fE
remote, in which case the impairment loss is written off IR TR EE R E 5 R
against trade debtors and bills receivable directly (see note EREREEREEME(2EK
1(k)(0)). FE1000)) °
The movement in the allowance for impairment of trade FRE S ERZIE N EWEERE
and bills receivables during the year, including both specific RBeEs e (BiEER &L EEE I
and collective loss components, is as follows: D)

2016 2015

2016 F 20154

RMB’'000 RMB’000

ARBT T ARETFT

At 1 January ®1A1R 23,156 16,078

Impairment loss recognised R ZBIEEIE 28,699 22,321
Uncollectible amounts written off WEE AT U B & B8 (27,535) (15,243)
At 31 December »W12H31H 24,320 23,156
As of 31 December 2016, none of the trade debtors and R2016F12A31H  HEBSE
bills receivable was individually determined to be impaired WK IE K i W 22 % (8 B 78 TE AR E

(2015: RMB1,257,000). (20154 = AR¥1,257,0007T) °
(c) Trade debtors and bills receivable that are not () UEBENEZERRERE

impaired

The ageing analysis of trade debtors and bills receivable
that are neither individually nor collectively considered to
be impaired are as follows:

WRE
I (B Bl s AR ERER E 5
WoskIR K R RIB AR IR DATIA T -

2016 2015

2016 £ 20154

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥T T AREEFIT

Neither past due nor impaired ANEE TR ARIE = -
Less than 1 year past due AL —F 309,440 206,811
1 to 2 years past due BE—FERF 7,109 3,081
Over 2 years past due 160 BAFA 1A T A 10,186 1,604
326,735 211,496

An amount of RMB10,186,000 (2015: RMB1,604,000) is past
due over 2 years against which the Group held collaterals.
On that basis, management consider that no impairment
allowance is necessary.

AEERBBEMFEHRBARE
10,186,000 70 (20154 : A R #&
1,604,00070) #FH A HIF R - At
EEERADAELRERE -
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (B 51TaERASN

17

18

A 2

 UAAREITTIIR)

RESTRICTED BANK BALANCES 17 ZREIRITEER
2016 2015
2016 F 20154F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T ARETIT
Escrow funds held on behalf of REEFPEAENFTEEES (M3E21)
customers (note 21) 61,516 43,155
Cash collected on behalf of the owners’ RREZSWEMIES (FHiE21)
associations (note 21) 45,813 43,290
Restricted deposits PR 77 3K 6,816 4171
Deposits for utilities gEEERe 509 164
114,654 90,780

Escrow funds represents the advance cash deposits received
from buyers as requested by sellers to secure the transactions
during the provision of real estate agency services.

The Group has cash collection on behalf of the owners’
associations in its property services business. Since the owners’
associations are not allowed to open bank accounts, the Group
opens and manages these bank accounts on behalf of the
owners’ associations.

As at 31 December 2016 and 2015, restricted deposits represent
certain deposits in the designated banks as guarantees for the
execution of cleaning services.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

(@) Cash and cash equivalents comprise:

18

FEEE S RN EM B E IR RFHE
ZERBKREERBIMHR SR -

ok

AEBEEMERBEBTFRRELZ S
WERE - AREZE T ERRRITE
P ARBERREZEHARNREEZSF
RITERP -

PR20164F 2015412 A31 0 » &R
BRR/ETHERETRITERAITRER
ARFFEV BRI

RERREEEY
(a) RERFEFEYEE:

2016 2015
20165 20154
RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBFT
Cash in hand FEREE 1,297 793

Fixed deposits held at the bank with ~ REIHIR VR ={EA >
original maturity within three months HRITE HTF K 1,335,596 -
Cash at bank RITIFN 959,453 925,884
2,296,346 926,677

Less: Do

Restricted bank balances (note 17) ZMREIRITAEER (HFE17) (114,654) (90,780)
2,181,692 835,897

As of 31 December 2016, the Group’s cash and cash
equivalents in the amount of RMB1,077,359,000 (2015:
RMBB834,913,000) is denominated in RMB and is deposited
in banks in the PRC. RMB is not freely convertible into other
currencies and subject to the PRC’s Foreign Exchange
Control Regulations and Administration of Settlement, Sale
and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations.
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for the year ended 31 December 2016 #ZE 2016512 31 BIEFE

% ZATREBIS

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (x5

18 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
(CONTINUED)

1TA

BUAARETTIIR)

18 RERBAEEEY (&)

(b) Reconciliation of profit before taxation to cash (b) BRBIAIF HEKLEEKMEN
generated from operations: REHR:
2016 2015
2016 % 20154
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Liks3 AR¥ET T ARETT
Profit before taxation B B AT 418,588 278,126
Adjustments for: 4R EE
Depreciation of property, ME - WmENMERETE 5(c)
plant and equipment 14,793 12,518
Amortisation of investment S -bUES i 5(c)
properties - 123
Impairment of trade and BHNMHEMEKFIARME 5
other receivables 28,699 22,321
Impairment of goodwill [EESERED 5(c) - 649
Finance costs BE KA 5(a) 6,964 9,254
Investment income from other HEmMemEEMNRERA 4
financial assets (334) (429)
Interest income 2 A 5(a) (5,297) (2,185)
Share of profits less losses of DEEEE R R ARRUEE
associates (4,428) (1,784)
Share of profits less losses of DhEERENERER
joint ventures 1,018 266
Net loss on sale of property, MEWE - BERERED 4
plant and equipment B F5E 619 275
Loss on disposal of other HEE MR EEEE
financial assets = 89
Gain on acquisition of an W g & A RIUER
associate (46) -
Changes in working capital: BEESEE)
Increase in inventories FEE (8,019) (285)
Increase in trade and other B 5 R H b FEWGRIEE N
receivables (199,816) (49,228)
Increase in restricted bank 2R B IRITIF 5RIE 0
deposits (23,874) (33,243)
Increase in receipts in advance ~ FBWFIBNE 5 &
and trade and other payables Eoh e SRIE I AN 245,205 339,329
Cash generated from operations  #&& 15H & 474,072 575,796
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (BRS1T3EBASN - HUAREITIIR)

19 BANK LOANS 19 RITER
At 31 December 2016, the bank loans were repayable as follows: 20165124318 - SRITEREENT -
2016 2015
2016 F 20154
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARBT T ARETT
Bank loans-unsecured RITER— EEA
— Within one year or on demand — —FRRIRENK - 180,000
The effective interest rates of bank loans of the Group at 31 M2015F 128318 AEBEMIERTE
December 2015 ranged from 4.57% to 4.83% per annum. REBMER/NTEEL57%E4.83% °
Unsecured bank loans with a carry value of RMB180,000,000 as at MR2015F12A31H BREEAARE
31 December 2015 were granted by a bank under a short-term 180,000,000 7T &) X R ER1TE KTy i —
loan contract with a total facility of RMB200 million. RIPTRBRPERSRKL - A&
BAREKE20088TT -
20 RECEIPTS-IN-ADVANCE 20 FAWFIE
Receipts-in-advance represent prepaid property service fees B MR IR R 4 26 T W IR TR A W 3 AR T
received from property owners. -
21 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 21 BESRHEHMEMNKIE
2016 2015
2016 F 20154
Note RMB’'000 RMB’000
BEE ARET T ARBFT
Trade payables B S e IR (@) 118,964 119,602
— Billed trade payables —EREE S ENRIE 59,045 12,654
— Accrued trade payables — BB S ERN IR 59,919 106,948
Deposits e (b) 128,093 80,384
Other taxes and charges payable  H b fE R E & & H 49,871 38,154
Accrued payroll and other benefits ~ fEzt T & Rk E g 7R 185,270 160,059
Escrow funds held on behalf of REBZEFHENTEES
customers (note 17) (BFEE17) 61,516 43,155
Cash collected on behalf of the REREZSWEHES
owners' associations (note 17) (Ft3E17) 45,813 43,290
Other payables and accruals Efth T RIE X JE AT SRIE 60,450 39,313
Dividends payable FETIR B = 21,897
Receipts on behalf of residents REREFPWE A FIE (0) 285,040 247,302
Amounts due to related parties e REE 7T 5108
(note 28(d)) (Pt 3+ 28(d)) (d) 7,932 4,274
Amount due to a third party B E =B (e) - 50,000
942,949 847,430
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

21 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (CONTINUED)

(a)

Trade payables mainly represent payables arising from sub-
contracting services including cleaning, landscaping,
maintenance and security services provided by suppliers.

Deposits represent miscellaneous decoration deposits
received from property owners during the decoration
period.

Receipts on behalf of residents represent utility charges
received from residents on behalf of utility companies.

The amounts due to related parties are unsecured and
interest-free. Details of the amounts due to related parties
are set out in note 28.

As part of the Reorganisation, in December 2015, Hangzhou
Osmathus Garden Investment Management Company
Limited, a subsidiary of the Group, borrowed
RMB50,000,000 from Shanghai Yitang Landscape Design
Company Limited, an associate of the Group in 2012 and
2013, for the settlement of consideration due to the
shareholders of Greentown PM. The amount is unsecured,
interest-free and has no fixed terms of repayment. As at 31
December 2016, the amount has been repaid.

(B = 1TRERASN -

BUAARETTIIR)

21 ESZRHEMENKE(E)

(a)

BHRNFETIEEDBRBELE
MM FUR - BIEHERMRED
R RE - BERRLIRT

HE ARNEEMELEE T WEA
BRERE -

REREPUBNFESKRLAAE
ERAEPKEMEEREE -

ENEET REREERNREE -
BRAKS TR BHNHITE28 -

EREHEN—H D AEBENBA
AMMNEEREEEEBRAARN
2015F 12 A A S B 2012F &
2013FMEENT LS ESER
AR 2 A& A A R 50,000,000
T+ DAES S A AR ) ZE AR A AR 3R
FHRE - ZRBEAEER - 28K
B F KA - 72016 12 A 31
B ZRECHEEE-

As of the end of each reporting period, the ageing analysis REREHAR  REEZAHND
of billed trade payables, based on invoice date is as follows: HEBSENRIBZEREDTH
T -
2016 2015
2016 F 20154
RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARETFT
Within 1 month or on demand — (A BRI ESR 47,235 7,040
After 1 month but within 3 months —(EABE=EAXN 3,818 2,454
After 3 months =8 A% 7,992 3,160
59,045 12,654
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (BRS1T3EBASN - HUAREITIIR)

22 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 22 FREUBRRROAEHR
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
(a) Current taxation in the consolidated statement of (a) HEHMBRREBRANWENEHE
financial position represents: E:
2016 2015
20164 20154
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR¥T AREFTT
At 1 January, ®1A1H 88,495 71,864
Provision for current taxation F A HATR IR
for the year 110,377 81,605
Payments during the year FERN (80,411) (64,974)
At 31 December R12H31H 118,461 88,495
(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised: (b) ERIDELEHEEERER
()  Movement of each component of deferred tax () EEFHEEEREESHER
assets and liabilities o HEE
The components of deferred tax assets/(liabilities) REREE B AR R R AT
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial RHELEHEEE,(B8EF)
position and the movements during the year are as VAR ER D AR B AT
follows:
Provision Withholding
fortrade  Provision for tax on
Accrued and other onerous  undistributed
expenses receivables contract earnings Total
g R ME BEk R
BB WEE2EE RREZEE BRZENHR -

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR  ARETR  ARBTR  ARBTR  ARETR

Deferred tax arising from: ~ E4 U T&EMN

EEBE

At 1 January 2015 R20151A1H 35972 4,020 7,286 - 47,278
Charged/(credited) mi/(GEA) B

to profit or loss 5,352 4,257 (1,061) (2.502) 6,046
At 31 December 2015 2015612 A31H 41,324 8277 6,225 (2,502) 53,324
At 1 January 2016 R2016%1A1R 41,324 8,277 6,225 (2,502) 53,324
(Credited)/charged to A/ (NB) B

profit or loss (4,411) (2,197) 1,486 (8,302) (13,424)
At 31 December 2016 R2016%12A31H 36,913 6,080 7,71 (10,804) 39,900
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (BRS1T3EBASN - HUAREITIIR)

22 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 22 ZREUBMRRKRWAAEH (FE)
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
(CONTINUED)
(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised: by ERAEEREEERERE
(Continued) (%)
(ii) Reconciliation to the consolidated statement of (i) HEFERARNYEER

financial position

2016 2015
2016 F 20154F
RMB’000 RMB‘000

AR¥®T R ARETT

Net deferred tax asset recognised 43 & BI#AR R R ER Y

in the consolidated statement of BRI FEE

financial position 50,704 55,826
Net deferred tax liability recognised 474 BA S AR R R FERH

in the consolidated statement of RERIEFEE

financial position (10,804) (2,502)
39,900 53,324

(c) Deferred tax assets not recognised () REREEBEEE
Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of ABLLATIE B ERIBETR IR B E -

the following items:

2016 2015

2016 £ 20154

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®ET T AREFIT

Unused tax losses REYBIREEE 63,718 26,087

In accordance with the accounting policy set out in note  iRIEKIsF1(N I WS KE  AEERRE
1(r), the Group has not recognised deferred tax assets of F B A G kB BEHAEAEEERIARK
RMB12,679,000 (2015: RMB6,522,000) in respect of unused 12,679,000 7T (20154 = A K # 6,522,000 7T )
tax losses of certain subsidiaries. The directors consider itis EEFHIEEE - EER AT A LER @RS
not probable that future taxable profits against which the  F)sk4 @ & & A2 B /2 8] &) B &) ok 2 g 2 53 7158
losses can be utilised will be available in the relevant tax LK {548 -

jurisdiction and entity.
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22

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

(B = 1TRERASN -

BIAARETTIIR)

22 HEMBRRROFEHR (&)

(CONTINUED)

(c) Deferred tax assets not recognised (Continued) () KRERELZEBEEEH)
Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations in the PRC, RIBEPEBBERIOER NS
the unrecognised tax losses at the end of the reporting HIRE R ERIAE BN UATF
period will expire in the following years: EJEW

2016 2015
20165 20154
RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARBTFT
2016 20164 - 1,464
2017 2017 &F 927 5,320
2018 2018 4F 2,444 3,909
2019 2019 6,780 8,222
2020 2020 FF 2,974 7,172
2021 20214 12,355 -
25,480 26,087

The tax losses for the Hong Kong subsidiaries do not expire RBRITEBRBEN - BEME

under current Hong Kong tax legislation. NEIBIEEE g ER

(d) Deferred tax liabilities not recognised (d) REFELHREBESE
Deferred tax liabilities of RMB30,368,000 (2015: R2016F12A31H » TEHAARE
RMB7,506,000) were not recognised in respect of the 10% B A B B A B8 9 Kk AR E
PRC dividend withholding tax that would be payable on the B A R % 303,680,000 7T (2015 4F
distribution of retained profits of RMB303,680,000 as at 31 A R #75,059,000 7T ) M 78 2 |9
December 2016 (2015: RMB75,059,000) in respect of the 10%H B B FEMHEERAREK
Group's subsidiaries in the PRC as the Company controls 30,368,0007C (20154 = A R ¥
the dividend policy of these subsidiaries and it was 7,506,000 7T ) HREFIEEE - R
determined that it was probable that these profits would E R AR RIEHIZ E M B A R e ik
not be distributed in the foreseeable future. BHE MEEREEZENEER

BETNEER AR DK ©
23 PROVISIONS 23 #&1E
RMB’000
ARETT

At 1 January 2016 201651 18 36,335

Provisions made Bt REE 24,554

Provisions utilised EBARE (29,340)

At 31 December 2016 M20165F12 431 H 31,549

Less: Amount included under “current liabilities” B SATRBEE] HEE (19,890)

11,659

AEEERETAREEHERENERR L
&R - ERFRRAKRRMNRETCA
BRIERRE IR W) 1R 4 -

The Group were in contracts with certain communities that were
operating at a loss. The obligation for the future payments of
these communities, net of expected management income, has
been provided for.
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24 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS

(a)

Movements in components of equity

The reconciliation between the opening and closing
balances of each component of the Group’s consolidated
equity is set out in the consolidated statement of changes
in equity. Details of the changes in the Company's
individual components of equity between the beginning
and the end of the year are set out below:

Company

(B = 1TRERASN -

BUAARETTIIR)

24 BEX - RERRE

(a) EHBHBD
AEEGAE
REREERRGA RSB E -
A ) B HE 2 B 5 B4 ) 48 o B

Share
capital

&

Note RMB'000

=% 8P B A

BB FBERFIMT
E/N
Share  Exchange  Retained
premium reserve  earnings Total
RtEE EXHE REER At
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000

WeE ARBTR ARMTR ARBTRT AR%TR ARETR

Balance at 1 January 2015 R2015%1 B 1R z&# - - - - -
Changes in equity for 2015: 2015 £ 8 :
Total comprehensive income & 2EARA

for the year - - - - -
Shares issued in connection  FLEMEMETZ R

with the Reorganisation 24(c)(i) 8 - - - 8
Balance at 31 December R2015512A310K

2015and 1 January 2016 2016518182 &4 8 - - - 8
Changes in equity for 2016: 2016 FREXZE :
Total comprehensive income 4 [E 2 EAMA

for the year - 47,013 463 47,476
Capitalisation issue BREET 24(c)(ii) ®)] = - -
Issue of ordinary shares by RERAREEREN

initial public offering, L@ MRETRAR

net of issuance costs 24(c)iii) 7 1,265,833 - - 1,265,840
Balance at 31 December R2016%1283102

2016 &5 24 1265824 47,013 463 1,313,324

201653 HRBEEBRAR 201



Notes to the Financial Statements

PR ERAR MY EE

for the year ended 31 December 2016 #ZE 201612 31 BIEFE

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (BRS1T3EBASN - HUAREITIIR)

24 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 24 EX - RERRE (&)
(CONTINUED)
(b) Dividends (b) BE
(i) Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the iy ENENAATERBRRZ

Company attributable to the year:

BB

2016 2015
2016 5 20154F
RMB’000 RMB‘000

AR®T R ARETTT

Final dividend proposed after R AR B B
the statement of financial position  ##/& &) < HA M B &%
date of RMB0.036 (2015: Nil) BB ARRE0.0367T
per ordinary share (20154 : #%)

99,939 -

The final dividend proposed for shareholders’
approval after the end of the reporting period has not
been recognised as a liability at the end of the
reporting period.

(i) Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the
Company attributable to the previous financial year,
approved and paid during the year:

No dividend attributable to the previous financial year

was approved and paid in 2016 (2015:
RMB230,000,000).
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24 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 24 EXR - RERRE (&)
(CONTINUED)
(c) Share capital () B
Issued share capital BRTRA
2016 2015
2016 F 20154F
No. of No. of
shares shares
B & e
('000) RMB'000 ('000) RMB'000
(FR) AR®TR () AR®ETT
Ordinary shares, ERITRBEEER :
issued and fully paid:
At 1 January ®1A1H 1,000,000 8 100 -
Shares issued (note 24 (o)(i) = 3{TAXD
(BT 3 24(c)(i)) - - 999,900 8
Capitalisation issue BT
(note 24 (c)(ii)) (B 5E 24(0)ii)) 1,000,000 9 - -

Issuance of ordinary shares B X AFEERIEIT
upon initial public offering & A% (B 5T 24(c)(ii))

(note 24 (c)(iii) 777,776 7 - -
At 31 December R12H31H 2,777,776 24 1,000,000 8
(i)  Issuance of shares (i) BITRE

On 24 November 2014, the Company was MR2014FE 11 A248 - &NAF]
incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an exempted RIERSHEADIRK R
company with limited liability. The initial authorised EHRER AR - ARRVG
share capital of the Company was HK$380,000 divided VA TE IR A 4 380,0008 7T+ 5
into 38,000,000,000 shares of HK$0.00001 each and /£38,000,000,000 i% & A% M &
issued 100,000 shares of HK$0.00001 each. 0.000017%8 7T B f% 19 K 3 17
100,000 % & P [ {E.0.00001 78
TLEIRR AR -
The Company issued additional 96,078 shares and RRAFIE P RIR2015F8 A
999,803,922 shares of HK$0.00001 each on 7 August 78 &201548 208 # 17
2015 and 20 August 2015 respectively. Consequently, 96,078 B% }2.999,803,922 &
HK$10,000 (equivalent to RMB8,000) was credited to f% 118 0.00001 B TTHI AR5 ©
share capital. & it - 10,0008 7T (FHE R A
R#¥8,0007T) B ARSI AR
7N o
On 7 August 2015, Hangzhou Osmanthus Garden 20158 A7 H » INAFIHY
Investment Management, a subsidiary of the M A RMMNEIERRE BIR
Company, acquired 100% equity interests in ARSI NG e 2578 SR 2 U
Greentown PM from Greentown Holdings and Ms. Li A7 0 3 AR 75 79 100% AR A 8
Hairong, for a consideration of RMB50,000,000 which = 0 B & AR 50,000,000
was recorded as a reduction from the Group’s equity 7T ABRERRARREAMA
as a result of this Reorganisation. As a result of the REEREHR o ZIEER
acquisition, Greentown PM became a subsidiary of AR W 2 RIS R A NS B B9 BT
the Group. BAF e
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A 2

24 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(CONTINUED)

Share capital (Continued)
Issued share capital (Continued)

(c)

(i)

(iii)

Capitalisation of shares

Pursuant to the written resolutions of the Company's
shareholders passed on 13 June 2016, the directors
were authorised to allot and issue a total of
1,000,000,000 shares, by way of capitalisation of the
sum of HK$10,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB9,000) standing to the credit of the share
premium account of the Company, credited as fully
paid at par to the shareholders as appearing on the
register of members of the Company at the close of
business on the business day immediately preceding
the Listing date in proportion to their respective
shareholdings. The capitalisation issue was completed
on 12 July 2016 in connection with the Listing.

Issuance of ordinary shares upon initial public
offering

On 12 July 2016, the Company issued 777,776,000
shares with par value of HK$0.00001, at a price of
HK$1.99 per share by initial public offering. Net
proceeds from such issue amounted to
RMB1,265,840,000 out of which RMB7,000 and
RMB1,265,833,000 were recorded in share capital and
share premium respectively.
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BIAARETTIIR)

24 BX - REERRKRE ()

e NG
BRITRAE(E)

(c)

(ii)

(iii)

BREEXE

RIBEAR DRI ER2016F6
AR1I3EBAMNEERZSR
EFEEEEBB AT
1934 {8 BR A9 #E R %8 10,000 78
TL(FRE R H ARE9,0007T)
BARE - AR ERER £
MHERME XA EERRE
HEREFRBINARERES
MEBOFEEAEEESS
ROREAE L7 - SR (A AL 2 &
%% 17 & $£1,000,000,000 f& A
BRAEGS R - st T
EITHBE AR EEITE R 2016
F£7 1285 -

BAXANHRERRITEER

MN2016F7 A128 » KNRQ A
BEBREHRRAEES T
777,776,000 % & §£1.997% 7T
79 1% 15 (4 J% T {8 0.00001 78
JL) o BT S EIEFE
A N R #1,265,840,000 7T
Heh AR#E7,0007T R AR
1,265,833,000 7T 7 Al 51 A B
KRBT (E ©
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24 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(CONTINUED)

(d) Nature and purpose of reserves

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Share premium

Share premium represents the difference between the
total amount of the par value of shares issued and the
amount of the net proceeds received from the public
offering in July 2016. Under the Companies Law of the
Cayman lIslands, the share premium account of the
Company is distributable to the shareholders of the
Company provided that immediately following the
date on which the dividend is proposed to be
distributed, the Company would be in a position to
pay off its debts as they fall due in the ordinary course
of business.

PRC statutory reserve

According to the PRC Company Law, the PRC
subsidiaries of the Group (excluding foreign
investment enterprises) are required to transfer 10%
of their profit after taxation, as determined under the
PRC Accounting Regulations, to the statutory surplus
reserve until the reserve balance reaches 50% of their
registered capital.

The transfer to this reserve must be made before
distribution of a dividend to shareholders.

Statutory reserve fund can be used to cover previous
years' losses, if any, and may be converted into share
capital by the issue of new shares to shareholders in
proportion to their existing shareholdings or by
increasing the par value of the shares currently held
by them, provided that the balance after such issue is
not less than 25% of the registered capital.

Other reserve

Other reserve represents the surplus/deficit between
the consideration paid/received and the net assets of
a subsidiary acquired/disposed regarding the
transactions between the Group and the non-
controlling interests that do not result in a loss of
control.

(B = 1TRERASN -

BUAARETTIIR)

24 BX - REERRKRE ()
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(ii)

(iii)
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for the year ended 31 December 2016 #ZE 201612 31 BIEFE
(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (BRS1T3EBASN - HUAREITIIR)

24 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 24 EX  RHERKRE (&)
(CONTINUED)
(d) Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued) (d) FRENMHERARE)
(iv) Special reserve (iv) 4RI E

Contribution from equity shareholders of a subsidiary B B A B REZS AR B B AT
represents the fair value of net assets of Hangzhou M 4RI 1= BT AR A 5
Greentown Information and Technology Company ([#BEE N FEEANT
Limited ("Greentown Telecommunication”) over H ' NEBR2015%F10 A5
which the Group obtained control in October 2015 BER A A EVE N B 4
through structured contracts. ) HE o

On 5 April 2016, termination agreement on the R2016FE4 A58 » HuMAETE
structured contracts was entered into among BEEEE - W EERE
Hangzhou Osmanthus Garden Investment MEZSR AT | R
Management, Greentown Telecommunication and its AWM BRI IS
equity shareholders with nil consideration. Upon % BEMTEAEETEE
signing the termination agreement, the directors B AZ B 1 Ao
conclude that the Group no longer has power of o B 2016F 4 A5H#E A
control over Greentown Telecommunication. NAITBEEZEAE ANELEZ A
Accordingly, the Company has ceased to consolidate MESE BERAE- - &M
the results, assets and liabilities of Greentown =B RECES A ABE B
Telecommunication since 5 April 2016. The net assets 20164 A5 BRIFEEAA
of Greentown Telecommunication of RMB6,536,000 R 6,536,0007T © ABRAR
as at the date of deconsolidation on 5 April 2016 were VERSRI = BREZSRR B O R o

accounted for as a deemed distribution to the equity
shareholders of Greentown Telecommunication.

(v} Exchange reserve (v) ERHE
The exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange EHREEEERENBRE
differences arising from the translation of the financial BINETE 2 SR TES
statements of operations outside the mainland China. ZEHBENEZRE - ZHER
The reserve is dealt with in accordance with the WM R () B 2 & R BUR
accounting policies set out in note 1(u). TERRIE °
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24 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(CONTINUED)

(e)

Capital management

The Group's primary objectives when managing capital are
to safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern, so that it can continue to provide returns for
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders, by pricing
services commensurately with the level of risk and by
securing access to finance at a reasonable cost.

The capital structure of the Group consists of bank loans
less cash and cash equivalents, and equity of the Group,
comprising issued share capital, retained profits and other
reserves.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure
periodically. Based on the operating budgets, the directors
consider the cost of capital and the risks associated with
each class of capital and balances its overall capital
structure through the payment of dividends, new share
issues as well as the issue of new debt or the redemption of
existing debts.

A subsidiary of the Group is subject to externally imposed
capital requirements in 2015. There was no non-compliance
of such capital requirements as at 31 December 2016. There
is no externally imposed capital requirements in 2016.

(B = 1TRERASN -

BUAARETTIIR)

24 BX - REERRKRE ()

(e)

ErxERE

AEEERNERNTIEZARARE
AEBFBEEHRES  AEBRR
AR TS 1 [ e 7K S AR 7R O T (B KA
BEKARISHE - #ERBIRIE
HEH LSBT ERMANE

AEENEARRBEBRIERITETR
REeRBRSEEY  MAKERE
S BRDETEA  REFBRE
fl &

ARREETHBAEARE - R
BRERE  EEEREANAR
HEBREABRNER - FBIK
MRS~ BITHRRBITHER X
BORAER  FEEEBEARR
e

AEB—RWBRRR2015F X
SNERE AR B KFATIRR o 1220164
12A318 BB EBEERNERN
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

25 DISPOSALS OF SUBSIDIARIES

(a)

Disposal of Greentown Telecommunication
Greentown Telecommunication was consolidated by
Hangzhou Osmanthus Garden Investment Management, a
subsidiary of the Company on 10 October 2015 through the
structured contracts entered into among Hangzhou
Osmanthus Garden Investment Management, Greentown
Telecommunication and its shareholders, Mr. Yang Zhangfa
and Ms. Li Hairong. On 5 April 2016, termination agreement
on the structured contracts was entered into among
Hangzhou Osmanthus Garden Investment Management,
Greentown Telecommunication and its shareholders with
nil consideration. The structured contracts were no longer
effective since then. Management of the Group concludes
that the Group no longer has power of control over
Greentown Telecommunication and the consolidated
financial statements of the Group has ceased to consolidate
the financial information of Greentown Telecommunication
after 5 April 2016 accordingly.

The net assets of the subsidiary at the date of disposal were
as follows:

(B = 1TRERASN -

BIAARETTIIR)

25 HEWBATR

(a)

HEZBER

20154610 B10 8 » N EIEE
KREER  BWEERERE(HG
ERAEERTFEZ L) BB
BREAK  BWEBHEHARATR
MEBARMMNELEREERE -
2016F 4 A58  MIMNERLEEE
EE - BRMEERERER L EE
RIEREASHNAER - At - B8
RRANEERR - AEEERE
RE AEETBEHRESRMEED
THIE - FL  NEBMERE I
MERN2016F4A5BETBEE
ANBRERIE BB RSB RS

RHERH  MBARMNEERE
LI

RMB'000
ARBFT
Property, plant and equipment M -~ BE MEE 499
Trade and other receivables B 5 R E A EIGIE 5,603
Cash and cash equivalents ReERBSEEY 454
Trade and other payables B 5 LA FRIE (20)
6,536
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary HEWBERREBE

Consideration received ERE -
Net assets disposed of EHENEEFE (6,536)
(6,536)

Net cash outflow arising on disposal: HEEAMNESRLFE
Consideration received R E -
Less: Cash and cash equivalents disposed of W BEHENRERBSEEY (454)
(454)
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(B =1TRERASN - BUARKTTIIR)

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

25 DISPOSALS OF SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

(b) Disposal of interests in Zhejiang Greentown Property

25 HLEMHELR (#E)
(b) HENTHANERREEREE

Community Service Company Limited (“Greentown
Community Service”) over which the Company still retain

control after disposal

On 20 September 2016, the Group disposed of 10% of its
equity interests in Greentown Community Service to
Zhejiang Langdao Trade Company Limited at a cash
consideration of RMB200,000 and after this transaction, the
equity interests of Greentown Community Service held by
the Group decreased to 90%. Disposal loss of RMB484,000
from this transaction is recorded in other reserve.

The net assets of the subsidiary at the date of partial

BAm ([ EEERY ) #x -
ERARBHEA I

R201659A208 + & & @ A
Zhejiang Langdao Trade Company
Limited i & H 7 4% 9% B & AR 75
0%k E RERERARK
200,0007C - HRZRXR 5% K&
ERFEGHNERRERERS
90% c ZRXRHEEMEEBHEAR
# 484,000 7TAT A A # ©

REDHERS  MBARMEE

disposal were as follows: SHEWT
RMB’000
AREEFIT
Interest in associates R & A RIA S 3,210
Property, plant and equipment M - BE REE 392
Inventories FE 943
Trade and other receivables B 5 REM WA 9,206
Cash and cash equivalents BeMREEEY 20,411
Trade and other payables B 5N EMENFIR (27,325)
6,837
Loss on partial disposal of a subsidiary g R B ST B A FE 1S -
recognised in equity:
Consideration receivable FEWAR(E 200
Carrying value of remained equity interests R T IRA R A ARE A 6,153
Net assets disposed of BHEMNEEFE (6,837)
(484)
Net cash inflow arising on disposal: HEEFNRSRAFRE
Consideration receivable FEWARE 200
Less: Consideration not received yet B RRAE (200)
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26 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate, currency risks and fair
value risks arises in the normal course of the Group's business.

The Group's exposure to these risks and the financial risk
management policies and practices used by the Group to
manage these risks are described below.

(a) Credit risk

The Group's credit risk is primarily attributable to trade and
other receivables. Management has a credit policy in place
and the exposures to these credit risks are monitored on an
ongoing basis. Management reviews the recoverable
amount of each debtor at the end of each reporting period
to ensure that adequate impairment losses are recorded for
irrecoverable amounts.

The Group has no concentrations of credit risk in view of its
large number of customers. The maximum exposure to
credit risk is represented by the carrying amount of each
financial asset in the consolidated statement of financial
position.

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the Group's
exposure to credit risk arising from trade and other
receivables are set out in note 16.

(b) Liquidity risk

The Group's management reviews the liquidity position of
the Group on an ongoing basis, including review of the
expected cash inflows and outflows and maturity of loans
and borrowings in order to ensure that it maintains
sufficient reserves of cash and adequate committed lines of
funding from major financial institutions and/or from other
Group companies to meet its liquidity requirements in the
short and longer term.

The following tables show the remaining contractual
maturities at the end of the reporting period of the Group's
financial liabilities, which are based on contractual
undiscounted cash flows (including interest payments
computed using contractual rates or, if floating, based on
rates current at the end of the reporting period) and the
earliest date the Group can be required to pay:
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26 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 26 BEEBEEREMIANLD

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS B (&)
(CONTINUED)
(b) Liquidity risk (Continued) (b) REBEESRM(E)
2016
2016%
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
ARATARERY
More than
Within More than 2 years
1yearoron 1yearbut less butless  More than Carrying
demand  than2years than 5 years 5 years Total amount
—FR BB-F BEMF
FEEXR RS BRER BELF A REE

RMB'000  RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTR  ARBTR ARBTR ARBTR ARBTR  ARETR

Trade and other payables 25 R At fEH3IE 942,949 - - - 942,949 942,949
2015
015%
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
ANRTRREL RN

More than

Within More than 2 years
Tyearoron 1yearbutless but less More than Carrying
demand  than2years  than 5years 5 years Total amount

—FR BE—F pebeliks
HREX BREX ERER B@DF @t KafE

RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT  ARBTL ARBTL ARETL ARBTT ARETR

Bank loans RITEH 186,256 - - - 186,256 180,000
Trade and other payables B 5 K EtEHFA 825,533 - - - 825,533 825,533
1,011,789 - - - 1,011,789 1,005,533
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26 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 26 BEEBEEREMIANLD

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS B (4E)
(CONTINUED)
(c) Interest rate risk () FIZEE Pz

The Group's interest rate risk arises primarily from cash and
cash equivalents, restricted cash and interest-bearing loans.
The Group manages its interest rate exposure by
maintaining a prudent mix of fixed and variable rate
borrowings.

The Group is not exposed to significant interest rate risk for
cash and cash equivalents or restricted cash because the
interest rates of cash at bank are not expected to change
significantly.

The following table details the interest rate profile of the
Group's total borrowings:

$’¥IE‘J%|J“‘“’J—H5§I§XEIE/£&
ReEEY XBRHRERABE
Ko ARBEFBERFFERNTEENR
FEBREAEERENEAR -

AEBELEARE RIREFEYL
X PR IR @ AR E AR R E R

BT R BRI TR HE TR A
EPN

TRAFMLASEBIE AR X
e

2016 2015
2016 % 20154
Effective Effective
interest interest
rate rate
vk BEEFI=
% RMB’'000 % RMB'000
% AR®TR % AREBFIT
Fixed rate borrowings: EEMER
Bank loans BITER 4.57%~
- - 4.83% 180,000
Total net borrowings B - 180,000
Net fixed rate borrowings &8 1%?7\/%%@1515 N
as a percentage of total FEFEAS
net borrowings - 100%
(d) Currency risk (d)y EHEps

The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily through
sales and purchases that are denominated in a currency
other than the respective functional currencies of Group
entities.

The Company, the BVI subsidiary and the Hong Kong
subsidiaries’ functional currency is Hong Kong Dollar (HKD).
Their businesses are principally conducted in HKD. The
Group's PRC subsidiaries’ functional currency is RMB and
their businesses are principally conducted in RMB. The
Group considers the currency risk to be insignificant.
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26 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

(e) Fair value measurement

(i)

Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair

value

Fair value hierarchy
The following table presents the fair value of the

Group's financial instruments measured at the end of

the reporting period on a recurring basis, categorised

into the three-level fair value hierarchy as defined in

HKFRS 13, Fair value measurement. The level into

which a fair value measurement is classified is

determined with reference to the observability and

significance of the inputs used in the valuation

technique as follows:

Level 1

valuations:

Level 2

valuations:

Level 3

valuations:

Fair value measured using only
Level 1 inputs i.e. unadjusted
quoted prices in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities at the
measurement date

Fair value measured using Level 2
inputs i.e. observable inputs which
fail to meet Level 1, and not using
significant unobservable inputs.
Unobservable inputs are inputs for
which market data are not available

Fair value measured using
significant unobservable inputs

(B = 1TRERASN -

BUAARETTIIR)

26 BREREEREMIAND

FE ()

(e) AFEFE

(i)

BAFEMEZERMEER
&

RFEER
TRENANEERREHK
RIEFHEREENATEFE
MEMTAE INBEREE
B REERFEIRIAF
Bt &R EN=EXFE
F&o BRFEFEDEN
ERTE2EL T HERMN
P P 8 A BB O R LR 1 A
E-PNEE

F—R
REE

AEAE—RHA
BEHERAT
& DR EAN
AR EER A EE
RS2 AL
23 E

£ ERAF-FBAK
BE: BIEEQFE
BURBERT & 5 — M
Z A BB AR
KA ERERAA
BERBASE - T
AR AR
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2R AR

=&
fi1E -

EREATTRE
ABIEEATF
@

R

2016FF# #ZWBRBEBRERAF 213



Notes to the Financial Statements

PR ERAR MY EE

for the year ended 31 December 2016 #ZE 201612 31 BIEFE
(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (BRS1T3EBASN - HUAREITIIR)

26 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 26 BEEBEEREMIANLD

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS F{E (&)

(CONTINUED)

(e) Fair value measurement (Continued) (e) AFEFEE)

(i)  Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair (i) BAFVESFEZEREER

value (Continued) E8E(E)
Fair value hierarchy (Continued) NFEZR(E)
The valuation is by reference to the discounted cash HEDZ2EHBRSRS -
flows. Key unobservable inputs included expected FENAHEEABERE
yields of debt instruments and treasury notes invested RITHRENEBEEITANKEE
by banks and a discount rate that reflects the credit EERNTEPRE R R RERIE
risk of the banks. TEERBHAIRE o

Fair value measurements as at
31 December 2016 using
R2016 512831 AERZ AT EFERR

Fair value at
31 December
2016 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
R2016F
12A31H
ZAYE E-® et =R
Recurring fair value KEMATEAE
measurement
Asset; BE:
FVTPL BAFER AR - - - -
Fair value measurements as at
31 December 2015 using
R2015F12A3N BERZ ATEHERR
Fair value at
31 December
2015 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
720155
12A318
ZNVE £ B/ E=H
Recurring fair value REMATENE
measurement
Asset: BE:
FVTPL BATEARR 28,200 - - 28,200
The fair values of FVTPL are determined to be ARNIZAFEFABENA
approximation to their carrying amount, as they were FEOINRZEREHRE
purchased at the end of each reporting period. A B EE AEERE
BAEE °
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26 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR

26 BREREEREMIAND

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS FE (&)
(CONTINUED)
(e) Fair value measurement (Continued) (e) AFEFEHE)
(i)  Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair (i) RBROATFEMNEZERMEER
value (Continued) a8E(E)
Fair value hierarchy (Continued) N FEER ()

(ii)

The movements during the period in the balance of
these Level 3 fair value measurements are as follows:

UEFE=RATFEFENY
N2 BB -

2016 2015
2016 F 20154
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARET T

FVTPL: RAOFEFAERRE !
At 1 January »1A1H 28,200 134,000
Payment for purchases i YN EY 5,000 38,500
Proceeds from sales SHERTISRIE (33,200) (144,300)
At 31 December M12A31H - 28,200

All financial assets and liabilities are carried at
amounts not materially different from their fair values
as at 31 December 2016 given the nature and short-
term maturity of these financial instruments.

Fair value of financial assets and liabilities carried (ii)
at other than fair value

The carrying amounts of the Group's financial

instruments carried at cost or amortised cost were not

materially different from their fair values as at 31

December 2016 and 2015.

ENZELRIANMER
HREE MEsBEER
BEMRMERE2016F 12 A
JMEMATFERBEERER -

BRAFEUNIRHESHE
EREENATE

7 & (8] 2 B AN o B 8 K AR T
EHeRTENEEEHRE
2016 F K 2015 12 A 31
HOAFEHMESEAER -
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27 COMMITMENTS 27 EiE
(a) Capital commitments outstanding at 31 December 2016 (@) MEARKR2016F12 831 HEIE@mE
not provided for in the financial statements were as follows: B 7 KRBT E AR AVEE Y 0
™

2016 2015

20164 20154

RMB'000 RMB'000

AR¥T AREFIT

Contracted for EHES] 14,816 -

Authorised but not contracted for BEREERETL = -

14,816 -
(b) At 31 December 2016, the total future minimum lease (b) M2016F12A318  RETAH
payments under non-cancellable operating leases are HSEHENRRKEHEN A

payable as follows: B -

2016 2015

2016 F 20154

RMB'000 RMB’000

AR®T T AREFT

Within 1 year —E R 26,880 16,965

After 1 year but within 5 years —FEERFRN 30,150 17,715

57,030 34,680
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28 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 28 EXBEIRS

In addition to the related party information disclosed elsewhere MR ETEmEREM A HENBES
in the consolidated financial statements, the Group entered into BRI AEBRBBEEREI L THE
the following significant related party transactions. KEEHRZS
(@) Name of and relationship with related parties (a) BAESFBBRERELWRER
During the reporting period, transactions with the following AIREHIR - BTN S
parties are considered as related party transactions: WEBBEALS
Name of party Relationship with the Group
BEL AR B K MR &
Mr. Song Weiping Shareholder of the Company
RBFEE ZAYNEIL$
Ms. Xia Yibo Shareholder of the Company
BE—R#z+ EANNCI]ES
Mr. Shou Bainian Shareholder of the Company
SHELE RRAFIRER
Ms. Li Hairong Shareholder of the Company
FEELL ZAN/NCIL S

Greentown Holdings and its subsidiaries or
associates

S NG TN

Mr. Yang Zhangfa
BEERE

Mr. Wu Zhihua
Mr. Chen Hao
BR& T4

Mr. Ju Jianhua
BEELRL

Mr. Dong Ke
Enth

Greentown Holdings is controlled by
Mr. Song Weiping, Ms. Xia Yibo and
Mr. Shou Bainian

RBIERARARDTEE E—REER
SF R LES

Executive Director of the Company

ARBITES

Executive Director of the Company

RRABIMITESR

Executive Director of the Company

RRFMITES

The spouse of Ms. Li Hairong

FERLLTHRE

Key management personnel of the Company

RRBETEEEEAR

2016FF#H HZWBRBEBRERAF

217



Notes to the Financial Statements

PR ERAR MY EE

for the year ended 31 December 2016 #ZE 201612 31 BIEFE
(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (BRS1T3EBASN - HUAREITIIR)

28 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(CONTINUED)

28 EXBELXRS (&)

Name of and relationship with related parties
(Continued)

(a) BESEABRERESNBR

(&)

Name of party Relationship with the Group

B 578 55 4 B

Ms. Sun Caixia Key management personnel of the Company
BREYBxt RARNEBREREAE

Hangzhou Dangui Investment Company Limited
("Hangzhou Dangui Investment”)
and its subsidiaries or joint ventures

MMAEREEEERAF ([AMIERE ] X
HFREIHAELERT

Greentown China Holdings Limited
and its subsidiaries ("Greentown China”)
WP EERER AR A FAR (TREHE )

Nantong Golden

apiika

Zhejiang Lvxi

pARs il

Zhejiang Xinhu and its subsidiaries

WL #T8 N BB A 7

Shanghai Xinhu and its subsidiaries

NssEiio ) Edi b= NG

Zhejiang Greentown Hospital Investment
Company Limited and its subsidiary

ALARM BRI ERBR AT RHEFRA

Hangzhou Lvjing Cleaning Service Company Limited
("Hangzhou Lvjing"”) and its subsidiaries

MR R RRER AT (THMNERR ) MM B AR

Lvman Technology

KRB RHE

Greentown Telecommunication

RRIRE S

The English translation of the Company name is for
reference only. The official names of these companies are

in Chinese.
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Entities jointly controlled by Greentown Holdings

ARSI AL R B ) B B8

Mr. Song Weiping is a substantial shareholder
REFREREERR

Joint venture of the Group
rEBZAEDRE

Joint venture of the Group
REBEZARZERE

Associates of the Group
REBEZBERT]

Associates of the Group
REE 2 I &N F)

Mr. Song Weiping is a major shareholder

REFEERTERR

Entities formerly jointly controlled
by Mr. Ju Jianhua

SRR EREREIERI 2B

Associate of the Group

REEZ LN

Controlled by Mr. Yang Zhangfa and
Ms. Li Hairong

M5 ERTE RF BRI

AREBOEMBEESE - %
ENFMEELBAERK -



Notes to the Financial Statements

PR ERAR MY EE

for the year ended 31 December 2016 #ZE 2016512 31 BIEFE
(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (BRS1T3EBASN - HUAREITIIR)

28 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 28 EABEHFRS (8)

(CONTINUED)

(b) Key management personnel remuneration (b) FEEEEAEHE
Remuneration for key management personnel of the Group, AEBFTEEEEAEME (B
including amounts paid to the Company’s directors as EAARR B E EREIE (RN s
disclosed in note 7 and certain of the highest paid THHE) RETHEaHFME T (R
employees as disclosed in note 8, is as follows: WM EE8 TR ER) ) AT ¢

2016 2015
2016 20154
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARET T ARBFT
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind % - Z8L R EWREF] 2,488 1,775
Discretionary bonuses BB IEAL 4,713 3,059
Retirement scheme contributions BRIRETEIE R 376 309
7,577 5,143

Total remuneration is included in “staff costs” (see note NEEEEREAEMESEFT A

5(b)). [B A (R BMEE50))
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Notes to the Financial Statements

PR ERAR MY EE

for the year ended 31 December 2016 #ZE 201612 31 BIEFE

BIAARETTIIR)

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (B S4TaERASN -

28 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 28 EAEBEHFRS (8)

(CONTINUED)
(c) Significant related party transactions () EXBEIRS
Particulars of significant transactions between the Group ZNESE B _E il R AE 5 A AR B HA R Y
and the above related parties during the reporting period BARGHBWT ¢
are as follows:
2016 2015
2016 F 20154
RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBFT
Receiving property management BENYEEREZERBERE :
support services from:
— Hangzhou Lvjing and its — WUIN AR & e ELBfT 2 R
subsidiaries - 185,106
Receiving property management BENMEETEIERERS
support services from:
— Subsidiary and associate of — BRI E AR R
Greentown Holdings Bt 2 A 16,710 15,293
Health inspection service fee to: XITERBREET
— Subsidiary of Zhejiang Greentown — — W1/ TARIR BRI E B R A A
Hospital Investment Company EOEANEING]
Limited 434 734
Property service and consulting service ¥ Z iR M A ARISW AR S
income from:
— Greentown China — AR 169,569 223,534
— Subsidiary and associate of — BB B AR &
Greentown Holdings i /N 1,445 1,961
Telecommunication services from: BERBKE :
— Greentown Telecommunication — BWIER 648 -
Purchasing software and receiving EREEE G RESREBRE RS ¢
related services from:
— Lvman Technology — BRI 17,775 -

The directors consider that all related party transactions
during the reporting period were conducted on normal
commercial terms and in the ordinary and usual course of

the Group's business.

RARFETT
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Notes to the Financial Statements

PR ERAR MY EE

for the year ended 31 December 2016 #ZE 2016512 31 BIEFE
(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (BRS1T3EBASN - HUAREITIIR)

28 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 28 EAEBEHFRS (&)

(CONTINUED)
(d) Balances with related parties (d) BEEFSPEER
2016 2015
2016 £ 20154
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTFR ARETT

Amounts due from Greentown China  JEUAE I, * B 018

— Trade nature —EB51hE 13,683 24,848
— Non-trade nature —FEEHHE - 4,002
13,683 28,850
Amount due from Hangzhou Dangui  JEURAL M FHEIR & 7B
Investment
— Non-trade nature —FEEHHE - 38,805
Amounts due from subsidiary and FEUW AT IR AR BT /B A 7 I
associate of Greentown Holdings BN\ TR
— Trade nature —BZ1ME 588 144
— Non-trade nature —FEESHE = 3,661
588 3,805
Amounts due from associates or FEUTES N B S A A S EFUIE
joint ventures
— Trade nature —BZMHE 11 -
— Non-trade nature — FEHHE - 25
11 25
Amounts due to Greentown China FEH 4R p B kT8
— Trade nature —BZ1HE 5,368 3,191
Amounts due to Greentown Holdings [/~ 4% 3 122 B& 50 18
— Non-trade nature — B SHE - 483
Amounts due to subsidiary and FERT AR AR FT B A 7
associate of Greentown Holdings B & A RIFRIA
— Trade nature — B4 2,539 341
— Non-trade nature — FESHE - 159
2,539 500
Amounts due to associates/ JERTEE AT, AE D ERE
joint ventures
— Trade nature — B4 25 -
— Non-trade nature — B HHE = 100
Amounts due from/to related parties are unsecured and FEUR,FEAS A& 5 BB A E IR &
interest-free. SN
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Notes to the Financial Statements

PR ERAR MY EE

for the year ended 31 December 2016 #ZE 201612 31 BIEFE
(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (BRS1T3EBASN - HUAREITIIR)

29 COMPANY-LEVEL STATEMENT OF 29 REIREUBAARR K

FINANCIAL POSITION

2016 2015
2016 F 20154
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
B 5T ARET AREFIT
Non-current assets kRBEE
Interest in joint ventures REERENER 86,571 -
Interest in subsidiaries A B A RE R (a) 1,152,040 1
1,238,611 1
Current assets REBEE
Trade and other receivables B 5 Nk EmEWRFIE 48 8
Cash and cash equivalents BENRSEEY 79,521 172
79,569 180
Current liabilities REBAE
Trade and other payables B 5 R HAb T FIR 4,856 173
4,856 173
Net current assets REBEEFE 74,713 7
Total assets less current liabilities #EERATEE 1,313,324 8
NET ASSETS EEFE 1,313,324 8
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BEXK#E 24(a)
Share capital (N 24 8
Reserves B 1,313,300 -
TOTAL EQUITY BRER 1,313,324 8
(a) Interest in subsidiaries (a) RHMBATHRESR
2016 2015
2016 F 20154
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T AREEFIT
Costs of investment, unlisted JELEMIREKA 1 1
Amounts due from subsidiaries A EPNGIE S 1,152,039 -
1,152,040 1

A substantial portion of proceeds arising from the Listing of
the Company’s shares on the Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited was used as a loan to Greentown Service
Group (Hong Kong) Co. Limited, an indirectly wholly-owned
subsidiary. The loan is unsecured, interest free and has no
fixed term of repayment.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

PR ERAR MY EE

for the year ended 31 December 2016 #ZE 2016512 31 BIEFE
(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (BRS1T3EBASN - HUAREITIIR)

30 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 30 AffERARINIRE
The following list contains only the particulars of subsidiaries TRESVEAEEEE EERERE
which principally affected the results, assets or liabilities of the BRETEFENNBRARFES BEE
Group. The class of shares held is ordinary unless otherwise FREASN - FTIEAR (AR AT EAR o
stated.

Proportion of ownership interest

Rt
Place of
incorporation Registered/issued Group's Held by the Held by a
Name of company and business and paic-in capital ~ effective interest Company subsidiary Principal activity
AMEIR it/ ERIR
kL RS E RAEx  AREERER ALAER WELTRR IRRR
Greentown Service Group BVI USD100/USD100 100% 100% - Investment holding
Investment Co. Ltd.
Greentown Service Group Investment Co. Ltd. ~ EB#REE 100%7T/100%7 100% 100% — REBR
Greentown Service Group (Hong Kong) Hong Kong HKD100/HKD100 100% - 100%  Investment holding
Co. Limited
BARHRE (B8) BRAT EA 1007/ 1007 100% - 100% RERR
Hangzhou Zigui Technology Company Limited ~ the PRC USD50,000,000/ 100% - 100%  Investment holding
(formerly known as “Hangzhou Osmanthus USD18,693,011.30
Garden Investment Management Company
Limited")
HEEMEARAR E 50000000% 7/ 100% - 100% RERR
(R&[NEERRAEERRAR]) 18693011.30%7
Greentown PM the PRC RMB200,000,000/ 100% - 100%  Property management
RMB50,000,000
RINRREEEARAA oE NRH 2000000007/ 100% - 100% %A%
AR 50,000,000 7
Zhejiang Lvsheng Property Management the PRC RIMB&0,000,000/ 100% - 100%  Property management
Company Limited RMB5,000,000
HIEANERBERAR Gl ARH 600000007/ 100% - 100% NERS
AR50000007T
Hangzhou Xianggui Hotel Management the PRC RMB30,000/ 100% - 100% Hotel management
Company Limited RMB30,000
NEREEERARAA i ARH300007/ 100% - 100% EEEE
AEE300007T
Shanghai Lvfeng Property Management the PRC RMBS00,000/ 100% - 100%  Property management
Company Limited RMB500,000
HRRENFERARLA E NRH500 00072/ 100% - 100% %A%
ARE500,0007
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Notes to the Financial Statements

PR ERAR MY EE

for the year ended 31 December 2016 #ZE 201612 31 BIEFE

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (B 51TaERASN

30 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

A 2

 UAAREITTIIR)

30 RKTBARWIRE ()

(CONTINUED)
Proportion of ownership interest
Rt
Place of
incorporation Registered/issued Group's Held by the Held by a
Name of company and business and paic-in capital  effective interest Company subsidiary Principal activity
AMRIR it/ BRIR
kL gXE RAEx  AREERER ALAER WELTRR IRRR
Zhejiang Greentown Lvfa Property the PRC RIMB10,000,000/ 1% - 1%  Property management
Management Company Limited RMB10,000,000
AR RN REARAT E ARH100000007/ 51% - 5% MERH
AR 10,000,000 7
Hangzhou Yijia Property Management the PRC RMBS00,000/ 100% - 100%  Property management
Company Limited RMBS500,000
RN EEARAA o NEH 50000072/ 100% - 100% PR
AR 5000007
Ningbo Lvheng Property Management the PRC RIB3,000,000/ 80% - 80%  Property management
Company Limited RMB3,000,000
ERBENRRBARLA hE ARH3,0000007T,/ 80% - 80% MEMRH
AE#30000007T
Zhejiang Baoye Greentown Property the PRC RIBS,000,000/ 1% - 1%  Property management
Management Company Limited RMB5,000,000
HTRREINEREARAT E ARHS0000007/ 51% - 5% MERH
AR 5,000,007
Ningbo Greentown Advertisement the PRC RMB1,000,000/ 100% - 100%  Advertisement design,
Company Limited RIB1,000,000 producing and releasing
services
ERBHRSERDT oE ARH1,0000007/ 100% - 100% FERE RAER
ARE1,000,0007 bR
Ningbo Greentown Property Management the PRC RIBS,000,000/ 100% - 100%  Property management
Company Limited RMB5,000,000
ERGINFERARAT i ARH5,0000007/ 100% - 100% NERH
AR50000007T
Jiaxing Greentown Property Service the PRC RIB3,000,000/ 100% - 100%  Property management
Company Limited RMB3,000,000
SRBINZRIEARLA E ARH30000007/ 100% - 100% MERH
AR 3,000,000 72
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Notes to the Financial Statements

PR ERAR MY EE

for the year ended 31 December 2016 #ZE 2016512 31 BIEFE
(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (BRS1T3EBASN - HUAREITIIR)

30 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 30 REBARNIRE (&)
(CONTINUED)
Proportion of ownership interest
Rt fl
Place of
incorporation Registered/issued Group's Held by the Held by a
Name of company and business and paid-in capital  effective interest Company subsidiary Principal activity
ARALER it/ 2Rk
ARER gXuE B45%x 1REERER ARARE  WELARE IEER
Shanghai Lvyu Property Management the PRC RIB3,000,000/ 100% - 100%  Property management
Company Limited RMB3,000,000
LEETNREEARAA il ARHE30000007/ 100% - 100% MEHH
ARE30000007
Anhui Greentown Property Management the PRC RIMBS,000,000/ 100% - 100% Property management
Company Limited RMB5,000,000
RN ERARAA hE ARHE50000007/ 100% - 100% MERH
AR 5,000,000 72
Beijing Greentown Property Management the PRC RIBS,000,000/ 100% - 100%  Property management
Company Limited RMB3,000,000
ERESNFERARLE T ARES50000007/ 100% - 100% 3R
AR 3,000,000 72
Zhejiang Greentown Real Estate Consulting the PRC RMBS00,000/ 100% - 100%  Community leasing,
Company Limited RMB500,000 sales and other services
MR ERAERAA il ARES000007/ 100% - 100% EEEE HER
ARE5000007 Hitoiris
Zhejiang Greentown Culture Arts Consulting the PRC RIMB2,000,000/ 100% - 100%  Recreational activities,
Company Limited RMB2,000,000 exhibitions and market
promotion services
AT KR hE ARHE2,0000007/ 100% - 100% FEEE RER
ARE 20000007 ki3 1
Zhejiang Greentown Real Estate Agency the PRC RMB1,000,000/ 5% - 55%  Community leasing,
Company Limited RIMB1,000,000 sales and other services
HIEEEERERAT Gl ARE1,0000007/ 5% - 5% EERE - HER
AR 1,000,000 72 Hth s
Greentown Community Service the PRC RMB2,000,000/ 90% - 90% Business consultant and
RMB2,000,000 housekeeping services
MTERNERAR L ERKARLA HE ARE2,0000007/ 90% - 0% EEBERFHRS
ARE 20000007
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PR ERAR MY EE

for the year ended 31 December 2016 #ZE 201612 31 BIEFE
=

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (B S4TaERASN -

BIAARETTIIR)

30 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 30 RMBABMNIRE (&)

(CONTINUED)
Proportion of ownership interest
Rt
Place of
incorporation Registered/issued Group's Held by the Held by a
Name of company and business and paic-in capital  effective interest Company subsidiary Principal activity
AMRIR it/ BRIR
kL gXE RAEx  AREERER ALAER WELTRR IRRR
Zhejiang Greentown Hotel Management the PRC RIBS,000,000/ 100% - 100% Hotel management
Company Limited RMB5,000,000
AT B ERARAA E ARHS0000007/ 100% - 0% BEEE
AR 5,000,007
Hangzhou Xiaoshan Tulip Hotel Management the PRC RMBS00,000/ 100% - 100% Hotel management
Company Limited RMBS500,000
MELELERBRE AR o NEH 50000072/ 100% - 100% EEEE
AR 5000007
Hangzhou Liuzhuang Hotel Management the PRC RIMB1,500,000/ 100% - 100% Hotel management
Company Limited RMB1,500,000
MR EEERARAR ki ARE1,5000007/ 100% - 100% EEER
ARE1,5000007T
Hangzhou Greentown Vocational the PRC RMBE00,000/ 100% - 100%  Property management
Training School RIMBE00,000 related training services
NSRS hE ARE 6000007/ 100% - 100% R R R
ARE 600,000 7
Xinjiang Greentown Property Management the PRC RIB3,000,000/ 100% - 100%  Property management,
Company Limited RIVB3,000,000 leasing and housekeeping
services
HERHNERBARLA oE ARH30000007/ 100% - 100% NERS BER
AR 3,000,007 KRS
Shenyang Greentown Property Services the PRC RIB6,000,000/ 60% - 60%  Property management
Company Limited RMBA6,000,000
TEEInEREERAR hE ARH6,0000007/ 80% - 80% MR
AR 600000070
Shenyang Bihe Real Estate Agency the PRC RMB100,000/ 60% - 60% - Community leasing,
Company Limited RIMB100,000 sales and other services
ERUNREEEARAA E AR 1000007/ 60% - 60 EREE - HER
ARE100,0007 A
Qian'an Greentown Services Company Limited ~ The PRC RMBS00,000/ 100% - 100%  Property management
RMBS00,000
BREHNEREARLA oE ARH 5000007/ 100% - 100% %A%
AEE500,0007
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PR ERAR MY EE

for the year ended 31 December 2016 #ZE 2016512 31 BIEFE
=t

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (B S54TaERASN -

BUAARETTIIR)

30 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 30 RMBABMNIRE (&)

(CONTINUED)
Proportion of ownership interest
Rt fl
Place of
incorporation Registered/issued Group's Held by the Held by a
Name of company and business and paid-in capital  effective interest Company subsidiary Principal activity
ARALER it/ 2Rk
ARER EXY B45%x 1REERER ARARE  WELARE IEER
Shandong Greentown Property Management the PRC RIMB10,000,000/ 100% - 100%  Property management
Company Limited RMB10,000,000
WRERNEREARA il ARE100000007/ 100% - 100% MEHH
ARE100000007
Zhoushan Greentown Dongsha Hotel the PRC RMB30,000/ 100% - 100%  Undertake convention
Management Company Limited RMB30,000 and exhibition, hotel
management
AR EREEERARAA hE ARH300007/ 100% - 100% #EEREE BEEE
ARE300007T
Hangzhou Greentown Chengpin Property the PRC RIB2,000,000/ 100% - 100%  Property management
Management Company Limited RMB2,000,000
MG AR R EBARAT Gk ARE20000007/ 100% - 100% NERH
AR 2,000,000 72
Xinyang Greentown Property Management the PRC RMBS00,000/ 100% - 100%  Property management
Company Limited RMBS00,000
EREANEREARAT r# ARES000007T/ 100% - 100% 9EHH
ARE5000007
Hefei Greentown Real Estate Agency the PRC RMB300,000/ 100% - 100%  Community leasing,
Company Limited RMB300,000 sales and other services
AREAEEEAERAA hE ARE3000007/ 100% - 100% EEEE HER
ARE3000007 HittiRis
Greentown Property Service Group Jiangsu the PRC RIB10,000,000/ 100% - 100%  Property management
Company Limited RMB10,000,000
BanEREEETHEERAR Gl ARE100000007/ 100% - 100% W%k
AR 10,000,000 7
Zhejiang Greentown Yuhua Education and the PRC RMB10,000,000/ 100% - 100% Education consultant
Technology Company Limited RIMB5,000,000 senvice
HTEREEHEN AR HE ARE100000007/ 100% - 100% HE R
ARE5,0000007
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PR ERAR MY EE

for the year ended 31 December 2016 #ZE 201612 31 BIEFE
(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (BRS1T3EBASN - HUAREITIIR)

30 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 30 REBARNIRE (&)
(CONTINUED)
Proportion of ownership interest
Rt
Place of
incorporation Registered/issued Group's Held by the Held by a
Name of company and business and paic-in capital  effective interest Company subsidiary Principal activity
AMRIR it/ 2Rk
ARER gXuE B45%x 1REERER ARARE  WELARE IEER
Guogjn Greentown (Beijing) Asset Management  the PRC RMB3,000,000/ 60% - 60%  Investment consultant
Company Limited RMB1,800,000 service, asset
management service
BRI (LR AEEEARAA r# ARHE30000007/ 6% - 6% RAEREH A
AR 1,800,000 7 BB
Zhejiang Twin Cities Network Company Limited ~ the PRC RIVB11,000,000/ 75% - 75% - Computer networking
RMB9,160,600 technology, consultant
service
ISR RARLR e ARE 110000007/ 75% - 75% EMBHEN - FARH
ARE9,160,600 7
Greentown Property Service Group Hong Kong HKDA40,000,000/ 100% - 100%  Investment holding
{Hong Kong) Co., Limited HKD40,000,000
BnEREEE (E8) BRAT B 40,000,000 7,/ 100% - 100% REERK
400000007
Lingshui Greentown Tiantangniao Holiday the PRC RMB1,000,000/~ 100% - 100% Hotel and resorts
House Management Company Limited management
BKBHAREBEREERARAR i AR 1,0000007/~ 100% - 100% EEREREER
Sanya Greentown Tiantangniao Holiday House ~ the PRC RMB1,000,000/- 100% - 100%  Resorts management
Management Company Limited
CERIRERRBERRARAT E NRH1,0000007,/- 100% - 100% EREEE
Haining Greentown Hongxiang Property the PRC RIB3,000,000/ 60% - 60%  Property management
Service Company Limited RMBE00,000
BERHEMNRREARLA Gk ARH3,0000007T/ 80% - 0% WERH
ARE 600,000 7
Hangzhou Shide Financial Service Outsourcing ~ the PRC RMB10,000,000/ 75% - 75% Financial service
Company Limited RMB1,000,000 outsourcing
Mt EeRRHIaERARD e ARE100000007/ 75% - 5% tREHIME
AR 1,000,000 7
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PR ERAR MY EE

for the year ended 31 December 2016 #ZE 2016512 31 BIEFE
(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (BRS1T3EBASN - HUAREITIIR)

30 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 30 AMBARNKRE (&)
(CONTINUED)
Proportion of ownership interest
gL fl
Place of
incorporation Registered/issued Group's Held by the Held by a
Name of company and business and paid-in capital  effective interest Company subsidiary Principal activity
HEMALR ith/ERTR
ARER ¥y BhEx  AREERER FRERE  WELERE TEXR
Chongaing Liangjiang Greentown Property the PRC RMB5,000,000/- 1% - 1%  Property management
Service Company Limited
ERMIAANEREERAE Giles ARE5000000/- 51% - 5% MERB
Zhejiang Anji Greentown Yinrun Property the PRC RMB3,000,000/- 60% - 60%  Property management
Service Company Limited
WIZERAERNEREARAR EF ARE3,000000/- 80% - 8% MERHS
Jiangxi Gantie Greentown Property the PRC RMB3,000,000/- 1% - 1%  Property management
Service Company Limited
IERERINRRBERL A Giles ARE3000000/- 51% - 51% MEMH
* All the PRC entities are limited liability companies. The English translation of * FEFREEEAEREMAR - AREHE
the company name is for reference only. The official names of these MEXEZEHRSE - ZERAREERTE
companies are in Chinese. y=1==5"Q)
*x The subsidiaries were established by the Group during 2016. x ZEWE AR BAEER 2016 FKAL ©
As at 31 December 2016, no subsidiary of the Group had material R2016F 12 A31H @ #EE KN E B 8
non-controlling interests. NTVEEE E AR RERS o
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for the year ended 31 December 2016 #ZE 201612 31 BIEFE
(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (BRS1T3EBASN - HUAREITIIR)

31 PRE-IPO SHARE AWARD SCHEME 31 BERARABENRMDEBTE
On 1 January 2016, the Company adopted a Pre-IPO share award AKRARR2016F1A1TBRBERARH
scheme (the “Pre-IPO Share Award Scheme”) to grant certain BERKMERE ((HRABEREN
senior management personnel of the Group (“the Incentive BB E ) UREFETAEEH
Targets”) to acquire certain shares of the Company (“the SREEAE((HBYER]))AETEE
Incentive Shares”) from Ms. Li Hairong. The consideration for TWIEETARAE KRG (BRG] -
the acquisition is by reference to the valuation of Greentown PM WERE T2 Z &MY % RFBH 2015F
as at 31 December 2015. Lilac International Investment Company 12A31HMHE - ZERLT2EHES
Limited (“Lilac”), a company wholly-owned by Ms. Li Hairong, #) 7~ AlLilac International Investment
transferred an aggregate of 105,000,000 shares of the Company Company Limited ([Lilac]) # &
to Mass Wisdom Group Limited (“Mass Wisdom"), a third party 105,000,000 & " A Bl A% (D 88 -8 T 5 =
trust company, which was appointed as the trustee under the Pre- = %t A ] Mass Wisdom Group Limited
IPO Share Award Scheme. The shares would be held by Mass ([ Mass Wisdom]) * Mass Wisdom &%
Wisdom on behalf of the Incentive Targets. The shares awarded EAEBRAREBEEFR M EE R EA S
under the Pre-IPO Share Award Scheme would vest on the date FEA ° Mass Wisdom X &R BB ¥ RFH
of the Listing. The consideration would be payable by the AR - IBIEE X AR S/ £
Incentive Targets to Lilac upon the Listing. If the Listing does not Bt EaRNBNR ETHEES -
take place on or before 31 December 2016, Mass Wisdom shall Wi BEE RAR LilacZIR(E -
transfer these shares of the Company back to Lilac at nil i £ I & 2016F 12 A31 Bk 2 Al
consideration. 4 - Mass Wisdom Al 5% E 8 1A 7l ik

R\ O] F Lilac °

On 18 April 2016, written resolutions of the shareholders of the B2016F4 188 » KRR RIREEZM®E R
Company were passed to approve the amendments to the BEERB UMEBRARABERR
structure to the Pre-IPO Share Award Scheme. Pursuant to the D ERENET IR 2R IBERT - BIEMR R IR Z
shareholders’ resolution, Begonia International Investment R BEREERZEHEEN AT Begonia
Company Limited (“Begonia”, a company wholly-owned by Mr. International Investment Company
Yang Zhangfa) and Blue-Bay International Investment Company Limited ([ Begonial) X R A R #ITE F
Limited (“Blue-Bay”, a company wholly-owned by Mr. Wu Zhihua, REEXLER2EH B KA A Blue-Bay
executive director of the Company), transferred their 30,000,000 International Investment Company
and 15,000,000 shares of the Company back to Lilac. On 18 April Limited ([Blue-Bay|) % &l # X
2016, Lilac transferred 45,000,000 shares of the Company to Mass 30,000,000 A% . 15,000,000 A& 24 A &) B {7
Wisdom. The 45,000,000 shares became part of the Incentive 8 8] F Lilac ° 7220164 A 188 - Lilac
Shares and were awarded to Mr. Yang Zhangfa and Mr. Wu 15 45,000,000 A& 248 22 &) B% 17 82 3% T Mass
Zhihua on 18 April 2016, through the Pre-IPO Share Award Wisdom ° 7% 45,000,000 A% R& 17 5 /4 2 B
Scheme as a continuation of the original grant by Lilac to Begonia BB —E8 - WHR2016F4 A 18 BB
and Blue-Bay. After the transfer, the total number of Incentive BERNARBEFRMOEEER TS
Shares increased from 105,000,000 to 150,000,000. EEREERREERE  fFRLlac RA

M Begonia & Blue-Bay & Hi iR fn (U4 -
R - BB R Z # 2H 105,000,000
&% F+ 2 150,000,000 fi% °

The Incentive Shares further increased from 150,000,000 shares to RE AR EE1T (B 5 24(0)(1)) 7 2016 FF
300,000,000 shares after the capitalisation issue completed on 12 7H128B T K & B B K 15D &
July 2016 (see Note 24(c)(ii)) ,among which, Mr. Yang Zhangfa and 150,000,000 A% # — 2> 4% = 300,000,000
Mr. Wu Zhihua owns 60,000,000 and 30,000,000 shares f%  BhigEERLERZREFELED R
respectively. # 75 60,000,000 fi% & 30,000,000 f%
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31

32

PRE-IPO SHARE AWARD SCHEME
(CONTINUED)

Discounted cash flow model was used to estimate the fair value
of the shares of Greentown PM. As at 31 December 2015, the
estimated fair value of the shares transferred is RMB637,800,000,
which was carried out by an independent valuer. The variables
and assumptions used in computing the fair value of the shares
are based on management of the Company’s best estimate. The
value of a share varies with different variables of certain subjective
assumptions. The inputs into the model are as follows:

Risk-Free Rate 4%
Weighted Average Cost of Capital 15%
Beta (Relevered) 1.46
Terminal capitalisation rate 12%

No expense was recognised for the year ended 31 December
2016 in relation to share-based payment transaction by the
Company as the fair value of the shares granted was approximate
to the consideration.

NON-ADJUSTING EVENTS AFTER THE

REPORTING PERIOD

(@)  Acquisition of a subsidiary — Jilin Tianshun Property Service
Company Limited (F M KRIEYIZE ARG AR A F]) (“Tianshun
Property Service")
On 19 December 2016, the Group entered into an equity
transfer agreement and supplementary agreement with Jilin
Tianshun Agency Company Limited to acquire its 70%
equity interests in Tianshun Property Service for a cash
consideration of RMB18,000,000. After the acquisition,
Tianshun Property Service became a subsidiary of the
Group, which provided property management service. The
acquisition was completed on 13 March 2017.

(b) Final dividend

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, the

directors proposed a final dividend. Further details are

disclosed in note 24(b).

(B = 1TRERASN -

31

32

BUAARETTIIR)

Ej)u&ﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁﬂi{ﬁﬁmﬁ%
KELIR AR &R A B ARME R D
E R DA TFE - R2015F 12 A 31
B FTEZERONEFATFEAARE
637,800,0007C © JhERIE Y HERMGBES

He STERMATENEH RRER TR
BARREEENREMT - BRHERAE
BEASTEIBEBRENTREEH A ME
{b - AR A BRI T -

4 [, f 1) 3R 4%
DN 158 AR AR 15%
B ZE(HIER) 1.46
BERARME 12%

BE2016F12A31BIEFE - W&
AR B AR AR ETE 2 15 X 5 RERR R
o TTHRRE B RO A FERRLER
%O

BEHERNERAREE

(a) WEHBAR — FMXIEWER
BAERRR ([ RIEMERE])

R20165F12 19 - AEFHS
SN b= =1 UNCIE VA =
I EAGEN R SN )
ERGER QT 70% K  BEK
B & AR #18,000,0007T © Y 5%
B - RIBYIZE RIS K B A 5 E K
BAR - REMERE - WEEIE
BR2017 43 138 5% °

(b)y KRERE

RREHRE EFRFHRERT

B B o 3% 55 H A KT 52 24(b) 3

= o

2016FF# HZWBRBEBRERAF 231



Notes to the Financial Statements

PR ERAR MY EE

for the year ended 31 December 2016 #ZE 201612 31 BIEFE
(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (BRS1T3EBASN - HUAREITIIR)

33 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW 33 HZ2016F12A31HLLFE

STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED e MR {B s R EEVIERT -
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR HAIRZEBURELENEE
ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016
Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the HKICPA BETZEZEYHREBE &89t
has issued a number of amendments and new standards which fiAEEB/MEZE2016F12H31H 1b
are not yet effective for the year ended 31 December 2016 and FERMRERENERNZEH B MK
which have not been adopted in these financial statements. MEZIBIEE] RATEER o LA TMEET B
These include the following which may be relevant to the Group. HER|EAREFEGR -
Effective
for accounting
periods
beginning on
or after
RT5 B
R EBRAKEN
BRHEEN
Amendments to HKAS 12, Income taxes: B GRTERIE 12%UERT © AT/ - 1 January 2017
Recognition of deferred tax assets for unrealised i K& B E1E TR B IR B B E 20171 A1 R
losses
Amendments to HKAS 7, Statement of cash flows: BE @ EAE7RIER] B2 mE X - 1 January 2017
Disclosure initiative FEEHEE 20171818

HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers &8 #5345 2R 5 1558 -
FKEEFEHZHA

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments BEUBRELERZEIWR - 2FTA
Amendments to HKFRS 2, Share-based payment — Ei# IR E 2R E 258 &5]
KRG BEB XS

HKFRS 16, Leases EEMERELERE 1658 HE

1 January 2018
20181 A1 R

1 January 2018
2018F1A1H

1 January 2018
2018F1A1H

1 January 2019
2019F1 A1 R

Amendments to HKFRS 10, Consolidate financial BB EHwEER|E 1057 @ S5 85K To be determined

statements and HKAS 28, Investments in NEBEIERISE 285%E5] -
associates and joint ventures: Sale or contribution REFENFIRE EDPEMIKE -
of assets between an investor and its associate or 1% & & B H I & N 78,

joint venture BETLRCENEELER TE
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (BRS1T3EBASN - HUAREITIIR)

33 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW 33 BE2016F12A31MBLLEE

STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016 (CONTINUED)

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what the
impact of these amendments and new standards is expected to
be in the period of initial application. So far the Group has
identified some aspects of the new standards which may have a
significant impact on the consolidated financial statements.
Further details of the expected impacts are discussed below. As
the Group has not completed its assessment, further impacts may
be identified in due course and will be taken into consideration
when determining whether to adopt any of these new
requirements before their effective date and which transitional
approach to take, where there are alternative approaches allowed
under the new standards.

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 replaces the existing guidance in HKAS 39 Financial
instruments: Recognition and measurement. HKFRS 9 includes
revised guidance on the classification and measurement of
financial instruments, a new expected credit loss model for
calculating impairment on financial assets, and new general
hedge accounting requirements. It also carries forward the
guidance on recognition and derecognition of financial
instruments from HKAS 39.

HKFRS 9 will replace the current standard on accounting for
financial instruments, HKAS 39, Financial instruments:
Recognition and measurement. HKFRS 9 introduces new
requirements for classification and measurement of financial
assets, calculation of impairment of financial assets and hedge
accounting. On the other hand, HKFRS 9 incorporates without
substantive changes the requirements of HKAS 39 for recognition
and derecognition of financial instruments and the classification
of financial liabilities. Expected impacts of the new requirements
on the Group's financial statements are as follows:

C SEAR{E s R A RAVIEET - #
HARRETREENTE(E)

REE AR SRR R ERIR )
RERPBRBHELENTE - 258K
BB BRI FERIM A T 77 Al gE B AN
B MBERRERBEATE - BHY
ENELZFBEN T XM - ARANEE
R SERC TG - BRI RE IR M ®
& AEEEREEENERE AR
MR F AR E LR EEE D R
({3 T B FF R T 20) B A6 8 X

ey ==
Tr}?é% °

ERMBREENEIREHMTA
FERMBREENFIRARTEES
HERIE 395 - M T A - BRLAE
MINBES - ERMBHRSEAE IR
BREAZBRTADBERFENEETE
3 FEEREERENEMEERR
BRI —RE DS RTE - ZE
AITEERAEE G EANERNE
BTAER L EMNES -

BEMBRERAFIFEDNRESHT
RestBE 2 BTER : HEGER
BN eMTA: BALKTE - BR
MBREENFIRIIACRHEES D
MEtE eRMEEREAERERES
EZHRE - Z—E > BEMBRE
ERF M ME B G ERNEINRE
AREALR IR T ARSI
MEEZHAE LEELEERENR-H
REBAKEY @R FBRZENT
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33 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW
STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016 (CONTINUED)
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

(a) Classification and measurement
HKFRS 9 contains three principal classification categories
for financial assets: measured at (1) amortised cost, (2) fair
value through profit or loss (FVTPL) and (3) fair value
through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI) as follows:

—  The classification for debt instruments is determined
based on the entity’s business model for managing
the financial assets and the contractual cash flow
characteristics of the asset. If a debt instrument is
classified as FVTOCI then effective interest,
impairments and gains/losses on disposal will be
recognised in profit or loss.

—  For equity securities, the classification is FVTPL
regardless of the entity’s business model. The only
exception is if the equity security is not held for
trading and the entity irrevocably elects to designate
that security as FVTOCI. If an equity security is
designated as FVTOCI then only dividend income on
that security will be recognised in profit or loss. Gains,
losses and impairments on that security will be
recognised in other comprehensive income without
recycling.

Based on the preliminary assessment, the Group expects
that its financial assets currently measured at amortised
cost and FVTPL will continue with their respective
classification and measurements upon the adoption of
HKFRS 9.
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33 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW
STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016 (CONTINUED)
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

(a) Classification and measurement (Continued)

With respect to the Group's financial assets currently
classified as “available-for-sale”, these are investments in
equity financial instruments which the Group may classify as
either FVTPL or irrevocably elect to designate as FVTOCI
(without recycling) on transition to HKFRS 9. The Group has
not yet decided whether it will irrevocably designate these
investments as FVTOCI or classify them as FVTPL. Either
classification would give rise to a change in accounting
policy as the current accounting policy for available-for-sale
equity investments is to recognise fair value changes in
other comprehensive income until disposal or impairment,
when gains or losses are recycled to profit or loss in
accordance with the Group's policies set out in notes 1(g)
and 1(k). This change in policy will have no impact on the
Group's net assets and total comprehensive income but will
impact on reported performance amounts such as profit
and earnings per share.

The classification and measurement requirements for
financial liabilities under HKFRS 9 are largely unchanged
from HKAS 39, except that HKFRS 9 requires the fair value
change of a financial liability designated at FVTPL that is
attributable to changes of that financial liability’s own credit
risk to be recognised in other comprehensive income
(without reclassification to profit or loss). The Group
currently does not have any financial liabilities designated
at FVTPL and therefore this new requirement may not have
any impact on the Group on adoption of HKFRS 9.
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33 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW 33 BE2016F12A31MBLEE

STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED

BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR

ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016 (CONTINUED)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

(b) Impairment
The new impairment model in HKFRS 9 replaces the
"incurred loss” model in HKAS 39 with an “expected credit
loss” model. Under the expected credit loss model, it will
no longer be necessary for a loss event to occur before an
impairment loss is recognised. Instead, an entity is required
to recognise and measure expected credit losses as either
12-month expected credit losses or lifetime expected credit
losses, depending on the asset and the facts and
circumstances. This new impairment model may result in an
earlier recognition of credit losses on the Group's trade
receivables and other financial assets. However, a more
detailed analysis is required to determine the extent of the
impact.

HKFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with customers

HKFRS 15 establishes a comprehensive framework for recognising
revenue from contracts with customers. HKFRS 15 will replace the
existing revenue standards, HKAS 18, Revenue, which covers
revenue arising from sale of goods and rendering of services, and
HKAS 11, Construction contracts, which specifies the accounting
for revenue from construction contracts. The Group is currently
assessing the impacts of adopting HKFRS 15 on its financial
statements. Based on the preliminary assessment, the Group has
identified the following areas which are likely to be affected:

(a) Timing of revenue recognition
The Group's revenue recognition policies are disclosed in
note 1(t). Currently, revenue arising from the provision of
services is recognised over time, whereas revenue from the
sale of goods is generally recognised when the risks and
rewards of ownership have passed to the customers.
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33 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW
STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016 (CONTINUED)
HKFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with customers
(Continued)

(a) Timing of revenue recognition (Continued)
Under HKFRS 15, revenue is recognised when the customer
obtains control of the promised good or service in the
contract. HKFRS 15 identifies 3 situations in which control of
the promised good or service is regarded as being
transferred over time:

() When the customer simultaneously receives and
consumes the benefits provided by the entity’s
performance, as the entity performs;

(i) When the entity’s performance creates or enhances
an asset (for example work in progress) that the
customer controls as the asset is created or enhanced;

(i)  When the entity’s performance does not create an
asset with an alternative use to the entity and the
entity has an enforceable right to payment for
performance completed to date.

If the contract terms and the entity’s activities do not fall
into any of these 3 situations, then under HKFRS 15 the
entity recognises revenue for the sale of that good or
service at a single point in time, being when control has
passed. Transfer of risks and rewards of ownership is only
one of the indicators that will be considered in determining
when the transfer of control occurs.

As a result of this change from the risk-and-reward
approach to the contract-by-contract transfer-of-control
approach, it is possible that once the Group adopts IFRS
15, for some of the Group's contracts, the point in time
when revenue is recognised may be earlier or later than
under the current accounting policy. However, further
analysis is required to determine whether this change in
accounting policy may have a material impact on the
amounts reported in any given financial reporting period.
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33 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW
STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016 (CONTINUED)
HKFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with customers
(Continued)

(b) Significant financing component
HKFRS 15 requires an entity to adjust the transaction price
for the time value of money when a contract contains a
significant financing component, regardless of whether the
payments from customers are received significantly in
advance or in arrears.

Currently, the Group would only apply such a policy when
payments are significantly deferred, which is currently not
common in the Group's arrangements with its customers.
Currently, the Group does not apply such a policy when
payments are received in advance.

The Group is in the process of assessing whether this
component in the Group’s advance payment schemes
would be significant to the contract and therefore whether,
once HKFRS 15 is adopted, the transaction price would
need to be adjusted for the purposes of recognising

revenue.

HKFRS 16 Leases

As disclosed in note 1()), currently the Group classifies leases into
finance leases and operating leases and accounts for the lease
arrangements differently, depending on the classification of the
lease. The Group enters into some leases as the lessor and others
as the lessee.
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33 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW 33 BE2016F12A31MBLLEE

STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016 (CONTINUED)
HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

HKFRS 16 is not expected to impact significantly on the way that
lessors account for their rights and obligations under a lease.
However, once HKFRS 16 is adopted, lessees will no longer
distinguish between finance leases and operating leases. Instead,
subject to practical expedients, lessees will account for all leases
in a similar way to current finance lease accounting, i.e. at the
commencement date of the lease the lessee will recognise and
measure a lease liability at the present value of the minimum
future lease payments and will recognise a corresponding “right-
of-use” asset. After initial recognition of this asset and liability,
the lessee will recognise interest expense accrued on the
outstanding balance of the lease liability, and the depreciation of
the right-of-use asset, instead of the current policy of recognising
rental expenses incurred under operating leases on a systematic
basis over the lease term. As a practical expedient, the lessee can
elect not to apply this accounting model to short-term leases (i.e.
where the lease term is 12 months or less) and to leases of low-
value assets, in which case the rental expenses would continue to
be recognised on a systematic basis over the lease term.

HKFRS 16 will primarily affect the Group's accounting as a lessee
of leases for properties, plant and equipment which are currently
classified as operating leases. The application of the new
accounting model is expected to lead to an increase in both
assets and liabilities and to impact on the timing of the expense
recognition in the statement of profit or loss over the period of
the lease. As disclosed in note 27(b), at 31 December 2016 the
Group's future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases amounted to RMB57,030,000 for properties and
other assets, which is payable either within 1 year or between 1
and 5 years after the reporting date. Accordingly certain amounts
may therefore need to be recognised as lease liabilities, with
corresponding right-of-use assets, once HKFRS 16 is adopted.
The Group will need to perform a more detailed analysis to
determine the amounts of new assets and liabilities arising from
operating lease commitments on adoption of HKFRS 16, after
taking into account the applicability of the practical expedient
and adjusting for any leases entered into or terminated between
now and the adoption of HKFRS 16 and the effects of
discounting.
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (BRS1T3EBASN - HUAREITIIR)

33 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW 33 BE2016F12A31MBLEE

STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BB AR B 1 R AEMEVERT -
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR BRI kBRI EEENTE(E)
ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016 (CONTINUED)

HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued) BRMBEREEAE16MEE(E)
The Group is considering whether to adopt HKFRS 16 before its AEBIEEER2EAR2019F1A1B 2
effective date of 1 January 2019. However, early adoption of N EHR R BB B REERE16
HKFRS 16 is only permitted if this is no earlier than the adoption o AT BWENERRWNE BT
of HKFRS 15. It is therefore unlikely that HKFRS 16 will be MEERIF ST - FEMER ZRN
adopted before the effective date of HKFRS 15, being 1 January BBV REERNE 165 - Bt - £F
2018. BB S E R S 155 A B E (A

2018F 1 A1H) 2B MR RESR M BB
B RS 1657
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